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INTRODUCTION

Centaur is an international provider of business information and specialist
consultancy that inspires and enables professionals to excel at what they
do. We provide the insight, advice and connections they need to succeed.

Our deep understanding of our communities is based on our heritage
as a media company and our track record for providing essential content
and data.

We continually innovate to help our customers raise their aspirations and
to deliver better performance.
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A
OVERVIEW

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Strategic and operational

s Centaur conciuded a strategic review and resolved to focus
on developing tts internationat Information, intetigence and
consulting services, primarily I1n the marketing sector

¢ To maximisa oppertunities for Centaur’s marketing segment,

1ts largest business, we have created Xeim — bringing together

all of our marketing brands and services in a single operational

structure This will enable us tc offer customers a broader range

of Information, ntefigence, marketing and consultancy services

N an integrated and coordinated way The new name 18 denved

from ‘excefience in marketing' — the essence of what we do

To enhance shareholdsr value and to stmpify the Group's

structure, the Board 1s exploring the possible divestment of its

non-marketing businesses, Including its professional services

and financiai services divisions

= After these changes, Centaur has the opportunity to create a
mere efficient and higher margn operating mode!

Econsultancy completed s transition to a new, scalable

technology platform

* The integration of Cystercatchers’ training business into
Econsuftancy has been successfully completed

* The new Influencer Intellgence service was launched and

now fully combines data, intelligence and global trends in
this fast growing area of the marketing senvices industry

The development of The Lawyer has continued with the launch
of a new multi-channel digital platform that brings together news,
data, nsight and propretary analysis in one place

GROUP REVENUES

£70.5m

Footnotes

Financial progress

Adjusted? operating profits iIncreased 18%? to £5.2 mithion
* Segmental breakdown of adjusted? operating profit.

-~ Marketing achieved £1.7m in a transitional year

— Financial services’ strengthened 10 £1 2m

— Professional services Increased by 28% to £2 3m

Revenues from continuing operations increased 9% to
£70.5m, reflecting growth at The Lawyer and a full year of
revenues from MarketMakers

Recurnng revenues have grown to 48% (2017 44%)
Adusted? diluted EPS of 2 6p (2017 3 2p}

The Group has remained cash positive with closing net cash
of 0 1m

- The rate of cash convarsion® has remamed good at 85%
{2017:138%)

Total dvidend maintamed at 3.0p per share

SCGMENT REVENUE

XEIM {MARKETING) £4 2 7 m

SFGMENT REVENUE

services | ?C\W 9 6 m

SEGMENT REVENUE

FINANCIAL
£3.2m

' Underiying growth rates adjust for the timing of the disposail of Corporate Adviser and the acquisiton of MarketMakers in 2017 and the biennial contribution
from the Advances Manufacturng Show (‘AMS’) See note 1) o the inanciat statements

2 Adiusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed i1 note 1(b) to the fmancial staternents

" See note 1(b) to the fnancial statements for explanation and reconciiation of adjusted operatng cash flow

" Cash conversion 1s calculated as adjusted operating cash flow / adpsted operating profit exciuding depreciation and amortisation charges
See note 1{b) to the finarcial statements for explanation of net debt and note 28 for a reconciliation to statutory measures

N
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholder,

'am pleased to be able to report another
year of progress at Centaur dunng which
the Company has continued to accelerata
its transformation.

In 2018, we tock important steps

towards creating a more focused portfclio
of businesses, better able to grow
revenues and profits to create value for
shareholders We have increased adjusted?
operating profits by 18%" to £5 2m

while also moving to a new technology
platform at Econsuitancy and completing
the integration of MarketMakers and
Qystercatchers, which we acquired in 2017
and 2016 respectvely

Group performance

Group revenues from the continuing
business - that 1s, adjusting for the

sale of the Home Interest division

In 2017 increased from £64.7m

to £70 5m The increase principally
reflected the nclusion of a full year from
MarketMakers, acquired durnng 2017,
growth at The Lawyer, and the growth of
our marketing services business On an
underlying’ basis revenues decreased
by 1.6%.

All three divisions cortributed to adjusted?
operating profits, with significant higher
contributions from our professional services
dwvision, which includes The Lawyer, and
from financial services These trends and
divisional developmaeants are discussed In
greater detail in Andnia Vidler's performance
review, which begins on page 8

Whilst we were pleased to deliver an
improved performance n 2018, we faced
greater chalienges than intially anticipated
and were not able to achieve the
expectations we had set at the outset of the

year Recognising that Centaur, in common
with the rest of the business-to-business
('B2B') nforrmation services industry,
needs to decide where it has the greatest
opportunity to thrive, the Board conducted
a strategic review.

An important outcorne was a clearer focus
on Centaur's strengths as an international
provider of business information and
specialist consultancy, acknowledging that
the Company has long cutgrown its ongins
as a pubiisher dependent on advertising

It now serves a much broader range of
international customers and denves a high
proportion of its revenues and profits from
robust, recurnng sources

To support this transition and to

create new cross-selling opportunities,
Centaur faunched Xen, the new

name for our marketing businesses,

where we have significant scale. Xeim
provides a common user platform for
Marketing Week, Econsultancy, Festival

of Marketing, Influencer Intelligence,
MarketMakers, Marketing Week's Mirs
MBA, Qystercatchers, Craative Review and
Design Week. The new name is denved
from excellence In marketing — the essence
of our customer offer

Centaur's Board has long understood that
the businesses within the Company need
greater scale and focus to succeed, which
has informed the reshaping of the portfolio
that has taken place over recent years

Last October, we began explonng the
divestment of our professional services and
financial services dwvisions

We continue to pursue other transactions
and hope to be able to provide a further
update shortly This reshaping of the Group
will allow us to reduce our cverheads

and operate morg efficiently We strongly
beleve this 1s the nght strategy, it will

make Centaur more rasiient and focused,
and gives us the opportunity to increase
cperating rargms.

Governance

As Centaur 1s making good progress with
tts simplification strategy, | have decided to
stand down at the end of June to take up
another role. | will hand over to Coiin Jones,
who Jjoined the Board in Septernber after

a successful 22-year career at Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC Colin has
excelient and relevant experience 1o lead
the Company through its next phase

It 15 our intention that Colin will remain
as Charr of the Remuneration Committee

q
OVERVIEW

In the short term While this 1s not compliant
with the Corporate Governance Code,

the Board considers 1t appropriate at this
stage of Centaur’s development. | would
also Iike to thank Robert Boyle who has
agreed to remain as Chair of the Audit
Committee for up to 12 months

| arn pleased to have played a role during
an important period in Centaur's ongoing
evoluton and am cenfident that | am leaving
Centaur with the nght strategy in place to
detiver value for shareholders

Centaur 1s fully committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance and
the Beard takes very seriously ts duties

to operate with integrity, transparency

and clear accountabiity It also pays close
attention to understanding and managing
nsk Detail 1s set out within the Governance
section on pages 28 1o 32

Our people

As | have learned more abaout the business
over the past year, | have been impressed
by the hard work and commitment

of our employees, and | would ke to
thank everyone across the business for
therr dedication Our people are key to

our success and, throughout Centaur’s
transformation, have remained focused on
helping our customers excel and stay one
step ahead of therr needs

I would particularly ke to thank Andra and
Swag, our CEQ and CFO, for their tireless
energy and support as we continue this
journey of improverment Therr commitment,
strategic vision and leadership has been

a vital compenent of the strategic progress
made over the last year.

Dividend

The Board 18 recornmending a finai dvidend
of 1 5p per share, to give an unchanged
total dividend for the year of 3.0p per share.
The Board will continue to keep its dividend
polcy under review.

Outloock

This has been a year of good sirategic
progress at Centaur The changes we are
rmaking to our portfolio will allow us to
petter focus on Xeim, our largest business,
which provides business information,
inteligence and consulting services to the
international marketing ndustry

NEIL JOHNSON

Chairman

19 March 2019
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STRATEGY

Centaur is an international
provider of business
information and specialist
consultancy that advises,
informs and connects
business professionals

by offering business
intelligence and expertise,
consuitancy and

training, lead generation
and events.

Background and context
Over the past five years Centaur has mplemented a programme
of radical transformation.

The competitive landscape contnues to face disruption and
we have responded with an ambitious strategy

This strategy was built on strong foundations Centaur's long-
established, trusted media brands provide a strong understanding
of customers, therr iInterests and needs. We have re-energised
thase brands through Innovation and new product development
to broaden their role In those communities

Business model

We have shifted Centaur's business model away from advertisers
seeking 1o reach readers, towards customers wiiling to pay

for the information and insight they need to deilver success
Instead of seling audiences to advertisers, today Centaur
derives the bulk of its revenues from paying customers whom
we advise and inform and whom we cormect with therr potential
business partners.

We have transformed our business to produce more robust,

recurrnng revenue streams and to develop more loyal and higher-
value relationships with international clients, and our core brands
have evolved digitally to strengthen therr compstitive advantages

We have a deep understanding of our custorers, based on our
heritage, reputation and track record for providing essential and
trusted content. We use this knowledge 1o constanily tnnovate to
helpr our customers excel at what they do

Case Study: FESTIVAL OF MARKETING

i 1o
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STRATEGIC REPORT‘

Customers now benefit from additional
& complementary products

Dala & Lead
Generation

3rd Party 9
Optimisation
Strategic
Consultancy !i!

Training

LOYAL
CUSTOMERS

us; >
Sinegs Intellige™

INFORM USING DATA,
CONTENT & INSIKGHT

» Bespoke content & thought leadership

Market reports & research

Premium content subscription

-
-
= Business informaticn & data
» Data analytics

ADVISE HOW TO IMPROVE
PERFORMARNCE & ROI

* Lead generation

* Consulting services

« Training & capability

= Agency search & performance

* Influencer marketing

CONNECT TO SPECIFIC
COMMUNITIES

Free news & commentary

-
* Large industry leading events
+ Clubs & roundtables & expert panels

= Brand profile

Gradually Centaur is converting
and is consoldating around the

audiences to customers
strongest brands.

Ao 3
N Reverues Dy couse

Apr 18__
— My MBA delegates
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STRATEGY

A higher quality revenue mix

Qur strategy has proved successful in building a group that 1s
simpler and stronger Our shift from readers to paying customers
has enabled us to increase the proportion of recurnng and
predictable revenue streams significantly, amidst a challenging
market backdrop The positive impact of this transformation can be
seen across our portfolio and, together wrth a scalable operating
model, creates good opportunities for revenus growth, margin
enhancerment and sharehaolder value

Over the past five years:
GROWN TO

45%

OF THE GROUP TOTAL

RECURRING AND
PREDICTABLE REVENUES

GROWN TO

52%

QF TOTAL REVENUES

NON-ADVERTISING
REVENUES

FALLEN TO

4%

OF TOTAL REVENUES

EXPOSURE TO PRINT
ADVERTISING

Annual Report and Financial Statements *

Strategic portfolio progress

Over the past 12 months we have completed a strategic review and
accelerated the smplfication of the Group's structura to improve
operational execution and to focus attentron on the leading brands
within its marketing drnasion and to explore the divestment of select
smaller businesses.

As part of this transtormatton, we launched Xeimn, the new name
for the Group's marketing businesses Xeim brings together ail our
marketing brands, including Marketing Week, Econsuftancy, Festival
of Marketing, Influencer Intellgence, MarketMakers, MW Miri MBA,
Oyetercatchers, Really, Craative Review and Design Week

United by a common user platform, Xeim makes it possible

to provide news content, insight, information, learning courses and
benchmarking tools from across the portioiio to provide chents with
an enhanced service and to create new cross-seling oppertunities

The migration of Ecansultancy onto 1ts new technoiogy platform
was an Important investment and milestone for the Group Since

its relaunch in September, we have seen substantially higher and
growing levels of page views and engagement across Econsultancy

We also created a powerful and flexible technology platform to
support the growth of The Lawyer We continue to innovate in
response to the rapidly evolving digital tandscape, ¢reating essental
services and improving our cigital capabiities to enable our
customers to excel at what they do.

Our focus on innovation can be seen across multipie brands
The launch of Influencer Intellgence has been a notable success
with Clients now benefitting from the opportunities that this new
digital toolkit can unlock

Innovation and a customer focussed preduct strategy have been
an important lever in Cantaur’s strategic development In 2018,
30% of our revenues were derved from products developed or
acquired since 2014,

Case Study:
INFLUENCER INTELLIGENCE
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BUSINESS ADVISORY SERVICES BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE MEDIA & EVENTS
Consultancy and training services Paid for digital subscription products Free content and events that engage
advise professionals how to accelerate tha help clients understand best and connest with large protessional
their business performance and practice & competitive landscapes audiences creating markeplaces
deliver greater ROl and provide by providing data. insight. analysis that offer reach, activation and
a clear path to tangible action. value management and ressarch. communication solutions.

ADVISE INFORM CONNECT

Advising, Informing and Connecting Business Professionals Using Data, Insight and Events

Our combination of specific professional, community content expertise and marketing
services gives us a unique advantage

Case Study: THE LAWYER

I The Lawvwyer, Centaur owns the most rusted publization

for the UK lega profession. In 2078 wa completed a rehiesh

which is past of g technoiogy nvestment of £1.1m

fve vears 10 aive this growy Dusiness @ new mull- channe!
dhigital plattonn, Thes combings news, market

trencls. anawysis, rankings 90 cormzany data, oousppng

GUsTry leaders i prvals practoe and corsarate Counse!

vttt altionaghile sttt ey nee et USGUE (8 L L

s 0N yedrn underining the impact of oue customer focused
INTOVATION PGy Ameee.

The busingss has set Clear strategic pnorties - Duilding
subsaription revaaues, decpening customer relationshipns,
captlinng adiacent market segments - and s paseai for
further growih,
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“We have developed and refined a new vision
for Centaur, recognising that our businesses
are united by helping professionals excel at

CEOQ Review
what they do.”
ANDRIA VIDLER
Chief Executive Officer
Overview of 2018

While the transformation of Centaur continues, n 2018 the Group
saw further benefits from the work, Investment and repositoning
that has taken place over the past five years. Our strong focus

on the needs of our customers - increasingly large, nternaticnai
enterprises — has inspired the development of new products and
services that are now delivering substantial revenues along with the
potential for future growth. This has continued Centaur’s transition
from being a media publisher heavily dependent on advertising
and print to a more diverse and robust business, providing a range
of business Information and specialist consultancy services with
more reliable and recurring revenue streams

In 2018, Centaur was able to increase adusted? operating profits
by 18%' to £5 2 milion, reflecting higher contnbutions from
across the Group and the benefit from the reduction of overheads
that followed the sale of our Home Interast division in 2017
Notable profit uplifts were deivered by the Festival of Marketing,
by Marketing Week and its Mint MBA courses; by The Lawyer,

and by the Business Travel Show it was also encouragmng that our
financial serviges dvision strengthened its profits as we focused
on its core brands. Group turnover amounted to £70 5m, the

9% growth from continuing operations reflecting higher revenues
frorn The Lawyer, the launch of new products and a full year’s
contnbution from MarketMakers On an underlying' basis revenues
decreased by 1 6%.

The progress in reshaping our pertfolio helped Centaur delver

a further increase In the proportion of revenues that it receves from
repeatable and recurnng sources, from 44% to 48%. Advertising
now represents only 18% of Group revenues. Centaur 1S now

a more resiient and focused business with good opportunthies for
fong-term growth and margin enhancerment

Nonetheless, this mpreved perforrmance fell short of our
ambitions for 2018 Revenue growth was held back due to delays
n completing new technology platforms for our subscription
products, the cancellation of a small number of large US contracts
and weaker second-half trading at MarketMakers.

These factors led Centaur to revise its guidance m a trading update
that we issued in October The Board acted decisively, changing the
management oversight of Econsultancy, Infiuencer Intelligence and

MarketMakers and accelerating the creation of Xeim, the new name

for our marketing businesses Sirnce these changes and the launch
of the improved platforms, revenue and billings have ganed traction

As Centaur moves to focus on those busingsses where 1t has
the greatest oppertunity, we have made a goodwill impairment
of £13 1m, prmanly relating to events to be closed and other
businesses within the marketing portfolic Together with a £2.8m
amortisaton charge made aganst the value of acquired

assets, this resulted in a statutory loss for the year of £14.2m
{loss of £0.7m in 2017).

Below, | will discuss the divisional performance in greater datail,
First, { would hke to explain the market context and set out the
strategic progress that Centaur has made this year

Centaur’s transformation

Five years ago, Centaur was still recognisable as a traditional print
publisher, heavily rellant on advartising and print and vulnarable
to newer digital business models that were disrupting the B2B
nformation services market Centaur faced new competition from
onling portais that were successiully allracling recruilirenl and
classified advertising, while batting a deiuge of free content

Centaur responded with an ambitious strategy to shift its business
mode! away from advertisers seeking to reach readers, and towards
customers wilhng 10 pay for the information, msight and skills they
need to deliver success. We built on our hertage and our reputation
and track record for providing high quality, essential and trusted
content This gave us the understanding and insights necessary

to develop new products and services for which custormers would
be wilhing to pay.

We also reshaped our portfolio of businesses, seiling the Home
Imerest division of consumer titles N 2017 to focus the Group
entirely on B2B informatian services. We acguired Oystercatchers
{in 2018) and MarketMakers (in 2017) to strengthen our

offering in consultancy and traiming, and in lead generation and
data analytics.

We have developed and refined a new vision for Centaur,
recognising that our businesses are united by helping professicnals
excel at what they do

In 2018, we made further significant progress along this road as
we become an international prowider of busmess information and
specialist consultancy,
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Key highlights included

* Following a comprehensive strategic review, we decided
to accelerate the simplification of the Group’s structure and
explore the divestment of our non-marketing businesses.

To increase management and investor focus on our largest
business. we have launched Xer: as the new name for our
marketing businesses, brnnging together our brands including
Marketing Week, Econsultancy, Festival of Marketing, Influencer
Inteligence, MarketMakers, MW Mini MBA, Oystercatchers,
Creative Review and Design Week, We believe Xeim will enable
us to sell our broad range of marketing products and services
N a mere integrated and coordinated manner.

* We completed the integration of Oystercatchers, our specialst
management and marketing consultancy, within Econsultancy

We achieved a significant reduction in central overheads
Improved processes across central and shared services,

as well as the sale of Home interest, have enabled us to reduce
complexity. As we continug to simplify the portfelic we will see
further opportunities for cost savings

Segment review

-
)@ll‘l‘l
Excalanci o marketing
The creation of Xeim continues the simplification of Centaur’s

structure by uniting all our marketing brands under the same
divisional name.

Marketing remains Centaur’s largest and best-postioned business,
representing 80% of Group revenues In 2018, it delvered
adjusted? operating profits of £1 7m, unchanged from the

prior year While 2018 was a transimional year for the division,

the Investments, management changes and product launches that
we made have created increased momentum, providing Centaur
with the opportunity to benefit from the operational leverage in our
marketing businesses

Revenues and profits were held back by a delay in the migration

of Econsultancy 1o a new technology platform, which impacted
renewal Income as well as a small number of signficant enterpnse
contracts that we had hoped to close before the year-end

Revenues for the dwision were £42 7m, the increase from £36.0m
in the prior year primanly reflecting the inclusion of MarketMakers for
a full year.

Since relaunch, the new platform has enabled Econsultancy to offer
a dynamic new service that has generated improvements In page
views and engagement We expect to buid on this momentum

as we mave through 2019,

Influencer Intelhgence, a new tool for brands seeking to harness the
power of online marketers, also made its debut later than intended
It has met an enthusiastic market reception and 1s aiready achieving
a good level of renewals and new sales

The Markefing Week brand and its recent innovations had a strong
year, with double-digit revenue uplifts from Marketing Week, Creative
Review the Festival of Marketing and its e-learning courses

The Festival of Marketing had its best year yet, attracting 4,000
attendees and more than doubling its prefit contribution The Mini
MBA, a joint venture with Marketing Week columenist Mark Ritson,

had another strong year as delegate numbers more than doubled
and revenues grew by 68% Satisfaction scores remain In excess
of 90% and we anticipate further growth in 2019

MarketMakers, the lead generation business acquired in 2017,

and its sister business Really, the B2B marketing agency, delivered
a 3% increase 1N underying’ revenues desprte a slower second half
Really had an excellent year, ncreasing its standalone revenues by
17% Really’s strengths were recognised at the International B2B
Marketing Awards. it won gold for ‘Best Use of Customer Insignt’,
bronze for ‘Best SME-Targeted Campaign’, and silver awards for
‘Best Corporate Decision-Maker — Targeted Campaign' and ‘Best
Multi-Channel Campaign’

QOystercatchers had a stronger second half to delver a satisfactory
result for the year Qystercatchers’ training business has now been
fully integrated within Econsuitancy, and the combined business
ended the year well Further Oystercatchers developments have
ncluded the launch of the Modern Marketing Prich, a new content
platform for the Oystercatchers Club Network, a Fellows intiative
and a new awards evening

Xem has a clear mission and defined purpose, “Adwvising, miorming
and connecting the modern marketer to accelerate performance ”
Steve Newbold, who previously headed Centaur's media and
events business, will lead Xeim as 1its group managing director

Sukl Thompson, founder and CEQ of Qystercatchers, will be Xemm's
executive director

Centaur's move to & more custorner-focused approach has allowed
us to build deeper and lasting relationships with our most important
customers As anllustration, Xeim's top 100 customers increased
therr spend by 26% last year compared 10 2017 and more than
three-quarters of the top 100 spent money with the business for the
third year running.

Professional services

The professional services division compnises The Lawyer and

our exhibthons business which jointly represent 28% of Group
revenues 1t delivered adjusted? operating profits of £2.3m, up 28%,
on revenue of £18.7m {2017 £18.6m). Approximately 61% of the
dmvsion’s revenue comes from hive events, 23% from advertising and
16% from premium content

The Lawyer 1s a leading provider of intelligence to the global legal
market that generates revenue from digital subscriptions, live events
and digital advertising revenue streams.

While The Lawyer continued to experence the expected erosion

I its recrutment advertising revenues, it mantaned its growth
thanks te another strong increase in subscriptions 73 of the top
ranked international law firms are subscribers, and we ended 2018
with 88 of the top 100 UK and US law firms as subscribers. A good
performance from digital display ads and higher revenuss from The
Lawyer’s award event also contnbuted

2018 was a significant year for The Lawyer as we completed

a transition from weekly to monthly magazines and moved to a more
scalabie digrial platform This new platform will allow us to continue
to drive consistent growth in digital usage from paying subscribers
while delivering a best-in-class user experence

09
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CEO Review

As part of our technology mvestment, we have developed an
interaciive digral tool for tracking ihgation that extends the
functicnality of The Lawyer's current market msight products
Launched in January 2019, this proctuct has made a promsing start.

The Lawyer 1s strongly positioned for continued growth in an
attractive market As Centaur disclosed in November, the Company
has appointed Lmvingstone Partners o explore a possible divestment
of the business Centaur g confident of The Lawyer's growth
trajectory which, ¢ beleves, ments a premium valuation.

Qur exhibitions business Includes the Business Travel Show,
The Meetings Show, Employee Benefits Live and Subcon.
Publications and websites Inked to the events including well-
established brands such as The Engineer and Business Travel
10, Exhibitions and events are responsibte for 61% of the
division’s revenue

in 2018, the exhibitions management team refocused the brands
on driving profitable events, positioning the businesses for

strong future growth. This focus has enabled each of the brands

to continue to drive strong operating leverage, presenting a number
of opportunities for margin accretion as well as internationat and
regional expansion,

The standout performer was the Business Travei Show which
delvered double-digit revenue growth, reflecting higher exhibitor
numpers, and a strong profit performance Employee Benefits Live
and EB Connect also turned in a good performance

Despite shightly lower wisitor numbers, The Meeting Show

also Increased its revenues By harnessing skilis from within
MarketMakers, we were able to secure a big increase In forward
bookings which augurs weil for 2019

Subcon, an event for subcontract manufacturing professionals,
hac a difficult year, reflecting wider rmarket conditicns in engineenng
markets. Howeover, Subcon's net promoter Scores remain
significantly ahead of ts competition

Financial services

The financial services divisian owns weli-positioned titles, nctuding
Maoney Marketing, Mortgage Strategy, Platforum, Tax Brefs and
Headlne Money, that serve valuable communities of finance
professicnals The dwvision contributes 12% of Group revenues

In 2018, financial senices’ adjusied? operating profits strengthened
to £1.2m, up from £0.6m in 2017 on revenues of £8 2m (2017

£8 8m). While the longer-term trends in advertising remain
unchanged, decisive management action has brought about

a strang margin recavery This has been aided by a focus on our
strongest brands, Money Marketing ana Mortgage Strategy, and
their strong digital advertising performance.

We achieved a good uplift In display advertising, helping Money
Marketing 1o delver stable revenues, Mortgage Strategy grew fts
business, supported by a strong performance from s awards show,

As expected, Tax Briefs expenenced a year of lower revenues as the
UK Government reverted to a single Budget announcement after
two in 2017 Revenues at Headline Money also softened, n line
with expectations,

People

the Executve Committes 1s committed to maintaning a culture that
supports our business ambitions, developing internal training plans
anrd systems n ine with these nhjpctives

Qur male to fernale ratio is well-balanced and we continue to have
a strong representation of women at a senior level. Three out of five
{60%:; of our Executive Committee members are female and a third
of our senior leaders are female. Our family fnendty policies inciude
enhanced maternity and paternity leave, and flexibie work options,
and we have a high rate of maternity returners (83%)

Our Development Board continues to support our internal cutture,
leading our chanty sponsorship activity and orgarsing reqular
fundraising intiateves throughout the year It also offers a range of
mental health, wellbeing and fitness sessions

We continue to take a proactive approach to diversity through
policies and working practices In 2018, we launched an LGB+
Network, developed to provide support and advice and to ensure
a fully inclusive environment

In 2018, we launched a formal mentoring scheme, providing trainng
to mentars and mentees, and delivered face-te-face coaching
to more than 100 junior staff

Through the Apprenticeship Levy. we continue to support staff to
achreve professional gualifications in digital marketing, data analysis
and management and leadership

Every year we recogmse those who have delivered outstanding
performance, whether this 1s in sales, support or bringing to lfe our
values, at our Annual Centaur Awards Ceremony

Summary

Over the [ast 12 months cur year-on-year profit growth was
strong and whilst revenue was held back, | am pieased with the
product Innovation and efficiency iImprovements that Centaur
has madce. The bencfita of the Group's atrategic trenaformation
aro becoming clearer and we have a sharper focus  both on our
customers and on the businesses where we have the greatest
compettive strengths

Continuing change, and a commitment to innovaticn and new
product deveiopment, will be important tc sustan the current
momentum in our business. We recognise this requires a great deal
of hard work from every Centaurion. The energy, ideas and expertige
of our people rermains a source of strength for Centaur; sharsholders
owe them our thanks

The uncertainty about the wnpact of Brext may make this a
challenging year, but Centaur's strategy to strengthen its non-
adverhsing revenues has improved the Company's resiience The
recent launch of Xeim, and the further moves we are taking to
simplfy and focus Centaur’s business, gve me encouragement for
the year ahead

ANDRIA VIDLER
Chief Executive Officer

19 March 2019
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Key performance indicators

The Group has set out the following core financial and non-financial metrics to measure our performance. The KPls are within the Board’s
expectations and the ongoing focus on these measures will support its successful strategy. These indicators are discussed in more detail
in the CEQ and CFO reviews.

KPI ‘ - COMMENTARY

FINANCIAL

Underlying' revenue growth Total revenue adjusted for the impact of
acquisitions, disposals and event phasing

207 2018
Adjusted? operating margin h Adjusted? operating profits as a percentage
of revenues
2%
2017 2018
Adjusted? diluted EPS N Adjusted? earnings attributable to each share
calcuiated on a diluted basis, as set out in more
: detail in note 2 to the financial statements
2017 2018
Cash conversion® A ] The percentage by which adjusted operating
’ cash flow? covers adjusted? operating profit,
. excluding depreciation and amortisation as set
: out in the CFO Review
Ti8%
2017 208
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PERFORMANCE:

CEO Review

NON FINANCIAL

Net Promoter Scores

DIGITALNPS | COMPETITCR QUTPERFORMS
AVERAGE i COMPETITORS
DIGITAL NPS ‘

Marketing Week 18 -3 Yes
Creative Review 13 13 R
Design Week 12 13
The Lawyer" 12 -2 Yes
Money Marketing 8 -3 Yes
Mortgage Strategy 22 11 Yes
The Engineer 14 1 Yes
Employee Benefits 15 5 Yes

“Prermum subs only

For 2018 Centaur tracked digital NPS versus its competitor set Six of the eight brands tracked outperformed the competihion. Marketing
Week, The Lawyer and Money Marketing all scored a positive NPS rating versus a competrtor average negative NPS

Customer lifetime value

Cantaur's move to a more customer-focused approach has allowed us to buld deeper and lasting refationships with our most important
customers Centaur’s top 200 custorners™ in 2018 have increased ther spend by 17 9% compared to 2017 Of these top 200 customers,
85% have spent with Centaur throughout 2016, 2017 and 2018

"Figures used are sales made from Salesforce Figures exclude MarketMakers in the absence of a full three years of customer
spending history.
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CFO Review

SWAG MUKERJI
Chief Financial Officer

Overview
The results of the business are presented In accerdance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {‘IFRS')

2018 has seen an acceptable underlying® performance from the
busingss with pleasing growth in profits at Festival of Marketing,
The Lawyer, The Busingss Travel Show and Marketing Weelds
Mini MBA. The underlying' performance of the financiat services
division has strengthened from the previous year and tight control
of overheads drove further underlying® Group profit growth
However, this mproved performance fell short of our ambrions
for 2018 as delays in completing Econsultancy’s move to its new
technology platform meant the business was unable to secure

a small number of large contracts that had been expected to
contnbute to 2018 results Additionally, weak second-half trading
at MarketMakers held back its growth for the year

We revised our trading guidance in October and the Board took
decisive action as outlined in the CEQ's Review. Thase actions have
helped to delver an improvement in trading

In 2017, following the strategic decision to focus on business
information and speciatst consultancies, we sold our Home
Interest segment and bought MarketMakers Due to the disposal
of the Home Interest segment, we were required to disclose this
as a discontinued operation Therefore, our adjusted? operating
profit reported in 2017 of £4 1m excluded prefits generated by
the Home Interest segment and oniy iIncluded MarketMakers
profits from the date of acquistion For 2018, we report adjusted?
operating profit of £5.2m for 2018, an increase of 27% against the
reported 2017 result

I am also pieased to report year-cn-year adjusted? operating profit
growth of 18% on an underlying' and continuing basis Underlying’
2017 results include a full year of MarketMakers’ profits but exclude
any profits generated by Corporate Advisor which was disposed

of in 2317 and the bienmal AMS event

Reported turnover of £70.5m represents an increase of @ 0% on
2017's reported turnover {1.6% dechng on an undertying! basis)
Underlying' revenue 1s down slightly due to the delays arising from
moving consultancy to its new technology platiorm as detailed
in the CEO's Review However, we are pleased that the qualty

of revenue overali has improved as we continue to move (o a

higher subscription, recurnng-revenue base that 1s less dependent
on volatile advertising revenue

Adusted? operating profit margin 1s 7.4% (2017 86 3% excluding
Home Interest) aganst 6 2% 1n 2017 on an underlying' basis

As we announced in October 2018 alongside a profits warning,
we have undertaken a strategic review and are now exploring the
sale of the professicnal services and financial services portfolios
At the end of 2018, the actual sale of these portfolios was not
probable enough to recognise them as assets held for sale.

They are therefore reported as part of continung operations in this
Annual Report

Non-statutory measures

In these results we refer to 'adusted’ and “statutory’ results, as well
as other non-GAAP performance measures Adjusted? results are
prepared to provide a mere comparable ndication of the Group's
core business performance by removing the impact of cartain items
including exceptional tems {matenal and non-recurmng), and volatile
iterms predormiantly relating to investrent activities and other
separately reported items, Adusted? results exclude adjusting items
as set out In the statement of consolidated Income and below, with
further details given \n notes 1{) and 4 of the financial statements
In addition, the Group alse measures and presents performance

In relation to vanous other non-GAAP measures, such as underlying'
revenue growth, adjusted? operating profit, adjusted operating

cash flow?, adjsted? EBITDA and net debt®

Adjusted? results are not intended to replace statutory results

These have been presented to provide users with additional
information and analysis of the Group's perfermance, consistent with
how the Board monitors results Further rationale for each of the
adusting tems used in these measures, as well as reconcilaticns

1o therr statutory equivaients, can be found in note 1{b} to the
financial statements.

The Group's actmvities are predominantly UK-based and therefore
currency movements do not have a material impact on the
Group's results
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Statutory loss before tax from continuing operations reconciies to adjusted operating profit? as follows-

2018 2017
Note £m £m
Statutory loss befare tax (14.2) o7 ‘
Adusting tems
Imparment of goodwill 10 13.1 -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1 2.8 25
Share-based payments 25 0.8 05
Earn-out consideration 14 - 0.6
Acguisition reiated costs 14 - 06 '
Exceptonal operating costs 4 2.5 Q2
Adjusutedz’ r;rofit before t;x T - 0 - = ‘5‘0“ - 3—77
Adjusted? finance costs 3] 0.2 04
Adjusted? operating profit ’ ) ) T 5.2 41

Summary
Detalled commentary on revenues and operating results is set out
within the CEQ's Review

MarketMakers continued to perform well iIn 2018, reporting revenue
growth of 3%, with particularly strong growth within its Really

B2B brand {17% growth). Durng 2018, our Group revenug mix
improved in terms of higher quality, more recuming revenues. 48% of
revenues are now recuming, up from 44% in 2017 and 36% n 2016
This 18 driven by the strategic choice to reduce exposure to the B2C
arena, hence our Home interest disposai 1n 2017, and the decision
to focus on non-advertising revenues, offset by growth i1 marketing
services and business analytics and training

Strong Recurring Revenue Growth

50%

45%

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

2016 2017

2018

The Group continues 1o be cash postive with £0.1m of net cash
at the end of 2018 (2017, £4 1m),

Adiusted operating cash® generation was good in the year. However,
our reported cash conversion®* rate fell to 85% (2017 138%). This
was due to a number of non-cash items that have been reported in
adjusted? operating profit, primanly the recognition of an expected

rent rebate due to be pad to the Company n March 2020 When
adjusting for these stems, cash conversion 1s 99% The movement
of the ratio towards 100% 1s as expected due to the Group having
completed the collection of old cutstanding debts following the well-
documented cash collection issues of 2016 We have mantaned
tight contro! over costs

Following the work undertaken to prepare for the potential
divestment of our professional senices and financial services

busiry we have reviewed our goodwill acress the Group and
consequently we have recognised a goodwill Impairment of £13 1m
to which reference was made aoove This primanty retates 10 events
to be closed and other businesses within the marketing portfolic

L am pleased to report the Group's working captal generation s now
at levels that would be considered normal following the biling and
related cash collection issues nighighted in our 2016 Annual Report.
Nonetheless, the overall levet of cash has declined year on year by
£4.0m following the Group's falure to meet earler profit targets as
outlined above However, combined with the lower than hoped for
operating profit in the year, this means the Group this year has not
generated encugh free cash The dividend policy will therefore be
kept under review,

Revenues

Revenues in 2018 were £70 5m (2017 £64 7m}). On an underlying’
operations basis,revenue 1s down 1.6% on 2017 The underlying’
cperations basis excludes the bienmal show, AMS, Corporate
Adwisor, which was seld in 2017, and brings in a whole year of
revenue from MarketMakers as if acquired on 1 January 2017 rather
than cn 2 August 2017

MarketMakers saw underlying® revenue growth of 3%, but as
already noted, Econsultancy faled to win some large contracts in
the US and suffered In the UK due to the delay in the rollout of its
new scalable technology platform.
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Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted? operating profit for the year was £5.2m (2017 £4.1m),
a reported growth of 27%. On an underlying basis', the growth
1s 18%

Net adjusted? operating expenses were £66 1m, (2017 £61 3m)
reflectng a full year of ownership of MarketMakers. Adjusted?
employee related expenses were £36 9m, (2017 £30 9m}, again as
a result of a full year's ownership of MarketMakers, and the average
number of permanent employees was 758 {2017 589)

Reported operating losses of £14.0m (2017, £0.3m) were impacted
by the adjusting tems detalled below

Adjusting itemns

The Directors beleve that adusted? results and adjusted? earnings
per share provide additional useful information on the core
operational performance of the Group to shareholders and raview
the resuits of the Group on an adusted? basis mternally Details

of the Group's accounting policy N refation to adjusting tems are
shown in note 1(b) to the financial statements

Adusting tems generated a loss before tax of £19 2m

(2017 £4 4m) The largest adjusting item of £13.1m refates to the
imparment of goodwill pnmariy relating to events to be closed and
other businesses within the marketing portfoiko Exceptionai costs
also included £0.7m relating to an internal restructure to prepare the
Group for the disposal of non-marketing businesses and to focus
on Xeim {Marketing} Some costs were also incurred 10 closing our
Singapore office. Cur Singapore operations are now supported
locally by agents based in the country.

Other adjusting terns include amortisaton of acquired
tangible assets of £2 8m {2017 £2 5m) which has increased
In the vear following the acguisition of MarketMakers in July
2017 A share-based payment charge of £0 8m was also
recognised (2017 £0 5m)

Further analysis on these adjusting tems 1s included In the
Basis of Preparation section of note 1{g) and note 4 to the
financial statements

Net finance costs

Net finance costs were £0 2m (2017 £0 4m) The reducticn in cost
was a result of the Group having increased levels of cash following
the disposal of the Home Interest portfolio in 2017 A significant
portion of the remaimng costs are a result of the commitment fee
payable for the revolving credit facility

Taxation

A tax charge of £0.1m {2017, £0.4m)} has been recognised on
continuing operations for the year, The adjusted? tax charge

was £1 0m (2017 £0 9m) giving an adjusted? effective tax rate
{compared to adjusted? profit before tax) of 20 0% (2017 25 3%).
The Company's profits were taxed in the UK at a blended rate of
19.00% {2017, 19.25%). On a reported basis, the effective tax rate
of nil% (2017 50 5%). See note 7 for a reconcihation between the
statutory and reported tax charge.

Share based payments

Share based payments n 2018 ncreased by £0 3m to £O0 8m

The total number of share options iIncreased dunng 2018 compared
to 2017 resutting n a higher share based payrnent charge for the
year The increase in share options was due to a new issue during
the year and a high number of forferted options N previous years as
people left the business and forferted therr options on schemes that
ran to the end of 2017

Losses/earnings per share

The Group has delvered adjusted? diluted earnings per share for the
year of 2.6p (2017, 3 2p). Diluted (Losses)earnings per share for the
year were (9 2p) (2017 14.3p) Full details of the earmings per share
calculations can pe found in note 9 to the financial statements

Dividend

Anintenm ddend of 1 5p per share was paid in respect of the
period January to June 2018 (January to June 2017, 1.5p). A final
dividend n respect of the perod July to December 2018 of 1.5p per
share (July to December 2017 1 5p)1s proposed by the Directors,
giving a total dwvidend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of 3 Op
(2017 3 Op}, In line with 2017

The final dmdend in respect of the year 1s subject to shareholder
approval at the Annual General Meeting and, f approved, will be
paid on 24 May 2019 to all ordinary shareholders on the register at
close of business on 10 May 2019

Adusted? dvidend cover in the year was 1 2 times (2017, 1 2 times)
The future dividend pohlcy will be subject to the progress of the
simplfication strategy
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Cash flow

As set out below, the Group has remained cash positive with
closing net cash of £0 1m at the end of 2018 (2017: £4 1m). The
tate of cash conversion? hag remaned good at 85% (2017 138%).
When taking nto account and adjusting for a number of non-cash
temns that have been reported In adpustad operating profit, primanly
the recogrbon of an expected rent rebate due o be paid 1o the
Company n March 2020, cash conversion 1s 59%.

Cash has fallen year-on-year following the reiative
under-performance of the Group against the last year and mnital
targets. Combined with a normal fevel of working capital generation,
the Group has not generated enough free cash this year to dsiver

a sustainable dividend cover and the future dvdend pelicy will be
subject 10 the progress of the simplification strategy

2018 2017
£€m £m

Adjusted operating profit? 52 66
Depreciation and amortisation 3.7 36
Mavement in working capital (1.3) 39
;\djusted operati-ng)cgl\ flows 76 141
Capital expenditure (2.8) 28
Cash impact of adjusting items {0.8) 02
Taxation (1.2} (16)
Interest and finance leases (0.4) {0 3)
Loan arrangement fees (0.2} -
Other S - .7)
Free cash fiow ’ T 22 g1
Repayment of loan notes - -
Acquisitions {1.8) (14 4)
Disposal of subsidiaries 0.3 279
Share repurchases ©0.4) ©.1)
Dividends paid to Company's shareholders (4.3} 4.3
Increase/{decrease) in net
cash/({debt)® {4.0) 182
Opening net cash/{debtf A1 pan
Closing net cash/{debt)® 0.1 41

Adjusted operating cash filow? 15 not a maasure defined by IFRS.
Centaur defines adjusted cperating cash flow? as cash flow
from opearatrons excluding the impact of adjusting items, which
are defined above The Dwectors use this measure to assess

Annual Repaort and Financial Statements -«

the performance of the Group as 1t excludes volatile items not
refated to the core trading of the Group, and includes the Groups
management of caprtal expenditure A reconciiation between

cash flow from operations and adjusted operaling cash flow? 1s
shown in note 1(b) to the financial statements. The cash impact of
adjusting tems pnmartly refates to exceptional restructurng costs n
both years

New accounting standards
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments™ and IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts
with customners' have been adopted for the current reporiing pencd

The adoption of FRS 15 has not materally impacted the vaiue,
phasing, or recognition of revenue at a Group or segmental level.

IFRS 9 predominantly impacts the way our pravision for timpairment
of trade receivables 1s calculated The provisicn now represents an
‘expected credit loss” which 1s calculated based on actual historic
default rates Under iFRS 9, 2017’s expected credit loss would have
been £1 6m {actual under tAS 39 was £1 5m). In 2018 the expected
credt 1085 18 £1 2m. The reducton in the provision is a reflection

of longer history of consistently better cash ¢ollection and nct an
impact from the adoption of IFRS @

Effective for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2019, but not yet adopted by the Group, 1s IFRS 16 'Leases’

An Impact assessment has been performed which indicated the
operatng lease arrangements we currently hold regarding the
proparties from which we operate will, from the effective date, be
treated as finance leases and an asset and hability wil be recogmised
n respect of these

For further details of IFRS's 9, 15 and 18 please see note 1 to the
financial statements.

Acquisitions

A payment of £1 8m was made 1n the year relating to the
MarketMakers' earncut Further detaills can be found in note 14 to
the financial statements.

Financing and bank covenants

On 26 Novernber 2018, the Group agreed an amendment and
extension of the existing revolving credt facility which had been
signed In 2015 The inttial pencd of the extension s three years
until November 2021 with the option to extend by two further single
years subject to bank approval
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The prncipal financial covenants under the faciity are the ratio

of net debt® to adjusted EBITDA? sha!l not exceed 2 5 1, and

the ratio of EBITDA to net finance charges shall not be less than
4:1. The Group remained within its banking covenants dunng the
year and has currently not drawn down any of 1ts £25m banking
facimes We are pleased to report that, despite the key financial
covenants remaining the same, margins payable on any borrowings
were reduced significantly providing an on-going financiai benefit

to the Group

Disposal of the Home Interest segment

A small gain of £100k was recognised in discontinued operations
In the year on the disposal of the Home Interest segment in 2017,
primanly due to the final agreement of working capital adjustments
with Future plc in Aprit 2018,

Balance sheet
A summary of the Group's balance sheet as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 1s set out below

2018 2017

£m £m

Goodwill and other intangible assets 784 94 2

Property, plant and equipment 1.3 17

Deferred income (15.0) (14 6)

Other current assets and habilities 19 0z
Deferred taxation 03 L 7(0 ?)

Net assets before net cash o 66.6 808

Net cash 01 41

Net assets 66.7 84.9

The main movement in the Group's balance sheet relates to the
£16 1m decrease in goodwill and other Intangible assets. This 1
primanly a result of the specific goodwill imparments of £13.1m

referred to earlier in my report. It s also due to £2 8m of amorhsation

of acqured intangibles.

Other current assets and labilities have increased primarly due

to a decrease in previsions of £1 8m driven by the settlement of
deferred consideration for the acquisition of MarketMakers Further
detalls of this can be found in note 23

Net cash has remained posrtive desprte investing cash flows
of £4 3m relating to system developments and earnout payments
for MarketMakers

Conclusion

Desprte the disappointment of a profits warnmng in October,

2018 saw a satisfactory performance as we continue our journey to
advise, inform and connect business professionals and heip them
accelerate ther business performance. Atthough some of our digital
developments tock longer than ntended to faunch in this transitional
year, our new digital platforms that were launched for Econsultancy,
influencer Inteligence and The Lawyer are already showing
promising growth The Group continues to reduce its rellance

on print and advertising as 1t replaces those revenue sources with
more reliable, repeatable revenue streams, including subscnption-
based digital solutions

Having made the strategic decision to concentrate on our marketing
portfolio, Xeim, and explare the disposal of non-marketing
businesses, the next 12 months offer an exciting time for the
business as it becomes more streamlined and focused on delivering
client sclutions and growing s premium, digital products

SWAG MUKERJI
Chief Financial Officer

19 March 2019
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Risk management approach

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the
Group's system of nsk management and internal controls and these
are regliarly monitored by the Audit Commttee,

Details of the activities of the Audit Committee in thus financial year
can be found in the Audit Committee Report on pages 33 to 36,

The Executive Commitiee 15 responsible for dentifying, managing
and monitonng matenal and emerging nisks in each area of

the business and for regularly reviewing and updating the risk
regisier, as well as reporting to the Audit Committes 1n relation to
nsks, mtgations and controls  As the Group operates principaily
from one office and with refatively short management reporting
nes, members of the Executive Committee are closely involved

in day-1o-day matters and are abie to dentify areas of increasing
risk guickly and respond accordingly The responsibility for each
nsk identified 1s assigned to a member of the Executive Committee.
The Audit Committes considers nsk management and controls
regularly and the Board formally considers nisks to the Group's
strategy and plans as well as the sk management process as part
of its strategic review

The risk register 1s the core element of the Group's nsk
management process The register 's mantaned by the Company
Secretary with input from the Executive Committee. The Executive
Committee initially 1dentrfies the matenal risks and emerging rnsks
facing the Group and then callectively assesses the severty of each
nsk {by ranking both the kelihood of ts occurrence and 1ts potential
Iimpact on the business) and the related mitigating controls

As part of its nsk management processes, the Board considers both
strategic and operational nisks, as well as s risk appetite in terms of
the tolerance level it 1s willing to accept in relation to each pnncipal
sk, which s recorded n the Company’s nsk register. Thus approach
recognises that risk cannot always be elimmnated at an acceptable
cost and that there are some rigks which the Board will, after dus
and careful consideration, choose tc accept The Group's nsk
register, Its method of preparation and the operation of the key
controls m the Group’s system of internal control are regularly
reviewsd and oversaen by the Audit Committee with reference to the
Group's strategic aims and its operating environment. The register 1s
also reviewed and considered by the Board.

As part of the ongoing enhancement of the Group's nsk manitoring
activities, we reviewed and updated the procedures by which we
evaluate principal nsks and uncertanties during the year

Annual Report and Financial Statements ) i cxo0 —qner

Principal risks

The Group’s risk register currently includes operational and strategic
nsks. The principal nsks faced by the Group in 2018, taken from the
register, together with the potenlial eflecls arnd miliyaling factors,
are set out below The Directars confirm that they have undertaken
a robust assessment of the pnncipal nsks facing the Group
Financial nsks are shown N note 28 to the financial statements
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Failure to manage change
effectively exacerbates
difficultes in recruting and
retaining staff and leads

to loss of key senior staff
This 1s relevant to Londen,
New York and Portsmouth.

Failure to mplement the
simpification programme

Centaur's success depends i large part on
its ability te recruid, motivate and retain highly
expenenced and qualified employees in the
face of often ntense competition from other
companies, especally true of London and
New York

Whlst failure to manage change effectively
1§ & continuing nsk, 1 2018 it may be
exacerbated by

a) the simphification programme,
b) the formation of the Xeim group, and

¢) the reduction of overheads

= |nvestment in training, development and
pay awards needs to be compeilng

* Implementing a working ermaronment
that allows for agile and remote delivery
15 necessary 1o keep the “millenmail”
workforce engaged

* High staff churn (a challenge for all media
and events companies) affect budget,
productmaty and conhinuity for customers

= Developing the 2022 business strategy and
changes required in skill set and culture are
challengng and costly

‘
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CEDURE

As the busmess continues to avolve The Board
we regularly review measures aimed considers this
at mprowving our ability to recruit and nsk to have
retesn employees and 16 track employee ncreased
engagement. since 2078

Manthly “check-ins” laciktate more regular
chscussion about personal and career
development opportumties between
employees and ne managers

Weekly “check-ins” via the Motivi app
ensure we have a weekly "mood” of the
business and an understanding of any key
nsks or challenges

Key senmor leaders have had therr

reward packages reviewed and, where
appropnate, INcreased notice penods

and restrictive covenants have been
introduced

A talent review takes place annually to
ensure fight nsks and trasmng needs are
identfied, these toc become the focus for
pay, reward and development areas (such
as how the Government appreniiceship
traiming levy 1s used)

Risk mcreased

* All London based staff continug to be paid

at or above the London Living Wage
We have overhauled our recruitment
process ncluding exit iMterviews for ail
leavers to resolve areas of concern

Fraudulent or accidental
breach of our security, or
neffective operation of IT
and data managernent
systems leads to loss, theft
or misuse of personal data
or confidential inforrmation
or other breach of data
proteclion requrements

« A senous occurrence of a loss, theft
or mususe of personal data or sensitive
or confidential nformation could result
N reputatilonal damage. a breach of data
protection requirements or direct financiai
impact See The General Data Protection
Regulaton {{GDPR’) below

+ Centaur collects and pracesses personal
data and confidential information from
some of its customers, users and cther
third parties

Approprate IT security 1s undertaken The Board
for all key processes to keep the T considers
envircnment safe this nsk to be
Websites are hosted by specialist third- broadly the
party providers wha provide warranties same as the
relating to secunty standards prior year

All of our websites have been migrated Risk

onto a new and more secure platform unchanged

wihich s cloud hosted and databases have
been cleansed and upgraded dunng 2018
External access to data is protected and
staff are instructeo to password protect or
encrypt where appropnate

The Drector of Data and Analylics ensures
that ngorous controls are n place to
ensure that warehouse data can only be
downloaded by the data team. Integration
of the warehouse with current databases
and data captured and stored elsewhere
15 cngeng

Centaur has a busness continuity plan
which mcludes its IT systems and there

18 daily, overmight back-up of data,

stored off-site

Please see below for specifics relating

to GDPR compliance/data

In the first haif of 2018 Centaur
implemented a number of security
improvements to better protect and
monitor s network, systems and data
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RISK MANAGEMENT

I RISK MITIGA

Regulatory; GDPR.

Stncter requirements
regarding how Centaur
handies personal data,
ncluding that of customers
and the nsk of a fine from
the 2O, third party claims
(e g from customers}

as well as reputational
damage If we do

nat comply.

= The General Data Protection Regulation
(‘GDPIT), which s the data protection law
that came into force In May 218, involves
much stricter requirements for Centaur
regarding 1ts handiing of personal data

This ncludes.

» Customers and employees having greater
nghts on now we use ther data

+ Centaur having to provde speofic

information 1o our customers on how we

use ther personal gata

Stricter rules around how we conduct our

direct marketng actutes

Personal data being kept more securely,

trne and access

* New contracts put n place between us
and suppliers that handle our data

+ New rules about notifying the ICO n the

event of a breach of GDPR

A shorter ime penad for respending 1o

“subject access requests "from customers

and employees

A requirement to demonstrate how we

comply with GDPR, which means more

anerous intarnal record-keeping obligations

= A requiremant to carry out data impact

assessments for new types of personal

data processing undertaken

A requrement to keep under review the

need for a Data Protection Officer

= In the event of a senous breach of the
GDPR, Centaur could be subject to a
significant fine from the regulator (the ICO)
ant ctaims Trom third partes Including
customers as well as reputational damage.

« The maxmum fine for breach of GOPR s
much figher than fines under the old UK
data protechon legsiation

.

Wiggin LLP provided legat advice on what
changes were requied n ordes for Cantaur
to compily wath GDPR The measures
taken included:

— Updatng tha marketing permissions
on our websites and evant registration
pages to ensure larnguage 1s speciic/
unambiguous

- Updating our unsubscnbe process

— Improving our data complaints
procedures

— Improving our procedures for removing
ndriduals from databases where details
are maccurate/ not needed

Updating our standarg terms and
coaditions across all products

Updatng our privacy and cookees policy
and website terms and conaitions

Amending our contract with supplers
whe prowide us with personal data {1 e
hats) ar who handle data on our behalf
In 2019 PECR's {Pnvacy and Electromic
Communications Regutations)
mplementation wall ncrease audence
ang customer complance

The Board
considers
{his nsk to be
broadly the
sarne as the
pnor year

Risk
unchanged

Serious systems falure
(aftecting core systems
and multiple products or
unctions) or breach of
IT network security (as
a result of a deliberate
cyber-attack or
unintenuonal auent}

Certaur relies on its IT network to conduct
Its operations The IT network 1s at nisk of
a senous systerns fadure or breach of its
secunty controls This could resutt from
deliberate cyber-attacks or unintentional
evenis and may include third parties
ganing unauthonsed access to Centaur's
IT network. and systems resuttng n
misappropration of its financial assets,
propnetary or sensitive information,
corruption of data, or operational
disruption, such as unavaiability of our
websites and our digital products to users
or unavalabiity of support platforms

= If Centaur suffers senous cyber-attacks,
whether by a third party or insider,

any operational disruption may directly
affect our revenues or collection activities
Centaur may ncur significant costs and
suffer other negative consequences,

such as remediation costs fncluding habity
for stoien assets or information, and repair
of any damage caused to Centaur's {T
network nfrastructure and systems}
Centaur may also suffer reputational
damage and loss of investor confidence
resulting from any operational disruption

Centaur has invested significantly in its

IT systems and several key IT system
upgrades took place dunng 2017,

The ongoing development of CRM

{PCl compliance) and finance systems
ntroduced in 2015

IT system improvernents in 2017 and 2018,
following compigtion of an external auddt
of the secunty of our main IT nfrastructure
carried out by a speciahst third party
provider | & Microsoft secunty against
Ransomware attacks

Where services are outsourced to suppliers,
contingency planning s carred out

to migate nisk of supplier falure
Lockton's have advsed us in elabon

to additional cover that is appropriate

to insure aganst a serious talure of IT
network secunty controls

Migration of Econ to our secure platiorm
Wordpress in 2018 has been completed
Qur polcies were upgraded in Q1 2018
to further ensure our staff are clear and
accountable for ther [T comghance

In the first half of 2018 Centaur also
implemented a number of security
mprovements to better protect and
monitor cur network, systems and data

The Boarc
considers
thus nsk. o be
broadly the
sarne as the
prior year
Risk
unchanged
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= Pnnt adverhsing revenues and direct sales

STRATEGIC REPORT‘

RISK MITIGATICK

= Qur Business Plans take mto account the

Trends in advertsing The Board
and direct sales of our of our print praducts continued o dechre market shnnkage and where appropnate ders
prnt products result n during 2018 The non-prnt media sector pnt products are being repiaced fﬁ;?:sk to be
declining revenues from has high levels of competition from a wider Qur strategy includes identifying the broadiy the
these sources. group and iow barners to entry This leads type of content our audiences want and
to different pressures on audence and how they want to consume the contert, same as the
custerner retention as well as pricing meaning that we are not simply putting prior year
This nsk has remained since the 2018 phnt products online 1o try to replace Risk
reporting penod due to volatiity in dimmishing print revenues for tradimonal unchanged

advertizng spend across our print
products The uncertainty following the
FU referendum result in specific markels
including financial services contnued
throughout 2016, 2017 and 2018 and 1s
expected until frrn plans for the UK's exit
from the EU are established by the UK
Government

brands Centaur has been actvely
reducing the Company’s exposure to print
advertising and has significantly ncreased
revenues from digital paid-for content

We continue to monitor the decline 1n

our prnt products while at the same time
investing In developing our digital capabity
and abiity to scale cross-media marketing

solutions In addiion to a new, flexible
wab platform we are developing new
revenue streams fram products, such as
the Marketing Week Mirne MBA, which are
exclusively digital and gerve no revenue
from pnnt

= We support our progduct Innevation,
by hinng people with experences and
skills in new areas of the market where
appropriate The role of our Executive
Commuittee includes anticipating future
changes in the market and ensunng
that our business reacts or accelerates
our plans accordngly

= However spend cannot be assumed to
flow drecily to replacement products and
therefore volatility on advertising n our core
sectors remain a nsk factor

Going concern basis of accounting

in accordance with provision C 1 3 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code Apnl 2016, the Directors’ statement as to
whether they consider it appropriate to adopt the gong concern
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and therr
identification of any matenal uncertainties to the Group's ability to
continue to do so over a pernicd of at least 12 months from the date
of approval of the financial statements and for the foreseeabie future
can be found on page 28

Viability statement

in accordance with provision C 2.2 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code Aprl 2016, the Directors have assessed the viabiity of the
Group over a three-year period to December 2021, taking account
of the Group’s current position, the Group's strategy, the Board’s
risk appetite and, as documented above, the principal nsks facing
the Group and how these are managed Based on the results of

this analysis, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue 1IN operation and meet its labihites
as they fall due over the pericd to December 2021

The Board has determined that the three-year period to December
2021 1s an approprate penod over which to provide its viability
statement because the Board's financial ptanring horizon covers

a three-year penod in making ther assessment, the Directors
have taken account of the Group's existing financing arrangements
to 2021 {which alfows extensions to 2023 on similar terms),

cash flows, drdend cover and other key financial ratios over

the period These metrics are subject to stress testing which
nvolves sensitising a number of the main assumptions underlying
the forecasts both individually and in urison The assumptions
senstised nclude forecasted EBITDA, cash conversion® and capital
expenditure Where appropnate, this analysis 1s carned out 1
evaluate the potential impact of the Group's principal risks actually
occurnng, such as print and advertising revenues continuing to
shrink, staff attrition, UK economic conditions and replication of
products by competitors  Sensitising the model for changes in the
assumptions and nsks affirmed that the Group would remain viable
over the three-year period to 2021
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Our people

Talent development

Centaur Media is committed to developing a culture of
environmental awareness and social responsibility and we seek,
where appropnate, to Incorporate environmentally and socially
responsible practices Into the way we deliver services and products

to our customers and procure goods and services from thed parties,

The Group has a whistleblowing policy n place enabling employees
1o report any concerns about improper prachces, including relating
to its environmentat and social responsibity practices.

Employee engagement

We have adopted an on-line application which gives employees
the opportunity to provide feedback on a weekly basis and enables
managarment 1o get a regular temperature chack an matvation and
real tme feedback from their teams.

Health and safety

We are committed to the safety of our staff We have a health and
safety policy which sets out Centaur's responsibiities and those of
its staff concerning health and safety in the workplace Our Health
and Safety Committee, which i1s responsible for overseaing the
application of this Policy, meets at least every six months and
reports diractly to the Board on all matenal related matters

Due 1o the nafure of the business, risk of work-based accidents s
relatively low but the Group takes its responsibiities for the heatth
and safety of its employees seriously Our Group facities manager
1s responsible for maintaining a safe environment for employees
and an Accident Book 1s available to all staff in Reception.

We penodically carry out internal heafth and safety reviews, taking
follow up action to maintain standards where necessary, and
undertake staff traning in relation to fire safety Where work-related
activities take place which have a higher nsk attached — such as
travel, marketing events and outdoor activities ~ additional planning
18 undertaken which includes a risk assessment and mitigation plan
To mimmise rigk to the heaith and safety of our employees in the
event of a major disaster or emergency, our business contnuity plan
is regulany revised and tested

Diversity

Centaur Media strongly encourages dwversity across the Group
and 1s committed to recruiting and promoting the most talented
people from the widest pocl and prowiding equal opportunittes for
all employees and prospective employees To support this am, the
Group has an Equal Opportunities Policy which covers recrutment
and selecton, promotion, trainng and development and standard
contract terms for all staff We also support apprenticeships which
mcrease our talent pool and demonstrates the Group's commitment
to reaching out te young pecple trom a vanely of backgrounds

We offer internships and work experience oppertuntties for people
from a vanety of backgrounds

Two out of our seven (28%) Board members are female and, three
out of five (60%) of our Executive Committee are female and, as at
31 December 2018, our warkforce overall was 51% female (398
employees) and 49% male (384 employeas) We proadly sipport
flexible working opportunities, and 14% of staff are employed

on a part-time pasis

Gender pay

We carry out an annual analysis on Gender Pay and wili be
submitting and publishing the result for 2018 at the beginning of
Apnl 2019 The report can be found at www centaurmedia com,

Anti-slavery and human trafficking policy

We implemented the prowisions of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015
n 2016 and adopted an anti-slavery and human trafficking policy
Qur Slavery and Human Traficking Staternent 1s published on ouwr
weabsite n March each year at www centaurmedia.com,

Environment

Our impact on the environment

Centaur Media operates in the media sector, predominantly in the
United Kingdom, and conseguently, while Centaur recognises that
its business has an iImpact on the environment, including through
the use of energy and paper, our impact on the environmant 1S less
significant than that of companies operating n mary other sectors
As we continue to Increase our digital capabilities and products,
and to reduce our reliance on print advertising, we are reducing
our use of consumable tems such as paper and plastic over tme
The majanty of our employees work out of a single iocation In
Vells Street, London and we have only one other UK location in
Portsmouth which means that the Group has been adle to take
advantage of conschdating bulding-related environmental impacts
and benefitng from Group sharing of items such as photocopiers
The Group algo has a small senaced office 10 New Yark,

The Group actively seeks to minimise adverse environmental
impacts and to promote good environmental practices wherever
possible We increasingly am to ensure that our major suppliers
are anvironmentally responsible For exampie, our main paper and
print supplier holds the ISO 14001 (environmental management)
accreditation and s certified by the Forest Stewardship Counct! and
Programme for the Endorsement of Forestry Certfication

Since the introduction of 'Follow-me’ printing m the last quarter of
2017, comparng 2018 with 2017 we have reduced the number of
paper pages printed by 36%

We donate used computer equipment to Camara Education,
which is a social enterpnse dedicated to improving education in
disadvantaged communities across the world In 2018 we donated
the following.

* 155 desktop PCs

* 113 1Macs

+ 118 monitors

Donations made by Centaur 10 2018 have benefited more than
9,000 chiidren in schoots In Ethropia and Tanzana
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Some of our other measures are

= use of energy-efiicient ighting, including replacing existing ight
fittings with energy efficient LED lght fittngs in the Wells Street
buiiding including all common parts;

nstailation of moton sensors n offices to control ighting;

analysing and adjusting the timing of boslers and chillers for office
air conditioning to INncrease energy efficiency,

stopping the use of non-recyclable cups and reducing the use of
paper hand towsls,

buying paper that is Forest Stewardship Counctt ('FSC")
accredited which means that the paper has been sourced in an
emarenmentally-frendly, socially respensible and economically
viable manner,

active engagement N the recycling of cans, tins, plastic, glass,
cardboard and paper, including the replacement of traditicnal
waste bins with recycling bins throughout the Wells Street building
as part of a centralised recycling system cnginally rolled cut in
2015, together with a monthly report showing the percentage of
waste collected that was recycled:

recycling of printer cartndges where possible,

mncreasing the use of aquecus inks, which imit the release of
volatile organic compounds,

use of eco-friendly taxis and counier vehicles that are less than
three years old, and use of cychst couners, where possible,

cycle to work scheme and other measures that facitate cyclng to
work by employees, such as the provision of showers, changing
rcoms and lockers, as well as bike storage facilities at the Wells
Street building, and

» encouraging staff to use public transport by provision of season
ticket ioans

Emissions

We continue to measure our carbon footpnnt by monitonng our
energy usage and we are pleased to confirm that we are comphant
with the EU Energy Efficiency Directive 'Energy Saving Opportunity
Scheme’ (‘ESOS")

The greenhouse gas {'GHG') emissions from our operations dunng
the year are set out beiow.

Year ended 31 December 2018 global GHG emissions data
{tonnes of CO e}

2018 2017

Emissions from: Tonnes CO, Tonnes CO,
Scope 1 (gas, fuel and car mileage} 72 78
Scope 2 (electricity and steamy) 428 432
Total GHG emissions 500 510
Average number of employees 758 687
Ermissions per emnpioyes o7 o7

Community

Charitable donations

The Group supports local communities and charitable orgarisations
through direct fundraising, donation and pro-bono work Dunng the
year, a total of £71,443 was donated to Macmillan Cancer Support
and £25,713 was donated to The Connecticn at St Martin-in-the-
Fields, both our chosen charty partners for 2018 These donations
comprised employee contributions, a Group contrbution, and

third party contributions raised through our events. We used our
events to raise money from third parties for both chanties Including
requesting donations in return for entry for awards and taking
collections at the events In 2017, £83,727 {compnsing employee
contributions of £8,17C, a Group contribution of £8,170 and
£67.387 in third party contributions raised through our events) was
donated to The Alzheimer’s Society Every year, the Group offers
each employee a paid day off to spend volunteerng for the not-
for-profit cause or chanty of ther choice, Employee contributions
were raised through a range of Company-wide fundraising events
including sporting events and bake sales We also operate a Give
As You Earn scheme through the payroll and offer employees the
opticn to undertake Volunteer Days

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and
signed by order of the Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

19 March 2013
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Neil Johnson
Chairman

Neil joined Centaur as Charmman in January 2018, Nel 1s currently Chawrman

of Synthomer pic, Electra Prvate Equity plc and the senior independent non-executive
director of the Business Growth Fund. Neit has considerable experience as an
independent non-executive director and public company charrman ganed n multiple
sectors and geographies, having overseen as charman the successful orgaric and
acquired growth strategres of Umeco, Cybit and most recently e2v Technologies

Neil also held senior executive positions at 8rtish Aerospace and in the UK motor
manufacturing industry betore becoming Chief Executive of RAC Holdings from
1995-1999,

Chawman of the Nomination Committee

Andria Vidler
Chief Executive Officer

Andna joined Centaur as Chief Executive in November 2013 In May 2018 she
becama a non-executive director for JPJ Group plc and in January 2019 she joined
the MediaTrust as a board trustee She served as a trustee for the Roundhouse
from 2010-2016 and charman of the Marketing Group of Great Britain in 2014/15
Andna has considerable experience transforming content businesses through drving
customer focus, digital innovation and the growth of new sales channels. She was
Chief Executive Officer of EMI Music UK and Ireland from 2009 to 2013, and prior

to this held senior roles In marketing and commerce for Bauer Media, Capitat Radio
and ihe BBC

Swag Mukerji

Chief Financial Qfficer

Swag joined Centaur in July 2016 and has held senicr finance and general
management positions with several blue chip FMCG companies, inciuding United
Biscuits ple, Gumness plc and Virgin, where he cperated as a troubleshooter, value
creator and change agent. As Group Finance Drrector of Biocompatibles International
plc, he co-led the commercialisation and growth of the company with the CEOQ,
ncreasing the share prce from 59p 10 267p 1 a faling market Smce then he has
been CFO of three private equity backed businesses where he increased profits

by renegotiating key customer contracts, rationalising costs and making substantial
procurement savings. Swag 15 a Chartered Accountant and a Warwick MBA



Colin Jones
Non-Executive Director

Colin joined Centaur on 1 September 2018. Untl mid-June 2018, Colin was Finance
Director of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC ('Euromoney’), where he worked in
leadership roles for 22 years He s also a non-executive director and trustee of City
L., London's leading adult education college. During his time at Euromoney, Colin
contributed to the group's growth to become a global, mulh-brand information business
that has successfully transformed tseff from s traditional media origins iNto a company
that 1s more customer-centnc and subscription-based. He has extensive M&A expertise
through Euromoney's many successful transactions Prior to joming Euromoney,

Colin was a Director at Price Waterhouse Europe, where he qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant {CAEW).

Charman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit
and Nomination Cammittees

Rebecca Miskin
Non-Executive Director

Rebecca joined Centaur in January 2011 She began her career in media at Reed
Elsevier launching telecom-based information services across Europe. She has
since worked across the USA and UK at Excite@Home, NBC Uriversal and Hearst
Cerporation. Rebecca focuses on re-aligning organisations using a data driven,
customer-centnc and collaborative aperational appreach

Member of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees

William Eccleshare
Senior Independent Director

Wilkam jomned Centaur in July 2316  Willam 1s Charman and CEQ of Ciear Channel
International. He served as a non-executive director of Hays pic from 2004-2014,
has been a board member of the Donmar Warehouse Theatre since 2013 and

15 an independent non-executive director of Britvic ple Wilham was a Partner

and Leader of European Branding Practice at McKinsey & Co He has previcusly
served in nternational leadership roles at major advertising agencies, including as
Eurcpean Charman and CEQ of BBDC {Omnicom), European Chairman of Young
ang Rubicam (WPP Group), Chairman and CEO of Ammiratl Puns Lintas Northern
Europe {interpublic Group}, Global Strategic Planning Director of J Walter Thompson
Worldwide, and CEO of PPGH/UWT Amsterdam

Member of ihe Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Robert Boyle

Non-Executive Director

Reobert joined Centaur in January 2010, Robert, a qualfied Chartered Accountant,
was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, where he was Chairman of the Pw(
European Entertainment and Media Practce for 12 years, retring in 2006 Since
then he has been a non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee

of a numizer of public companies

Chairman of the Audit Committee and mermber of the Rermuneration Comimittes
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Linda Smith
Chief Operating Officer

Linda was appointed Chief Operating
Officer in February 2016 and
manages the professional portfolios
inclusive of Financial Services, Legal,
HR, Engineenng, Travel and Meetings
alongsice Centaur's centralised
expert hubs of exhibitions and events,
digital product development, DATA,
CRM, Research, client delivery
operations, IT and Building Services
Linda has worked at a number of
media companies including ITV,
StarcornMediavest, Capital Radio,
RadicCentre and most recently
Bauer Media. She was a commercial
consultant to Centaur in 2014,
Through her previous roles Linda has
devsloped operational experience
including M&A, commercial and generai
management across broadcasting,
pubiishing and digital platferms,
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Steve Newbold
Divisional Managing Director

Steve s Divisional Managing Director
of Centaur's Xeim Division  He oversees
brands including Marketing Week,
Festival of Marketing, Creative

Review, Econsultancy, Influencer
Intellgence, Fashion & Beauty Monitor,
Oystercatchers, MarketMakers

and RBeally Prior to this Steve was
responsible tor Centaur’s Media and
Events portfollos and Home Interest
Diigion. Before joning Centaur in
2015 Steve held Managing Director
rales at WGSN, 12t Events, Emap
Communications {‘'now Ascential}

and Emap Consumer Media (now
Bauer) He has expenence of running
multi-media, international usinesses
in key sectors across both B2B and
Consumer markets

Suki Thompson
CEO and Founding Partner
of Oystercatchers i

Suki joined Centaur in October

2016 as a result of the acquisition

of Qystercatchers and joined the
Executive Committee Suki started her
career agency-side wrth cormpanies
such as DDB, WWAV, Publicis, TBWA
and Y&R in London and Asia before
founding Haystack Consultancy,
which created a framewaork for the
modern pitch intermediary As well

as her work at Qiystercatchers, Suk
has been the Chair of The Marketing
Society, a long-standing member of
WAGL (Women in Advertising and
Communications London} and s on
The Board of Trustees for Macmillan
Cancer Support and Touraid. She 1s

a regular contributer to the national
and marketing press and speaker at
industry conferences In 2012 Suki was
made a Freeman of the City of Lendon
and given an honorary Doctorate by
Coventry Universtty for her services to
fmternational Business



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Centaur Media Plc {'the Company’ or ‘the Group’),
a company incorporated and domiciled n England and Wales,
present therr report on the affars of the Group and Company
together with the auditad Company and consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2018

Detalls of significant events since the balance sheet date are
contamed in note 33 to the financial statements

Principal activities

The principal actvitres of the Group are the provision of business
information, events and marketing solutions to selected professicnail
and commercial markets The principal actvities of the Company are
those of a holding company.

Business review

The Strategic Report, ihcorporating the CEO’s Review, on pages

4 10 23 sets out a summary of the Group strategic objectives,
business model, key performance meastres, operating and financial
reviews, future developments, prncipal nsks and the corporate
responsibiity staterment

Greenhouse gas emissions
Details of the Group's greenhouse gas emissions are Included in the
Corporate Responsibility Section on page 23

Research and development activities

The Group Invests In systems and website development activities -
see nete 11 to the financial statements for the internally generated
amounts capitalised during the year. The Group does not incur any
significant research costs

Dividends

A final dividend in respect of the period July to December 2018

of 1 5p per share (July to December 2017 1 5p) 15 proposed by the
Directors, and subject to shareholder approval at the Annua! General
Meeting, will be paid on 24 May 2019 to ordinary shareholders

on the register at the close of business on 10 May 2019 With the
interim chvidend of 1 5p per share, the total dvidend for the year will
be 3 Op per share (2017 3 Op)

Share capital and substantial shareholdings

Detaills of the share capttal of the Gompany are set cut in

note 24 to the financial statements As at 31 December 2018,
and 19 March 2019 (being the last practicable date prior to
publication), notifications of interests at or above 3% in the 1ssued
voting share capital of the Company had been receved from

the following.
31 December 19 March
2018 2019
Aberforth Partners LLPT 24.86% 24.86%
Artemis Investment Management LLP 15.36% 1524%
Quaero Capital (Argos Funds) 7.78% 7.78%
Chelverton Asset Management 771% 7.82%
IBIS Cap#tal Partners LLP 6.26% 6 25%
Graham Sherren 5.73% 573%
Otus Capial Management 552% 552%
Fidelty Internationaitt 4.39% 4 39%
Slater Investmentstt 3 48% 348%
Herald Investment Managementtt 3.16% 316%
3.13% 311%

Aberdeen Standard investmentstt

° This inciudes Wetlcome Trust Limited which 1s managed by Aberforth Pariners LLP

"7 Figures denved from share register analysis

At 19 March 2019 and 31 December 2018, 5,964,613

(31 December 2017 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held

In treasury, representing 4 60% (2017 4 60%) of the 1ssued

share capttal of the Cempany as at 31 Decermber 2018, 800,000
(20717 800,000) deferred shares of 10p each carry restncted voting
nights and carry no nght to recenve a dividend payment

Directors and Directors’ interests
The Directors of the Company dunng the year and ug to the
date of this report are detaled below All Directors served from

1 January 2018 unless otherwise stated The Beoard has decided
10 continue observing best practice by offering themselves for

re-election annualy

Number of ordinary

shares held at
1 January 2018

Shares acquired
during the year

Number of ordinary
shares held at
31 December 2018°

Number of ordinary
shares held at
19 March 2019

Nell Johnson {apported 3 January 2C18) - 100,000 10G,000 100,000
Willam Eccleshare - - - -
Robert Boyle 117,037 - 117,037 117.037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800 - 14,800 14,800
Colin Jones {appointed 1 September 2018} - - - -
Andria Vidler 159,438 25,752 185,190 186,114
Swagatam Muker 34,539 45,750 80,289 81214
Ronald Sandler {resigned 3 January 2018) 45,000 - 45,000

" Or ate of resmgnation If earher

The Directors’ Interests n long-term incentive plans are disclesed in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 38 to 53
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Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

By virtue of articie 217 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
a qualifying third-party indemnity provision {wrthin the mearing given
by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) is in force at the date of
this report in respect of each Director of the Company and was in
force throughout the year.

The Company has purchased appropriate msurance n respect
of legal actions against Directors and officers.

Charitable and political donations

Bunng the year the Group made donations of £71,443 to Macmillan
Cancer Support and £25,713 to The Connection at St Martin-m-the-
Fields ts nominated charties for 2018, which included third party
denations collected at events (2017 donation to Aizheimer’s of
£83,727 including third party coliections of £67,.387)

No paltical denations were made during the year (2017 €nil}.

Employment policy

The Group 18 an equal opporturities empioyer and appoints
employees without reference to age, sex, ethnic group

or religious beliefs,

It 1s the Group's policy to give full consideration to sutable
applcations for empioyment by disabled persens Cpportunities
alsc exist for employees of the Group who become disabled to
continue In therr employment or to be tramed for other positions
In the Group

The Group actively encourages employee nvoivement at all levels,
both through monthly empicyee briefings and by direct access to
managers and the Executive Committee in addition, the Share
Incentive Plan as described in note 25 encourages employees’
participation 1n the Group's performance.

All employees are regularly briefed on the financial and
economic factors affecting the Group’s performance and new
intiatives through monthly town hall meetings and managerment
cascade communication

Significant agreements

The Graup's bank facility agreement is a significant agreement that
1s terminable on a change of controt of the Company In addition,
awards under certain of the long-term incentive plans, detalls

of which are set out In note 25, will vest or may be exchanged

for awards of a purchaser’s shares upon a change of control

of the Company

As part of the acquisition of MarketMakers, an earn-out payment
was agreed with its former shareholders on the assumption that
certain EBITDA targets for 2017 were met. This was concluded in
the first half of 2018, details of which are set out In note 14,

Conflicts of interest

Following the mplementation of legislation on conflicts of interest,
refiected in the changes to the Company’s Articies of Associatien in
2008, proceduras are in place to deal with such conflicts and they
have operated effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement in refation to the financial sk management and use of
financial nstruments by the Group is presented in note 28 to the
finanicial staternenls.

Information required under the listing rules

In accordance with the UK Financial Conduct Authorty's Listing
Rules (LR 9 8 4C), the information to be inciuded in the annual
report and financial statements, where appiicable, under LR 9.8.4,
1s set out In this Directars’ report, with the exception of detalls of
transactons with shareholders which 1s set out on page 51.

Going concern

The Directors have carefully assessed the Company's ability to
continue trading and have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for at least 12 months from the date of this report ang for
the foreseeable future See note 1 of the financial statements for
further details.

Subsidiaries
Details of the subsidianes of the Company are shown 0 note
13 to the financial statements

Compliance with the UK Corporate

Governance Code

See the Dwectors’ Statement on Corporate Governance for the
staterment made in respect of the Group's complance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code on page 29.

Auditor and disclosure of information to the Auditor
The Cirectors confirm that, so far as the Directors are aware, there
15 No relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and the Directors have taken all the steps that they ocught
to have taken as Directors in order to make themseives aware of
any relevant audrt infformation and to estabish that the Company's
Auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance
with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006,

The Directors’ responsibility statement 15 included on page 54.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order
of the Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

19 March 2019
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board 1s committed to high standards of corporate governance
and supports the UK Corporate Governance Code published

i April 2018, The Board sets out its report below on how the Group
has appled the prnciples of, and comptied with, the UK Corporate
Governance Code dunng the year

Compliance statement

The Company has applied the prowvisions set out in the UK
Corporate Governance Code throughout the year The Board s
committed to maintaining a structure which establishes a sound
carporate governance framework on behatf of the Company's
shareholders. Throughout the year, the Group has complied
with all the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Board

As at 31 Decernber 2018 the Board had five Non-Executive
Birectors and two Executive Directors (Chief Executive and Chigf
Financial Officer) Biographies for each currently serving Director

are shown on pages 24 to 25 The Board endeavours to mantain
dversity In its composition with respect to gender, skills, knowledge
and length of sernvice In order to ensure the balanced and effective
runnung of the Company. Net Johnson 1s Chairman of the Board and
was ndependent on appontment  He leads the Board and ensures
that both Executive and Non-Executive Directors make available
sufficient time to carry out their duties In an appropriate manner, that
all Directors receve sufficient financial and operational information
and that there 1s proper debate at Board mestings

The Board 15 responsible for the leadership of the Company and

the Group, and In discharging that responsitility t makes decisions
objectively and in the best interests of the Group The Board sets
the vision, values and standards for the Group. The talance of

the Board, together with the advice sought from the Executive
Committee members and the Company’s extaernal advisors, ensures
that no one indivdual has unfettered powers of dectsion The Board
delegates day-to-day responsibility for the running of the Company
to the Chief Executive.

The Charman 1s responsible for the effective performance of the
Board through a schedule of matters reserved for approval by the
Board (comprising 1ssues considered most significant to the Group
in terms of financial impact and nsk) and contro! of the Board
agenda The Chairman conducts Board and shareholder meetings
and ensures that alt Directors are properly brefed, The Chref
Executive, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and Executive
Committee, 1s responsible to the Board for running the business and
implementing strategy. The Board reviews the performance of the
Executive Directors and the Group against agreed budgsts and
aganst the Group’s cbjectives, strategy and values

The Sernicr independent Director s Willam Eccleshare, who 1s
also a member of the Remuneration and Normination Comrmittees.
The Company Secretary i1s Helen Sitver The Company Secretary
asststs the Chairman in ensuring there is efficient communication
between all directors, the committees and senior management,
as well as the professional development of Directors Independent
advisars Including lawysrs, remuneration specialists and external
auditors are availlable to advise the Non-Executive Directors at
the Company's exgense All of the Non-Executive Directors are
independent and the Chairman was mdependent on appontrment
Committee meetings are held independently of Board meetings
and Invitations to attend are extended by the Committee Chairman
to other Directors, the Group's advisors and management

as appropriate The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
including therr roles ang the authonty delegated to them by

the Board, are availlable on request from the Company Secretary
and will be avalable at the AGM
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Board meetings

Durng the year, the membership of the Board and of each committee was as follows

Boaid Audit Remuneration Nomiation
Role Committee Committee Committee
Neait Johnson Chairman - - Charman
(appointed 3 January 2018)
William Eccleshare Sentor independent Director - Member Member
Rebecca Miskin Non-Executive Diractor Mermber Member* Member
Andria Vidler Chief Executive - - -
Swagatam Muker) Chiet Financial Officer - - -
Robert Boyle Non-Executive Director Charman Member -
Colin Jones Non-Executive Director Member Charman Member

{appainted 1 September 2018)

‘Rebecca Miskin was Charman of the Remuneration Committee untl 1 September 2018 when Colin Jones was appointed

The number of scheduled full Board meetings and comrmittee meetings durng the year along with attendance of Directors was as follows,

Audit Remuneratian Nomination
Board Comimittee Committee Committee
Number of meetings held 8 5 3 2
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
attended eliglble to attended efigible to attended eligible to attended  eligible to
attend attend attend attend
Neil Johnson
{appointed 3 January 2018) 8 8 - - - - 2 2
William Ecclesharg 6 8 - - 2 3 1 2
Rebecca Miskin 7 8 5 5 3 3 2 2
Andna Vidler' 8 8 - - - _ _ -
Swagatam Mukerji g 8 - - _ - -
Robert Boyle 7 8 5 5 3 3 - -
Colin Jones
(apponted 1 September 2018} 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1

' Andria Vidier's marmed surname 1s Gibb and she appears as Andna Gibb on some records kept by Cormpanies House

If a Director 1s unable to attend a meeting he or she 1s provided with the same level of information as the other Directors in advance of the
meeting and given the opportuinity to express views, which will then be shared at the mesting

In addition 1 the key rtemns dentified for discussion by the Committees above, the Board discussed the following matters at the Board
meetings dunng the year

* Review of inancial performance aganst budget and pror year,

* Review of Group strategy;

= Review and approval of budgets:

Review of Group key performance ndicators;

.

* Review of acquisition targets,
Approval of financial reports and cormmunication to shareholders and investors; and
Approval of the Group's internat control policy, Including a robust assessment of the principal nsks and corporate governance envronment.



Board assessment and Directors’

performance evaluation

The Beard undertakes a formal evaluaton of s own performance
and that of ts committees and indwidual Drectors Indmduat
evallation ams to show whether each Director continues to
contribute effectively and to demonstrate commitment to the role
{(iIncluding commitment of tme for Board and committee meestings
and other duties} Evaluations are undertaken annuatly by self-
assessment and the Charrman's performance is also evaluated

by the other Non-Executive Directors at a separate meeting

for this purpose each year. In additon, the Chief Executive 1s
subject to an annual performance review with the Chairman

New Directors receive an induction programme and all the Directors
are encouraged to undertake continuous professional development
programmes as appropriate The Group mamntans insurance cover
in respect of legal acton against its Directors,

Management structure

The Board delegates the day-to-day running of the Company to
the Executive Directors, who in turn share the operational running
of the Group with the Executive Committee. Throughout the year,
the Executive Commuittee was the pnmary body implementing
operaticnal management across the Group The role of the
Executive Committee 1$ to review,

+ Financial performance and budget {at operational leval),
* Human capital management,

* Operatonal efficiency and developments (including Group 1T,
procurement and faciities);

* Product development,

Market development,

Business planning,

Acquisition needs,

» Internal and external communications, and

+ Business transformation and change management

The brographies of the members of the Executive Committee are
set out on page 26. Supporting the Executive Committee are the
Portfolic Directors who are respensible for specific market segments
and the expert leaders who lead the teams delivering functional
expertise. The focus on our markets and audience enables us

to bulld a deeper understanding of the commercial cpportunities
across each market We know that our customers want flexible
content that works seamlessly across multiple platforms

By leveraging this market insight and an understanding of our
customer reguirements we are atle to offer a higher value customer
proposition The expert teams provide the expertise and scale

that allows us to effectively and efficiently support the delivery of
commercial opportunities across each market The creation of these
expert teams also enables us to effectively manage our cost base
and to priontise \nvestment across the business.

Relations with shareholders

The Company encourages meaningful dialogue with all
sharshoiders Sharehoider communication centres primarily on

the publication of annual reports, periodic press releases, nvestor
presentations and trading updates The Chairman and Executive
Directors are avarlable for discussions with shareholders throughout
the year and part:cularly around the time of results announcements.
The Senior Independent Director 1s also avarable should any
shareholder wish to draw any matters to his attention The Directors
are avallable for comment throughout the year and at all General
Meetings of the Company Centaur Media values the views of its
shareholders and recognises thesr interest in the Company’s strategy
and performance, Board membership and qualty of management
The Group therefore has an active programme to meet and make
presentations 1o s current and potential shareholders te discuss
its objectives The AGM 15 used to commurnicate with investors

and they are encouraged to attend the AGM and to participate in
proceedings formally or sharing their views with Board members
informally after the meeting. The Chars of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committess are avalable to answer questions
Separate resolutions are proposed on each 1ssue so that they

can be given proper consideration and there is a resolution to
approve the annual report and financial statements The Company
counts all proxy votes and indicates the leve! of proxies lodged

on each resolution, after it has been voted on by a show of

hands All shareholders can gain access to the annual reports,
trading updates, announcements, press releases and other
information about the Company through the Company’s website,
www.centaurmedia.com.

Risk assessment

Risks that affect or may affect the business are dentrfied and
assessed, and appropriate contrals and systems implementad

to ensure that the nsk s managed The Group's nsk register 1S
kept by the Company Secretary with the input of the Executive
Committee and I1s reviewed by the Audit Committee reguiarly with
appropnate mitigation actions also being reported to and overseen
by the Committee

The prnincipal nsks facing the Group, with associated mitigating
controlg, are detalled on pages 18 to 21 within the Strategic Report

3
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Ethics

The Group carmes out its business in a fair, honest and open
manner, ensunng that it comphes with all relevant laws and
reyulations. The Cormpany has specific policies on fraud, director
conflict, bribery, whistieblowing and slavery and human trafficking,
which are widely distnbuted and compliance with these policies

is monitored. The Board has oversight of the Group's actions.

The HR team ensures that new job opportuntics are made avallable
to existing employees as well as to outside applicants and that all
employees are able to benefit from training, career development
and promotion opportunibes where appropnate. The recrutrment

of new personnel 1s made without prejudice and the Group believes
N equal opportunity and encourages diversity. The analysis of the
Group's workforce and Board by gender 1s set out in the Corporate
Responsibity Report on page 22.

Through all our mteraction with our customers and partners we
ensure that we treat them farty and openly whilst abiding by the
terms of contracts and relevant law Equally, we treat our supphers
fairly and do not explort them or ther employees

Monitoring of controls

The Board has overall responsitxity for the effectiveness of the
Group's system of nsk management and nternal controls and these
are regularly monttored by the Audit Committee

Details of the actvities of the Audit Committee in this financial year
can be found i the Audt Committee Report on pages 33 to 36

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosure in respect of the greenhouse gas emissions of the
Group that are attributable to human activity in tennes of carbon
dioxide is set out in the Corporate Respensibility Report on page 23

Fraud

Whilst the Group cannot guarantee to prevent fraud, an internal
control framework 1s 1n place to reduce the lkelihood of fraud
arising. The Group's whistleblowing policy 1s available to emplovees
on the Company's intranet, should any employee become aware of
any incidence of fraud.

Directors’ conflicts

Group and subsidiary Directors are required to notify their employing
company of all directorships they hold Annual conflict of interest
disclosures reauires them to disclose such directorships or other
relatonships, which they or a person connected to them may hotd
These are reviewed by the Board to assess the impact on the
Company and whether it would impair the Group’s objectives

Bribery Act 2010
in response to the Brbery Act 2010, the Board performed a risk
assessment across the Group and formahsed its policy to prevent
bribery. The Board has in place processes to prevent corruption

or unethical behaviour The policy explains what 1s considered a
bribe or facitation payment, which are prohibited, and provides
guidance over the levels of gifts, entertanment and hospitality that
are considered reasonable. Training has been mandatory for all
employees During 2018, an online training programme was made
avaiiable to all employees. The Group's poiicy 18 communicated to
all appropriate third parties. The more rigorous processes around
declaring Directors’ interests and identifying potential conflicts have
improved the regutar manroring of the Group's policy

Whistleblowing

The Company is committed to the highest standards of ntegrity and
honesty. Along with other policies which encourage this behaviour,
the Group's whistieblowng policy Is avallabie to employees on the
Company’s intranet, This policy altows ail empiayees to disclose
openly, :n confidence or anonymausly, any concerns they may have
about possible improper practices, in financial or other matters

An escalation process has been communicated to employees

Any matters raised will be Investigated and resolved. The Audit
Committee will be notfied of any issues raised through this process
and appropriate action taken However, no Incidents were noted
during the year

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Cormpany 1s committed to implementing and enforcing
effective systems and controls to ensure modern slavery 1s not
taking place anywhere In its business or in any of its supply chans
The Company's slavery and human trafficking statement for the
purposes of section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 1s avalable
on the Company's website, www centaurmedia com The Group
has i1 place an anti-sfavery anct human trafficking policy which has
been made avalable to employees on the Company's intranet and,
from 2017, is notified to all new joiners. Training has been provided
to key employees and the policy 1Is communicated to suppliers and
cther third parties where appropriate

Capital structure
Information on the share capital structure 1s Included in the
Directors’ Report on page 27

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order
of the Board

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

19 March 2019



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

ROBERT BOYLE
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit Committee (‘the
Committee”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 This report
detalls the Audit Committeg’s responsiilities and key actvities over
the penod. The role of the Committee is to protect the interests
of shareholders regarding the integrity of financial information
publshed by the Group and to oversee the effectiveness of the
external audit. It does this through reviewing and reporting to
the Board on the Group's financal reporting, internal controls
and risk management processes and the perfermance,
independence and effectiveness of the external auditor,
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC’)

Committee composition

During the year, the Committee compnsed Non-Executive Directors,
Robert Boyle (Chairman), Rebecca Miskin, Colin Jones (who was
appanted on 1 September 2018) and Ron Sandler who stood down
on 3 January 2018 The Group's Chairman, Nerl Johnson, was
appcinted on 3 January 2018 and attends meetings by invitation but
1s not a member of the Committee Their bicgraphies are shown on
pages 24 and 25 The membership of the Committee 1s balanced
and is considered to contan the appropriate combination of recent,
relevant financial expenence through the Charman and Coln Jones,
as well as competence relevant to the sector

The Executive Directors, representatives of the external auditor and
other Group executives regularly attend meetings at the invitation

of the Committee. The Committee met five times during the year,
with all members attending Meetings are held throughout the year,
and timed to align with the overall financial reporting timetable

At least once dunng the year, the Committee meets separately with
the external auditor and with management, and as Charman [ am in
regular direct contact with the external auditors and with the Chief
Financial Cfficer

Roles and responsibilities
The main roles and responsibibties of the Audrt Committee are to

* Monrtor the integnty of the financial statements of the Group
and any public anncuncements relating 1o the Group's financial
performance, reviewing (and approving) significant financiat
reporting jdgements contained in them,

= Review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking
Into consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory
reguirements;

» Rewview and assess the Annual Report in order to determine that
It can advise the Board that, taken as a whole, the Annual Report
15 far, balanced and understandable, and provides shareholders
with the information they need to assess the Company’s position
and performance, business medel and strategy as required by
provisicn G 1.1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code,

* Make recommendations to the Board n relation to the
appointment and terrmns of engagement of the external auditor and
to review and approve levels of audit and non-audit remuneration,

» Develop and implement palicy on the engagement of the external
auditor to supply non-audit services,

* Review the effectivenass of the Group's internal financial control

and risk management systems;

Review the Group's financial and operationat policies and

procedures to ensure they remain effective and relevant,

Oversee the whistisblowing arrangements of the Group and tc

ensure they are operating effectively, and

Report to the Board on how it has discharged its responsibilities
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Financial statements

During the year and up until the Qate of this report, the Audit
Committee undertook the followihg activities to ensure the Integnty
of the Group’s financial statements and fonmal anlouncethenils

= Regularly met with management and the Chief Financial Officer
to discuss the results and performance of the business, including
regular review of the aged debt position throughout the year,

« Recewed reports from management on the internal controls
covering the financial reporting process;

= Reviewed and agreed the externaj auditor's strategy in advance
of their audit for the year,

* Reviewed comphance with requirements under the UK Corporate
Governance Code, and In particutar its impact on the Strategic
Report and Viability Statement,

» Discussed the report received from the external auditor regarding
their audit in respect of the prior year, which included comments
on significant financial reporting judgements and their findings
on internal controls;

* Met with other management personnel including the Head of
Credit; and

= Reviewed and discussed with management and the Chiet
Financial Officer each formal ahnouncement made by the Group

* Raviewed compilance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {'IFRS")

The most significant financiat reporting judgements consiciered by
the Audit Commrttee and discussed with the external auditor dunng
the year were as follows®

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets
The Audit Committee has reviewed management’s assessment

of the recoverability of the Group’s goodwill and intangible

assets and whether there 1s a need for any resulting Impairment
The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined through
value-in-use calculations of each cash-generating unit (‘\CGU')
based on Board approved forecasts for the first three years of

the value-In-use calculation, and applying a terminal growth rate
of 2 5%.

Following a review, an imparrment of £13.1m has been recognised
aganst goodwill primarily relating to events to be closed and other
businesses within the Marketing portfolio.

At 31 December 2018 the Committee reviewed management's
assessment of the recoverability of the Group's goodwill and
intangible assets that resulted N no further IMparment being
recognised in addition o those specific adjustments noted above
The Commitiee has paid particular attention to the jJudgements
and assumptions used to forecast cash flows, particularly around
revenue and adisted? EBITDA growth rates, The Committes was
satisfied that the forecasts reflect the CGUs' histoncal budgeting
performance and that reascnable sensitivities were performed, that
the value-In-use calculation reflects management’s best estimate,
and that the overall imparment 1 approprate As a result, the Audtt
Committee was satisfied with the carrying value of goodwill and
intangible assets in the Group balance sheet

Further details on goodwill and the impairment testing are included
1IN note 10 W the financiat slalements.

Recoverabhility of trade receivables

Gross trade receivables, over 80 days overdue, remained consistent
with 2017 at £1.6m The Committee notes that collectability of trade
recenables 1s a judgemental area. The Committee has reviewed
management’s detaled assessment of the recoverability of the trade
recevables balance, and the methodology used to determine the
provision required, which includes a range of sensttivities IFRS 9
has been adopted this year for the calculation of the prowvision,
further detalls of which can be found n note 1 Given strong cash
collection throughout the year and the continued improvernent in the
Group's working caprtal position, the Committee 1s satisfied with the
recduction In the required provision to £1.2rm from £1 5m at the end
of 2017

Further details on trade recervables and the associated provision are
shown In note 18

Cther areas of udgement discussed with the external audnor were
as follows

Adjusting items

The Audit Commuttee has challenged management strongly over
recent financial reporting periods with regard to the presentation
of exceptional tems and ather alternative performance measures.
Adusting terns disclosed in the year include amortisation

of acquired intangible assets manly in relaton to the acquisition of
MarketMakers and Qystercatchers (see below}, and exceptional
costs ansing in refation to restructuring activities  The Committee
notes that the restructuring activities (both staff-related and
corporate) anse from specific change programmes during the
year, and that they are mateniat and could therefore distort the
user's view of the Group's results. The Committee is satisfied that
It 15 appropnate to present these items as adjustmg tems on the
basis that they assist the user in assessing the core operating
performance of the Group

The Committee assesses the appropnateness of all alternative
performance measures disclosed as adjusting and the impact these
have on the presentation of the Group’s results, and Is satisfied that
they do not Ingppropnately replace or chscure IFRS measures.

Further details on adusting items are included in notes 1(b}
and 4 to the financial statements.
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Acquisition of MarketMakers

On 2 August 2017, the Group acquired 100% of MarketMakers
Incorporated Lirnited which constituted a Business Combination
under IFRS 3.

In 2018, further payments were made to the former shareholders of
MarketMakers following meeting of earnout targets which resufted in
adjustments to recogrised geodwill In 2017, the Group estimated
likely earnout consideration payable to the former shareholders
related to EBITDA performance in the year 2017, This earnout

was paid in 2018 with a subseguent adjustment made to

the acquired intangibles

Disposal of Home Interest

On 1 August 2017, the Group completed the disposai of the

Home Interest Segment for £32 8m. The Committee 15 sahisfied
that the accounting for ts disposai and treatment of the applicable
transitional services arrangement are far and appropriate Details of
the disposal are set out In note 15 to the financial statements

Durng 2018 a small profit of £0 1m was recognised on the disposal
following a usual working capital adjustment pertaining to the
disposal period

Consideration of possible divestments

On 25 Octower 2018, the Group anncunced a trading update

n which 1t stated it would be exploring the divestment of certain
businesses These businesses inciude The Lawyer, the events
division and its financial services busmess The Committee has had
extensive discussions with management and PwC with regards to
how these potential disposals are accounted for at 31 December
The Committee I1s satisfied that due to the formai disposal process
only commencing at the start of 2019, that these business units

do not need to be classified as held for sale at 31 December 2018
See further details in Note 33 to the financial statements where post
balance sheet events are considered.,

New accounting standards
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts
with custormers’ have been adopted for the current reperting period

The adoption of IFRS 15 has not materally impacted the value,
phasing, or recogntion of revenue at a Group or segmental level.

IFRS 9 predominantly iImpacts the way our provision for impairment
of trade recevables 15 calculated. The provision now represents an
‘expected credit loss” which 1s calculated based on actual historic
default rates. Under IFRS 9, 2017's expected credit loss would have
been £1 8m (actual under 1AS 39 was £1 5m} In 2018 the expected
credit loss 1s £1 2m The reduction in the provision is a reflection

of longer history of consistently better cash collection and not an
impact from the adoption of IFRS 9

Effective for the first tme for the financial year beginning 1 January
2019, but not yet adopted by the Group, 1s IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

An impact agsessment has been performed which indicated the
operating lease arrangements we currently hold regarding the
properties from which we operate will, from the effective date, be
treated as finance leases and an asset and habiity will be recognised
In respect of these

For furtber details of IFRSs 8, 15 and 16 please see Note 1 to the
financial statements

Trading update

On 25 Qctober, the Group re-issued profit guidance of £5-5 5m for
the year The Commuittee has reviewed the internal forecast process
and nts ability to highlight potental shertfalls in a tmely manner. We
are satisfied that these processes are timely and sufficiently robust
to highlight such issues

Going concern and viability

The Audit Committee received a report setting out the going
concern review undertaken by management which forms the basis
of the Board's going concern conclusion Dunng 2015, the Group
agreed a four year £25 Om muiti-currency revoiving bank faciity, and
this faciity was renewed in 2018, with an intial extension to 2021,
on terms more favourable than the onginat agreement The Group
also has the option to take two one-year extensions The Committee
notes that working capital was strong in the year and the Group

had no draw-down on the faciity at the end of Decernber 2C18,

The Committee has reviewed forecasts to cover the 18 months
from signature date with vanous downside scenarios expiored The
Committeg has concluded that the adoption of the going concern
basts i1s appropriate

In addrion, the Committee has assessed the statement in relation
to the longer-term viability of the Group and of the Group's
principal nsks to viability, ncluding reviewing the long-term financial
projections for the period over which the statement 1s made, and
reviewing gquaitative and guantitative analysis and scenano testing
prepared by management The Committee concluded that the
statement in relation to the longer-term viabiiity of the Group In the
Strategic Report 1s appropnate

Risk management

The Group's management 1s responsible for the identification,
assessment and management of nsk, as well as for designing

and operating the system of internal control as set out in the
Strategk; Report on pages 4 to 23 The Committee has assessed
management’s identfication of nsk and concluded that appropriate
mitigating actions are being taken The auditor has also detailed
certan nsks n therr report and set out the work performed to satisfy
themselves that these have been properly reflected in the Financial
Staternents. The Committee has worked closely with management
and received detalled information to assess the effectiveness of
internal financial control and nisk assessment and management
systems, and report on them to the Board {which retains ultimate
responsibiity) Detals of financial nsks are set out in note 28

Hawing monitored the Group's nsk management and internal control
system, and having reviewed the effectiveness of matenal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controis, the
Committee confirms on behalf of the Board that 1t has not identrfied
any significant control failings or weaknesses at any time durnng the
year and to the date of this report
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Risk of fraud

The Committee considered the nisk of frauciulent financial reporting
N the business, and through its review of the effectiveness of
ilernagl conlrols and reperting from management, has concluded
that adequate controls were in place during the year

Whistleblowing

The Committee reviewed the Group's whistleblowing palicy and
1s satisfied that this has met FCA rules and good standards of
corporate governance: Further detalls of the whistieblowing
policy are set out within the Directors’ Statement on Corporate
Governance on page 32

Internal audit

The Committee considered whether it was appropnate to appoint
internal auditors and concluded that this 1s not currently required
given the size of the business, its relatively centralised operations
and the nsks identfied tegether with the mitigating controls

External audit

The Group's external auditor 1s PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
The Committee monitors the external audit process to ensure
high standards of quality and effectiveness. This was assessed
throughout the year using a numbser of measures, INcluding

* Reviewing the quality and scope of planning of the audit and the
level of fees,

Monitonng the independence and transparency of the audt, and

Obtaining feedback from management and the Directors on the
qualty of the audit team, ther business understanding and audn
approach, and approving reappontment

PwC have been the Company's external auditor since its

ncorporaton in 2004 The appontment was subject to competitve
tender m 2016

The Audit Committee has considered the independence and
objectivity of the exterrial auditor through a careful review of their
terms of engagement, scope of work and level of fees (which are
shown in note 3 to the financial statements). This included reviewing
the nature and extent of non-audit services supplied by the external
audrtor to the Group. seeking to balance objectivity and value

for money.

In hght of new regulations, the Committee reviewed and approved
updates to the Group's policy regarding non-audit services

during 2016. The external auditor 1s excluded from providing any
nort-audit services that individually, or in aggregate, may impair

the independence of the auditor. Prior approval from the Audit
Committee is required for any permitted audit related or other
services in accordance with the Audit Committee’s policy, and
effective from 1 January 2017 fees for any such services should not
exceed 70% of the fee for the external audit 1n any given year.

During the year, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
provided no services to the Group other than audit and
audit-related (interim review) services.

The external audtor's report to the Directors and the Audrt
Committee alse confirmed their Independence in accordance with
auditing standards and the Committee concurred  Should non-audit
services be required in the forthcoming year, we are likely to use
suppliers other than PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP

Self-assessment

Dunng the penad the Audit Committee parformed a formal,
questionnarre based, seff-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Audit Gommittee with satisfactory results.

Report to the Board

The Board has requested the Committee to confum that in ts
opinion the Board can make the required staternent that the Annual
Report taken as a whole 1s far, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for sharehoiders to assess

the Company’s position and performance, business model and
strategy The Committee has given this confirmation on the basrs of
its review of the whole Annual Report, underpinned by involvement
1N the planning for its preparation, revew of the processes to
ensure the accuracy of factual content and by assurances from

the Remuneration Committee.

Independent auditor

A resolution s to be proposed at the Annual General Meating for
the re-appontment of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor
of the Company

ROBERT BOYLE
Chairman of the Audit Committee

19 March 2019
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NEIL JOHNSON

Chairman of the Nominaticn Committee

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the Nominaton Committee
for the year ended 31 December 2018, This report details the
Committeg’s ongoing responsibiiiies and key activities over

the penod The Committee comprised myseff from 3 January

2018, Wiiham Eccleshare, Rebecca Miskin and Cokn Jones from

1 September 2018, ensunng that there 15 a majonty of ndependent
Non-Executive Directors on the Committee.,

Nomination Committee Responsibilities
The Commttese’s key responsibilities include

* Rewiewing the Board's structure, size and composition,

* Reviewing the compesition of Board Committees,

* Defining the role and competencies required for appointments to
the Board;

Identifying, nominating and reviewing candiciates for appointment
to the Board,

Putting in place plans for succession for the Chainman and

other members of the Board, the Chief Executive and the Chief
Financia! Cfficer, and

* Reviewing the leadership needs of the organisation, both
Executive and Non-Executive

The appointment of Directors 15 a matter for the Board, which
considers recommendations of the Nomination Commitice

The committee 18 responsible for ensuring that the Board and the
Beard Committees are properly constituted and balanced in terms
of skills. experence and dwersity. Our policy on Board diversity 1s set
out in the Directors’ Report above and during the year we had two
female Board membpers, compiising 29% of the Board

Activities during the year

Durng the second part of 2018, the primary focus of the Committee
was to identfy and appoint a new Non-Executive Director

In preparation for the departure of Robert Boyle

The Committee followed a ngorous process that was approved by
the Board and supported by executive search consultants, Inzito
Following a short list and interview exercise, the appointment of
Golin Jones was recommended to the Board by the Committee

and he was confirmed as a Director, Chairman of the Rernuneration
Committee and a mermnber of the Audit and Nomination Committees
with effect from 1 September 2018

For the remainder of the year the Committee focused on

the responsibiities set out above inciuding, n particular,
undertaking a review of the Board's structure, size and compositon,
as well as the effectveness of the Beard and its Committees,

As | have decided to stand down as Charman of the Board at
the end of June 2019 to take up ancther role, Robert has agreed
to remain as Charr of the Audit Committee for up to 12 months
Colin Jones, who jomned the Board n September 2018 after a
successful 22-year career at Euromoney Institutional investor
PLC, has excellent and refevant experience to lead the Company
through its next phase and will become Charman of the Board
and Chairman of the Nomination Committee wath effect from

30 June 2019 With effect from the same date Colin will resign
as a member of the Audit Committee, but it 1s our intention that
Colin wiil remain as Charr of the Remuneration Committee in

the short term Whilst this 1s not comphant with the Corporate
Governance Code, the Board considers it appropriate at this stage
of Centaur’'s development,

The Nomination Committee recognise that there 1s work 1o be done
to refresh the Board and its Committees and this will be a focus for
the second half of 2019

NEIL JOHNSON
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

19 March 2012
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

COLIN JONES

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Dear Shareholder,

On behaff of the Board, | am pleased to present the Rernuneration
Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 This 1s my first
report as Chair of Centaur's Remuneration Committes since my
appointment in September 2018 1 would first like to thank Rebecca
Misken for successfully chainng the Commuttee for a number of
years, and providing support in the transition of the char to me

2018 has been a challenging year for Centaur While the francial
performance has improved on 2017, ambitious budgets set at

the beginning of the year were not achieved for reasons set out

in the Charrman’s Statement and CEQ Review At the same time,
significant effort has been put in to addressing Centaur's sirategic
challenges and developing a new strategy which the management
team is now Implementing. These challenges are reflected in both
the actual remuneration of the Executive Directors in 2018 and the
proposad new Remuneration Policy for 2019

This report 1s In three parts: (i} this Annual Statement, (i) the
Remuneration Policy Report, which sets out the proposed
Rernuneration Policy for which shareholder approval will be sought
at the 2018 AGM given that the Remuneration Policy approved in
2016 18 reaching the end of 1is three-year Iife, and (n) the Annual
Report on Remuneration

Committee membership and work of the

Committee during the year

During the year, Centaur's Remuneration Committee comprised.
Cobn Jones {appointed to the Board and as Remuneration
Committes Charr from 1 September 2018, Rebecca Miskin
{Remuneration Committee Chair to 1 September 2018}, Ronald
Sandler {to 3 January 2018}, Robert Boyle, and Wilharm Eccleshare.

The Committee met three times during 2018. The main Committee
actiities dunng the year {full details of which are set out 11 the
refevant sections of this report) included

* Agreeing executive director base salary levels from 1 April 2018,

* Agreeing the performance agamnst the targets for the 2017 annual
bonus:

Agreeing the performance against the targets for the 2015 LTIP
awards which lapsed in 2018;

.

Setting the performance targets for the 2018 annual bonus;

Agreeing the award levels and performance tests for the 2018
LTIP awards,

Reviewing the company's share dilution capacity for LTIP awards,
Reviewing gender pay numbers and disclosures, and

Reviewing the existing remuneration policy and considering
potential changes 1o be put forward at the 2019 AGM

Implementation of the Remuneration
Policy in 2018

Base salary levels were increased by 2% from 1 April 2018 n
Iine with general workforce increases There were no changes to
pension or benefit prowision,

Performance against financial targets and personal cjectves in
the year ended 31 December 2018 resuted in the Remuneration
Committee awarding benuses for the achievernent of personal
objactives only as the flnancial performance targets were not
achieved. Personal objectives made up 20% of the annual bonus
potsntial and were 100% achieved which would have given nse
to a 2018 bonus of 20% of salary for both the CEQ and CFO
However, the CEG and CFO decided to formally waive their
entitiement to any bonus payable for 2018 given that this would
be inconsistent with the calculation of bonuses for other members
of the Executive Committes and senicr management team, which
were based wholly on financial performance;

LTIP awards granted to the CEQ and CFO in 2016, which were
due to vest in 2019, based on financial performance for the three
years to 31 December 2018, will lapse as a result of faling to
meset threshold EPS and TSR performance targets, and

LTIP awards were granted to the CEO ang CFO on 6 April
2018 over shares equal to 100% of salary based on EPS (50%)
and TSR {50%;) performance targets for the three years to 31
December 2020
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Proposed changes to the Remuneration
Policy for 2019

The Rermmuneration Commitiee 1s proposing to roil forward the
current Remuneration Policy at the 2019 AGM, updated to
reflect the new UK Corporate Governance Code provisions and
developments in remuneration best practice more generally

Centaur 15 entenng a period of significant transformation as it
implements a strategy which will result in the divestment of some
brands and the restructure of the core business dunng 2019,

In addtion to updating the existing Remuneration Policy, the
Committee 1s propasing to introduce a one-off incentive plan

("2019 Incentive Plan” or “2019 IP"} which I1s designed to incentivise
and reward the execution of this strategy and maximize shareholder
value during 2018. The current incentive schemes (annual bonus
and LTIP) are nked to annual profit and iong-term EPS and

relative TSR These incentives are not considered appropriate

for 2012 because the performance metncs and timeframes do

nat align with Centaur's strategy over the next 12 months The
2019 1P 15 only expected to apply for 2019 and the Committee
expects to revert back to the normal annual bonus and LTIPs

from 1 January 2020 onwards

The 2019 IP has been designed by the Remuneration Committee
to directly align with the strategy for 2019, to be acceptable

to Centaur's major investors (who have been consulted on

the proposals and who are supportive), to be as simpie as
posstble in terms of communication and operation; to be cash-
based with partial share deferral in ine with the current policy;

to Incentivise the delivery of enhanced shareholder returns

whilst ensunng management also deliver on business as usual
performance durning 2019; and to be capped from a cost and nisk
management perspective

The key terms of the 2019 IR, the rules of which will be subject to
a separate resolution at the 2019 AGM, are as follows

Up to 200% of base salary may be earned in respect of
performance to 31 December 2019 in the form of a cash bonus
(with partiai deferral into shares) for the CEC and CFO,

Awards will complement the normal 100% of salary bonus

and the 100% of salary LTIP which would ncrmally be granted
following the announcement of the 2018 results;

50% of the award 1s based on maximising shareholder value from
the divestment of non-core assets,

25% of the award 1s based on significantly reducing central
overhead costs by the end of 2019,

25% of the award 1s based on achieving stratch profit and
cperating margn targets for the ongoing Xeim busmess for 2019,
* Up to 75% of 2019 IP awards will be pad out in ¢cash following
the end of the 2019 financial year,

« Any amount earned in excess of 75% of the maximum 2019 IP
awards will be deferred intc Centaur Media plc shares for two
years from the date that the cash element 1s pad, and

* Market and best practice comphant leaver and change of control
provigions will apply

Further detaifs of the terms of the IP are set out in the Notice

of AGM

iImplementing the Remuneration Policy
for 2019

The base salanes for the Executnve Directors will increase from 1
Apnl 2019 by 2% in Iine with general workforce increases, and there
will be no changes to pension and benefit provision As explained
above, the 2019 IP will compiement the normal 2818 annual bonus
and LTIP awards {with the Committes’s Intention beng that it wiil
revert back to the normal annual bonus and LTIP awards in 2020)

Shareholder consultation and 2019
AGM approvals

In rolling forward the existing Remuneration Poiicy and proposing
the key terms of the 2018 IP, the Committeg has consulted with
Centaur's major shareholders | would like to thank investors for
therr feedback on the proposals, which the Committee considered
n detall and which has helped to formulate the Remuneration Palicy
contained In this report As a result of the proposed changes te the
Remuneration Policy and its operation, the fellowing resolutions
relating to remuneration will be presented at the 2019 AGM.

* A binding resolution on the proposed Directors™ Remuneration
Policy contained within this Directors’ Remuneration Report;

* An advisory resolution on the remuneration paid to the Directors
in the year ended 31 December 2018 and the operation of the
Remuneration Policy for 2019 as set out 1n the Annual Report on
Remuneration, and

« Aresolution 1o approve the Centaur Media Plc 2019 Incentive
Plan rules

I hope we continue 1o receve your support in respect of our Annual

Report at our forthcoming AGM

COLIN JONES
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

19 March 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

Policy scope
The Policy apples to the Charrman, Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors

Policy duration

The current Remuneration Policy was passed by a binding
shareholder vote at the Company's 2016 AGM and became effective
from the date of that meeting For the reasons set out in the Annuat
Statement, a new policy, as set out below, will be proposed as

a resclution subject to a binding sharetiolder vote at the Company's
2019 AGM

The new policy takes into account the provisions of the new UK
Corporate Governance Code which s effective from 1 January
2019, and other good practice guideines from institutionai
shareholders and shareholder bodies Subject to approvai by
shareholders the new policy will become effective from the 2019
AGM date and shall be in place for the following three-year period
unless a hew policy 1§ presented to shareholders before then. Al
payments to Directors during the policy period wil be consistent
with the approved policy

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Centaur recognises the need to attract retain and incentivise
executives with the appropnate skilis and talent to manage and
develop the Group's businesses, drive the Group's strategy and
delwver shareholder value The mamn principles of the Directors’
Rermuneration Palicy are.

* To achieve total remuneration packages that are competitive in
the sector wittin which the Group operates and with the market
tn general;

« To prowde an appropriate balance between fixed and vanable
remuneration which rewards high levets of perfermance; and

* Toincentivise and retain management and to align their interests
with those of sharehclders.

Considerations of employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group

The Commuttee consigers the base salary increases and
remuneration policies and practice more generally for all employees
when determining the annual salary increases and remuneration
pohicy for the Executive Directors. Employees have not been
consulited In respect of the renewal of the Drectors' Remuneration
Pclhicy, although the Committee will keep this approach

under review.

Consideration of shareholder views

The Commitee considers shareholder feedback receved In
relation 10 the Annual Report and AGM each year This feedback,
plus any addtional feedback received during the course of the
year, IS then considered ag part of the Company’s annual review
of its remuneration policy. In addion, the Committee will seek to
engage diractly with major shareholders and ther representative
bodies should any matenal changes be made to the Dwectors’
Remuneration Policy. Detailg of votes for angd against the resolution
ta approve last year's Remuneration Regort and the 2016
Remuneration Policy, as well as addtional disciosures on the 2017
Bonus for the Executive Directors (in response to feedback from
shareholders) are set out In the Annual Report on Remuneration.

Changes from 2016 Remuneration Policy
A surmmary of the key changes ansing from the annual review
of remuneration policy and proposed far inclusion in the new
Remuneration Policy are as follows:

» The ntroduction of the 2013 Incentive Plan tc complement the
normat annual bonus and LTIF awards for 2019 only,

« A commitment for pension provision In respect of future Executive
Director appointments to be aligned to the workforce where
possibie,

= The introduction of a two-year post-vesting holding penod on all

LTIP awards granted after the approval of the new Remuneration

Pclicy at the 2019 AGM, and

Increased shareholding guidelines for Executive Directors from

100% to 200% of basge salary.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy —
summary table

The table below sets out the proposed Remuneration Policy
for shareholder approvai at the 2019 AGM

Note that payments may be made under arangements in place
prior to this pohcy becorming effective (including pension, other
benefits and incentives),

The remuneration offered to employees of the Group will be adapted
to reflect local market practice and senionty
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ELEMENT PURPOSE AND LINK OPERATION
TO STRATEGY
Base salary * Reflects the value of the * Reviewed annualfy,
individual and their role normally effective 1 April
» Reflects skills and * Pai in cash on a
expenence over time monthly basis
* Provides an approprate + Pensicnable
level of basic fixed * Benchmarked aganst
income avording companies with similar
excessive nsk ansing charactenstics and
from over rellance on sector comparators
vanable Income
2019 + Incentrises delivery of * Not pensionable
Incentive 2019 strateqgic goals » Dsferral of any award
Plan = Maximum award only In excess of 75% of
{2019 only) payabie for achieving maximum into shares for

demanding targets

two years

Dradend eguivalents may

be payabie on deferred
share awards

MAXIMUM

200% of salary

PERFORMANCE
TARGETS AND RECOVERY

PROVISIONS

The Corrimittee has not Not appiicable
set a maximum level

of salary Increases will

be set n the context of

salary increases amongst

the wider work force

The Committee retains
the discretion to make
ncreases above this level
0 certain circumstances,
for exampie, but not
imrted to.

— Anncrease n the
ndvidual’s scope and
responsibilities

— Alignment to the
external market

- Anncrease to
reflect an indwvidual’s
performance and
deveiopment In the
role, e g where
a new appointment
15 recrurted at a
lower salary level
and 15 awarded
stepped increases

+ Measured over 2019

« Based on maximising
sharehalder vaiue
from divestments
of non-core assets,
achieving stretch
profit and operating
margin targets for the
ongoing Xeim business
and reducing central
overhead costs by the
end of 2019

Clawback
provisions apply

*
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ELEMENT

Annual
bonus

{2020
onwards)

Long term
ncentives

42

PURFOSE AND LINK
TO STRATEGY

* Incentivises annual
detivery of financial and
strategic goals

* Maximum bonus only
payable for achieving
demanding targets

OPERATION

Targets rewiewed annually
Not pensionable

Deferrat of any bonus
over 75% of base

salary into shares for
three years

Dividend eguivalents may
be payable on deferred
share awards

MAXEVLUM

100% of salary

= Aligns to main strategic
objectives of delivering
profit growth and
shareholder return

Annual grant of
condrtional awards or

il cost options

Dwidend equvalents may
be payable on shares to
the extent awards vest

Awards capped at 100% of

salary {200% in exceptional
cIrcumstarnces)

PERFORMANCE
TARGETS AND RECOVERY

PROVISIONS

(3

Normally measured
over a one-year
performance penod

Pramarily based on
Group's annual financial
performance (majonty,
if not afl)

Personal and/or
strategic objectives
(mincrity)

.

Measures for the
following years will
be set out In the
Annual Report on
Remuneration of the
relevant year

Clawback
proviIsions apply

« Normally a three-year
performance period

= Performance 1s based
on financial and/or
share price based
measures [eg EPS
and relative TSR)

» The Committee may
alter the weighting and
targets for each grant
annually If it determines
that it 1s appropriate to
do so

Targets for the following
years wili be set out in
the Annual Beport on
Remuneration

Awards vest as follows.

— Threshold
performance:
25% of award

— Maximurm
perfermance.
100% of award

* Clawback
provisions apply




ELEMENT PURPOSE AND LINK OPERATION PERFORMANCE
TO STRATEGY TARGETS AND RECOVERY
PROVISHINS
Pension * Provides competitive + Defined contributtons Up to 15% of base Not applicabie
retirement benefits made tc the Executive salary, although pension
= Provides an opportunity Director's own pension provision In respect of
for Executive Directors to plan. Cash alternatives future Executive Director
contribute to ther own may aiso be paid appointments will be
retrerment plan aligned to the workforce
where possible
Other * Auds retention and * Executive Directors are There 1$ NoO Maximum Nct applicable
benefits recrurtment provided with private Set at a level which the
medical Insurance Commritee considears 1s
» Other benefits including appropriate in the context
company car allowance of the circumstances of
and car parking may be the role/indmidual and local
provided if considered market practice
appropriate by
the Committee
Share * To provide ahgnment » 50% cf the net of tax 200% of salary Not applicable
ownership of interests between vested LTIP shares
Executive Directors and required to be retained
shareholders until the guideline 1s met
Notes

1 The Annual Repert on Remuneration sels out how the Company implemented the pohcy presented above in 20718 and wilt apply it n 2019

2 Not all employees have a bonus opportunity, and below Executive Director levet bonus opportunities are generally lower Participation in the 2019 1P s
imited to Executve Directors and participation in the LTIP 1s mited to Executive Directors and certain selected senior management Other employees are
elgible to participate n the Company's all employee share plan In general, these differences anse lo ensure remuneration arrangerments are competitive
in the market, together with the fact that remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior executives typically has a greater emphasis on performance

related pay All bonus schemes are discretionary

3 The chece of performance metrics applicable to the 2019 IP reflect Centaur's strategy to simplify the business and maximise shareholder value dunng

2019 while ensuring that there 1s an appropriate focus on the remaining business

4 The chowce of performance metncs applicable to the annual bonus plan reflect the Committee’s belef that any incentive compensation should be

appropnately challenging and pamarily ted te financial measures

5 The TSR and EPS performance conditions applicable to the LTIP were selected by the Committee on the basis that they are consistent with rewarding the

gelivery of long-term raturns to sharehoiders and the Group's financial growth

§ Executwe Dreclors may participate in any all-employee share plan, in ine with HMRGC mits, and to the extent offered
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Reward scenarios

The chart below shows how the composition of each Executive
Drrector's remuneration package vanes at different levels of
perlormance under the policy set out above, as a percentage

of total remuneration opportunity and as a total vaiue. The charts
below reflect the proposed mplementation of the Remuneration
Policy for 2019, and also from 2020 onwards:

2019
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Andnia Vidrer Swag Mukerji
Chuef Executive Officer Chuef Firancial Officer
2020,
1250 [

B Longterm ncentive
WM Annual bonus
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£000

0 .
Mimimurm On-target  Maximum

Minimum  On-arget Maximum

Andna Vidler
Chiet Executive Officer

Swag Mukery
Chief Fingncial Officer
Notes
For 2019-

1. Fixed pay consists of salary from 1 April 2019 The value of benefits and
pension have been estimated

2 Target performance 1s the level of performance required to daliver 50% of
the maximum 2019 iP (see befow)

3 Maximum performance weuld result in a maximum 2019 IP award of 200%
of salary

4 No share price appreciation has been assumed

For 2020 onwards:

-

Fixed pay consists of salary from 1 Apnl 2019, The value of benefits and
pension have been estimated for 2020,

larget performance 1s the level of performance required to deliver 50%
of the maximum bonus and 25% of the maximum LTIP award (see below)

Maximum performance woutd resuft in a maxmum bonus payment of 100%
of salary and full vesting of the maxmum LTIP award (100% of salary)

No share pnce appreciation has been assumed.

nN
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Approach to recruitment and promotions
The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would

be set In accordance with the terms of the Company's prevailing
approved remuneration policy at the time of appomntrment and weuld
take into account the skills and expenence of the indmduat, the
market rate for a candidate of that experence and the Importance
of secunng the relevant mdwvidual.

On recruttment, salary may (but need not necessarily) be set below
the normal market rate, with phased increases as the executive
gains expenence Pension provision will be aligned to that provided
1o the general workforce where possible Incentive awards would
be no more than set out N the Palicy table above in addition, on
recrutment the Company may compensate for amounts foregone
from a previous employer {using Listing Rule 8 4.2 f necessary)
taking nto account the guantum foregone and, as far as reasonably
practicable, the extent to which performance condions apply, the
form of award and the tme lett to vesting

For an internal promotion, any variable pay element awarded n
respect of the prnior role would be allowed to pay out according
to s terms Any other ongoing remuneration obligations existing
prior to appointment may continue, provided that they are put tc
shareholders for approval at the sarliest opportunity

The Committee may agree that the Company will meet relocation,
legal fees or ncidental costs where appropriate.

Service contracts and loss

of office payments

The current Executive Directors have service contracts which have
a 12-moenth notice period, dated 30 October 2013 for Andria Vidler
and 21 September 2016 for Swag Muker). In respect of these
service contracts, at the Beard's discretion, a payment in heu of
any unexpired notice may be paid, comprsing an amount for base
salary, pensicn and any accrued holiday entittement. The amount
may be paid in one lump sum or In two nstalments and mitigation
will be appled to the second instaiment. if termination 1s within six
months of a change of control, a payment equal to 12 months’
salary, pension and accrued holiday pay 1s payable Where

the Company terminates the contract in any other manner,

any damages shall be caiculated in accordance with common

law principles including those relating to mitigation of loss.
Notwithstanding the above, the Company is entitied to terminate
employment without compensation, damages or payment in heu of
notice N specified circumstances (e.g. sencus misconduct),

An annual Incentive will normally be payable for the penod of the
financial year served, although it will normally be pro-rated and paid
at the normal pay-out date Any share-based entitiements granted
to an Executive Directar under the Company's share plans will be
determined based on the relevant plan ruies However, in certan
prescribed crcumstances, such as death, disabilty, retirerment or
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other circumnstances at the discretion of the Committee, 'good Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and

leaver’ status may be applied For good leavers, awards will . .
normally vest at the vesting date set out In the refevant award, Non-Executive Directors

subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance condions The Company Chairman’s fee 1s determined by the Remuneration
at the time, and reduced pro-rata to reflect the proportion of the Committee (other than the Company Chairman, If he sits on the
performance penod actually served. However, the Committee has Comrmittes) The fees for the Non-Executive Directors are set
discretion to determine that awards vest at cessation of employment by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directors. The table
or to dis-apply tme pro-rating summanses the key aspects of the Remuneration Policy for the

Charman and Non-Executive Directors,

in addition to the above, cutplacement support may be provided
and legal fees or any other minor Incidental costs which are
considered appropriate may be payable,

ELEMENT PURPOSE AND LINK OPERATION PERFORMANCE
TO STRATEGY TARGETS & RECOVERY
PROVISIONS
Charman and Reflect time commitments * (Cash fee normally paid There 1s no prescnbed Not applicable
Non-Executive  and responsibities of on a monthly basis maximum annual fee or
Directors fees each role, in Ine with » Rermbursement of fee Increase
those provided by similarl
o :c:rr\:;)amesy rarly ncidental expenses The Committee and
where appropnate Board are guided by the
= Reviewed penodically general INcrease In the

Non-Executive market,
but may decide to award
a lower or higher fee
ncrease to recognise,

for example, an iNcrease
in the scale, scope or
responsibiity of the role or
take account of relevant
market movements

Letters of appcintment

The Charrman and Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment with the Company, which are for an initial three-year penod with the
option for an extension for a further three-year pericd, and provide for a notice penod of one month. All of the current Directors have chosen
to submit to annual re-election at each AGM

Current ietter of Current letter of appointment

First appointed as a director appoiitment commencement date expiry date

Netl Johnson o ) 3 January 2018 3 January 2018 3 January 2021
Willam Eccleshare 1 July 2016 1 Jduly 2016 1 July 2018
Robert Boyle 8 January 2010 8 January 2019 19 March 2020
Rebecca Miskin 13 January 2011 14 January 2017 14 January 2020
Coln Jones 1 September 2018 1 September 2018 1 September 2021

While Robert Boyle reached ning-year tenure on the Board in January 2019, the Board and Nominaticn Comimittee recogrise the need for
stability and acknowledge the contnbution, continuty and experience that Robert, as a long-serving Non-Executive Director, Srings to the
Board and the support he provides  As such, Robert has agreed to continue as Charr of the Audit Committes for up to 12 months and

1s still considered by the Board to be independent

Approach to fees on recruitment
For the appointment of a new Charman or Non-Executive Director, the fee would be set in accordance with the approved remuneration
policy in force at that tme
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Implementation of the Remuneration Policy for the year ending 31 December 2019

A summary of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied duning the year ending 31 December 2019 Is set out below
The new Direclors” Remuneration Policy, f approved by shareholders will apply from the 2013 AGM

Base salary
The Executive Directors' current and proposed salanes are as follows:
From As at
14apni 2019 1 Aprit 2018 %
(£) {£} change
Andria Vidler £380,744 £373,278 2%
Swagatam Mukerj £260,1C0 £255,000 2%

The 2% salary increases awarded to the Executive Directors from 1 April 2019 are 10 line with the general workforce increase

Pension and benefits
Pension and benefit provision will be in fine with the policy

2019 Incentive Plan

Subject to shareholder approval, the Committee intends to operate the 2018 IP, which 1s effectively an annual bonus capped at 200% of
salary with partial share deferral, for the Executive Directors for 2019 The key terms of the 2019 IP are as follows:

= Awards will complement the normat 100% of salary bonus and 100% of salary LTIP for 2019,

« 50% of tha award 15 based on maxinising shareholder value from the divestrent of non-core assets,

25% of the award s based on achieving stretch profit targets for the ongoing Xeim business for 2019,
25% of the award 1s based on reducing central overhead costs by the end of 2019 (stretch targets),
» Upto 75% of 2019 IP awards will be paid out In cash following the end of the 2019 financial year,

= Any amount earned In excess of 75% of the maximum 2019 P awards will be deferred into Centaur Media Plc shares for twa years from
the date that the cash element i1s paid, and

« Market and best practice compiiant leaver and change of control provisions will apply

Further details of the terms of the 2019 IP are set out In the Notce of AGM

Annual bonus and LTIPs for 2019

The 2019 IP will complement the normal annual bonus and normal LTIP awards for 2019. Future awards under the LTIP will only be made
if and when there is clear evidence that the strategy I1s being achieved and there 1s more visibility over the shape, structure and financial
performance metrics for the remaimng business

Fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The fees for the Company Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors from 1 Apnl 2019 are as follows.

From As at

1 April 2019 1 Aprg 2018 %

(£} £) change

Nail Johnson {appointed 3 January 2018) 125,000 125,000 0%
Wilham Eccleshare 43,775 43,775 0%
Robert Boyle 43,775 43,775 0%
Rebecca Miskin 43,775 43,775 0%
Colin Jones {appomted 1 September 2018) 43,775 - 0%




Remuneration received by Directors for the year (audited)

Diractors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was as follows.

 GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Salary
and fees Benefits Bonus Fension LTiIP Totat
(£ (£ {£) (£) (€} (£}
Executive
Andna Vidler 2018 371,448 17,360 - 40,024 - 428,832
2017 365,959 18,135 135,000 39,432 - 558,526
Swagatam Mukerj
fapponted 1 October 2016) 2018 253,750 8,416 - 19,686 - 281,852
2017 250,000 8,240 125,000 22.627 - 405,867
‘Non-Executive
MNell Jehnson
{appointed 3 January 2018) 2018 125,000 - - - - 125,000
2017 - - - - - -
willam Eccleshare 2018 43,775 - - - - 43,775
2017 43,775 - - - - 43,775
Robert Boyle 2018 43,775 - - - - a3grs
2017 43,775 - - - - 43,775
Rebecca Miskin 2018 43,775 - - - T 43,775
2017 43,775 - - - - 43,775
Coln Jones S
{apponted 1 September 2018} 2018 14,592 - - - - 14,592
2017 - - - - - -
Former Directors T S
Ronald Sandler 2018 - - - - - -
resigned 3 January 2018) 2017 125,000 - - - - 125,000
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Annual bonus for the year (audited)
2018 Bonus

The maximurm annual bonus for the CEQ and CFQ for 2018 was 100% of salary The annual honus was based on a mix of Group financial
performance targets and personal objectives  Detalls of performance against these financial targets and personal objectives are provided in

the tables below:

Weighting
{% of max) Reference CEQ CFO
% of max % of salary % of max % of salary
“Group Aduusted? Operating 40% Table 1 0% 0% 0% 0%
Profit {£m)
Group Revenue (Cm) 40% Table 2 0% 0% 0% 0%
Personal objectives i 20%  Table 3a and 3b 100% 20% 100% 20%
Total 100% 20% 20% 20% 20%
Table 1: Group Adjusted? Operating Profit (40% of maximum potential)
2018 Actual
Group Percentage
2018 Group Adjusted Adjusted of maximum

Operating Profit % of this part of the Operating bonus payabie
Performance Targets bonus payable Profit {max 100%)
Start to earn <E£71m 0%
Target £7 1m 40% £5.2m 0%
Maximum £9.2m ) 100%
Table 2: Group Revenue (40% of maximum potential)
Percentage
2018 Actuai of maximum
2018 Revenue % of this part of the Group bonus payable
Performance Targets bonus payable Revenue {max 100%)
Start to earn - < £77 8m 0%
Target €77 8m 40% £70 5m 0%
Maximum £101 1m 100%
Table 3a: CEO Personal Objectives
Percentage of bonus
far this part payable
Obrective Commentary {max 100%}

Identify, evaluate and executs acquisiticn opportunities that
underpin the 2020 ambrtion for The Lawyer/Marketing

EII’;D“W the Group throiJgh dispesing of smaller
non-core assets

Grow customer LTV by g?éwmg revenue per chent and
bullding forward bookings

identify and delver reductions in central overhead costs
and improve operating margin

Build Centaur, reputation as a content and insight led
business information group capable of creating valuable,
multi-dimensional end to end client solutions

The evolution of the strategy guring the year
has meant that some of these objectives
changed and other new strategic objectives
were infroduced

To the extent these objectives were
measurable, and also taking into account the
mew objectives, the Committes has determined
that 100% of the personal cbjectives

were achieved.

However, the CEO has undertaken to wave
any entitlement to a bonus under her personal
objectives for 2018 on the grounds that this
would be nconsistent with the calculation of
bonuses for other members of the Executive
Comrmittee and senicr management team,
which were based wholty on financral
performance.

100%




Table 3b: CFO Personal Objectives

Percentage of bonus
for this part payabie

Objective Commentary (max 100%)
Lead M&A activity re acquisition evaluation and The evelution of the strategy dunng the year
transaction execution has meant that some of these objectives
Prepare-lgé acy busmesses for dsposal ——  changed and other new strategic objectives
were Introduced
. To the extent these objectives were measurable
Simplify the Group through disposing of smailer and also taking Into account the new objectives,
non-core assets the Committee has determined that 100% of the
Develop pricing strategy for prionity brands personal objectives were achieved
However, the CFO has undertaken to waive 100%

Identify and delrver reductions in central overhead costs and
IMprove margn

Build Centaur reputation as a content and insight led
business information group capable of creating valuabie,
multi-dimenstonal end-te-end client solutions

2017 Bonus

any entitlement 1o a bonus under his personal
cbjectives for 2018 on the grounds that this
would be inconsistent with the calculation of
bonuses for other members of the Executive
Committee and senior ranagerment team,
which were based wholly on financal
performance.

In response to shareholder feedback on the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration we are providing agditional information on the

2017 Bonus calculation

The 2017 bonus targets and payouts in respect of the targets were as follows

Actual
Target profit Bonus Mechanism profit Payout
Profit Before Tax £6 4m The bonus was structured so that for £6 8m*
performance above target, 50% of the excess
profit above target created a bonus poci for the gEg ggg'ggg
Executive Directors and Executive Committee, ’ '
to be shared at the Committee’s discretion
* After charging the cost of the 2017 Executive Director and Executive Committee bonus awards
In respect of the strategic and personal targets
Committee Assessment of
Target Applies Performance Payout
Reshape the portfolio for the acquistion CEO and CFC MarketMakers fully integrated
of MarketMakers and performing well
Complete the post-sale separation CEO and CFO Post-sale separa-mon
of Home Interest completed smoothly
Improve the revenue mix and reduce the CEO and CFO Sgnificant progress made
Company's exposure to gnnt revenue voiatility
Improve cash collection ’ CEO and CFQ Significant progress made
? © Pros CEQ £75,000
— CFC. £65,000
Make progress against the operational CEQ and CFO Significant progress made
improvement plan
Drive customer focus and ensure that CEO Signfficant progress made
content was ennched in crder to enable
further monetisation
Improve cash management in the business, CFO Sigaificant progress made

achieving industry average KPls whilst reducing

the costs of the finance overhead

Performance aganst the profit before tax, strategic and personal targets resuited 1n total bonuses of £135,000 for Andna Vidler and

£125,000 for Swagatam Mukerp for 2017
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Vesting of 2016 LTIP awards
With regpect to the LTIP awards granted to Executive Directars in 2016 which will lapse in 2019, vesting 1s based 50% on EPS and 50%
on relative TSR for the three-year performance penod to 31 December 2018, Further detalls relating to these awards are provided In the

table below:

Actual Cutcome

Performance Condition Weighting Targets {to 31 December 2018} Vesting
EPS 50% 0% vesting below 6.5 pence Below threshold EPS 0% ;
25% vesting at 6 5 pence
100% vesting at 10.5 pence
Straight-ine vesting batween
these points l
Relative TSR vs FTSE 50% 0% vesting below median Below median 0%
SmallCap mdex (excluding 25% vesting at medhan
investment trusts) 100% vesung at upper guartile
Straight-ine vestng between '
these points
N 0%

Total LTIP vesting
As none of the performance tests for the 2016 LTIP awards has been satisfied, awards granted under this LTIP to the CEQ and CFC will not
vest and will lapse on the vesting date i 2019 as follows

Number of
shares under Numper of Market price Value
Director award Vesting shares vesting Date of vesting on vesting £000
Andna Vidler 674,184 0% o] 30 March 2019 n/a -
573,384 0% Q 4 Qctaober 2019 n/a -

Swagatam Mukery

Grant of LTIP awards in 2018

The Executive Directors received awards, structured as nil cost options, under the 2016 LTIP durng 2018 in kne with the policy set out in the
Directors’ Remunaration Policy. Details of these awards are set out below:

Number of

shares under Face value aof Performance
Dwweclor Award date award Basis awards Performance condition penod
Andna Vidier 6 Apnl 2018 740,807 100% of £365,959 Vesting will be determined by 1 January 2018
base salary absclute EPS in the final year of the  to 31 December
Swagatam Mukerj 6 Apr 2018 506,072 100% of £250,00p  Performance penod and relative 2020

TSR over the performance period.

base salary

The performance conditions for these awards are set out below’
% of shares which will vest f

Performance condition Waighting Measurement pengd  Targets target achieved
EPS 50% Year ended EPS of 4 15p 25%
31 December 2020 - o ) -
EPS of 7.04p or more 100%

Between 4 15pand 7 04p  Straight ine basis between
25% and 100%

Relative TSR vs FTSE SmaliCap ~ 50%  1January 2018t Median T 25%
ndex (excluding investmeant trusts) at 31 December 2020 . .
1 January 2018 Upper guartiie 100%
Between median and Straight line basis between
~ upper quam[e 25% and 100%

The TSR slerment will only vest f there has been sustained mprovement in the Company's underying' financiaé performance over the
performance penod

Andna Vidier purchased 3,838 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan The Company matched these shares
on & 1 for 2 basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resuitng in 1,817 matching shares beng awarded n the year

Swag Muker) purchased 3,833 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan The Company matched these shares
cn a 1 for 2 basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resufting n 1,917 matching shares being awarded in the year
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Board changes and payments for loss of office (audited)

There were no changes to the executve Board during 2018 In respect of the Non-Executive Directors, Neil Johnson replaced Ron Sandter
as Chairman from 3 January 2018 and Coin Jones was appeinted as a Non-Executive Director on 3 September 2018 No payments for
loss of office were paid or are payable to Ron Sandler

Payments to past Directors (audited)
Consistent with a fong-standing arrangement, Graham Sherren, former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, was pad £3,000 dunng the
year for advisory services performed

Directors’ shareholding and share interests {audited)

Share ownership plays a key role in the alignment of our executives with the interests of shareholders The Executive Directors are
expected to buiid up and maintain a shareholding n the Company equal to 100% of salary, and 200% of salary from the date of the 2018
AGM. Where an executive does not meet this guideline, they are required to retain at least 50% of the vested shares net of tax under the
Company's LTIP until the guideling 1s met

The tabies below set out detalls of Executive Directors™ outstanding share awards under LTIFP schemes {which will vest in future years,
subject to performance and continued service) Under each scheme the exercise price 1s Znil

Share
At At price on
3 December 31 December Date of Exercise date of
Executive 2017 Granted Lapsed 2018 award Performance period period grant
Andna Vidier 493,129 - 493129 - 26/3/15  1/1/15-31/12/17 26/03/18 - 25/09/18 72 05p
674,194" - - 674,194 30/3/16  1/1/16 - 31/12/18 30/03/19 — 29/09/19 52 7p
802,982 802,982 24/417  1/1/17 - 311218 24/04/20 - 23/10/20 45.8p
- 740,807 - 740,807 6/4/18  1A/18 - 31/12/20 06/04/21 — 06/10/21 50 2p
1,970,305 740,807 493,129 2217883 000
Swagatam
Muker 573,384 - - 573,384 4/10/16  1/1/16 - 31/12/18 04/10/19 - 03/04/20 43.6p
548,546~ - - 548,546 24/417  1/A/17 - 311219 24/04/20 - 23/10/20 45.8p
. e - 598,072_ - 506,072 B/4/18  1/118-31/12/20 06/04/21 — 05;{_1 Q‘{?l B 50 2p
1121940 506,072 - 1628012

* As detaled above, the LTIP awards granted to Andria Vidler and Swagatam Muker) in 2016 will lapse 1in 2019 as a result of the threshold  EPS and TSR targets not being met

The table below sets out the number of shares held or potentially held ©y Directors including therr connected persons where refevant)

Sharehaolding

guideline  Interests in share
interests i ordinary shares achieved? schemes Total
31 December 31 December
2017 2018 LTIP
Executive
Andria Vidler 159,438 185,190 Not yet 2,217,983 A2,.403.173
Swagatam Muker) 35,508 80,289 Not yet 1.828,012 A1,708,301
Non-Executive
Neil Jehnson {appointed 3 January 2018) N/A 100,000 N/A - 100,000
Willam Eccleshare - - /A, - -
Robert Boyle 117,037 117,037 NAA - 117,037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800 14,800 N/A - 14,800
Coln Jones {appointed 1 Septernber 2018} N/A - N/A - -

~includes LTIPs granted in 2016 which will Japse in 2019 (see above)
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Performance graph

The graph below shows the TSR of Centaur Media Plc compared to the performance of the FTSE SmaliCap index {excluding investment
trusts) over the tast nine and a half years. This comparator has been chosen on the basis that tt is the index against which performance for
the purpose of shate awards matde uder the LTIP 1 asgessed Owing to the change 10 the financlal year end in 2014, there was no financial
yvear ended 30 June 2014 and, instead, TSR performance for the 18 months ended 31 December 2014 1s shown.

The graph shows the value of £100 invested in Centaur Media Plc on 1 July 2009 compared with the value of £100 wvested in the FTSE
SmallCap index {excluding investment trusts) at each financial penod end

Total Shareholder Return Source Datastream {Thompson Reuters)
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History of remuneration for the CEQ
The table below sets out the CEQ singla figure of total remuneration over the past ning and a half years

Long-term

Total Annual bonus incentives

Period ending CEO remuneration {% of max) {% of max)
31 December 2018 Andrna Vidier £430.859 0 0
31 December 2017 Andna Vidler £5568,526 37 0
31 December 2016 Andria Vidler £422,605 o] Q
31 December 2015 Andna Vidler £416,607 2 N/A
31 December 2014 Andra Vidier £670.077 56 N/A
{18 month penod) (from 14 November 2013) £514,920 0 o
30 June 2013 Geoff Wilmot £514,920 0
30 June 2012 Geoff Wilmot £3683.3217 0
30 June 2011 Geoff Wilmot £568,673 58 0
£450,180 45 Q

30 June 2010 Geoff Wilmot

' Excludes £384,704 termination and contractual notice payment as detailed in 30 June 2813 Report and Accounts
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Change in the CEO’s remuneration
The tatle below shows the movernent in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the CEQ between the current and previous financial year

compared 1o all employees of the Company.

Element of remuneration % change
Salary” CEO 2%
Employees 20%
Benefits S - CEO (4%
Employees (16)%
Annual bonus CEC (100y%
Employees (BS)%
* The increase in employees' salary of 20% 1s purely;;;r;(;u(;;;;;h; inclusion of a full year of MarketMakers, salary costs versus only 5 months in 2017
Gn a hike-Tor-like basis (assuming fuli year salary cost and a full year average headcount for MarketMakers in 2017) the average employee salary increase 1s 2%
Relative importance of the spend on pay
The following table sets out the percentage change in distnbutions to shareholders and employee remuneration Gosts
2018 2017 % Change
Employee remuneration costs £35.3m £30.9m 14%
£4.7m £4.4m %

Dividends paid and share repurchases

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s responsible for monitoring, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board at least annually on the
broad policy for the remuneration of the Executive Drectors, the Charman, Company Secretary and management tier below the Board.

It also determines thew iIndividual remuneration gackages, including pension arrangements, bonuses and alt incentive schemes and the
determination of targets for any performance-related pay schemes operated by the Group. In addmion, the Committee reviews pay and
conditions across the workforce andg takes this into account when considenng executive remuneration Minutes of Committee meetings are

crrculated to the Board once they have been approved by the Committes.

External advisors

The Rermuneration Committee has access to independent advice where it considers t appropnate During the year, the Committee sought
advice relating to executive remuneration from FIT Remuneration Consultants ('FIT’), whe were appointed by the Committee The Committee
1s satisfled that the advice recaived from FIT in relation to executive remuneration matters during the year under review was objective

and independent FIT 1s a member of the Remuneraten Consuitants Group and abides by the Remuneration Consuitants Group Code

of Conduct The fees charged by FIT for the year amounted to £26,847.

Statement of shareholder voting
The voting results for the Directors’ Remuneration Policy {20168 AGM) and last year's Directors’ Remuneration Report were as follows:

MNumber of votes Number of votes against Number Number

for (and percentage (and percentage of votes of votes

Resolution of votes cast) of votes cast) cast withheld

Approval of Directors” Remuneration Policy in 2016 107,205,929 (99 9%) 91,798 (01%) 107,297,727 12,250

Approval of Directors’ Remuneration Report in 2018 108,484 534 (90 1%) 11,873,080 (99%) 120,358,514 13,539
Approval

The Board of Directors has approved this Remuneration Committee Report, mcluding both the Directors’ Remuneration FPolicy and the
Annual Repart on Remuneration

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

COLIN JONES

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

19 March 2019
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsble for prepanng the Annuai Report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable faw and regulation.

Comgpany law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the law the Drectors have prepared the
Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
Company tinancial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {FRSs) as adopted by the European Union,
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that penod. In prepanng the financial
statements, the Directors are required to

» select surtable accounting policies and then apply thern consistenthy:

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Group financial staterments and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Uinion have been followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

prepare the financial staternents on the going concern basis unless it 18 inappropriate to presume that the Group and Company wil
continue I business

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulantes

The Crectars are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and expiain the Group and Company's
transactions and dsclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Gompany and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report compiy with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial staternents, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of the Company’s website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing tne
preparation and dissermnation of inancial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Directors’ confirmations
The Directors congider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and Company’s pasition and performance, business model and strategy

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Board of Directors on pages 24 and 25 confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge.

= the Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and tarr view of the assets, habities, firanciat postion and loss of the Company,

« the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accerdance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unicn, give a true and
far view of the assets, kabiities, financial posttion and ioss of the Group; and

= the Directors' Report includes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the posttion of the Group and
Company, together with a description of the principai nsks and uncertainties that it faces.

In the case of each Director 10 office at the date the Directars’ Report s approved.

» 50 far ag the Director 15 aware, there 1s ne relevant audit information of which the Group and Company’s auditors are unaware; and

» they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
inferrmation and to establish that the Group and Company’s auditors are aware of that miormation,

By order of the Board

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

19 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the members of Centaur Media PLC

Opinion

in our opinion, Centaur Media Ple’s Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

»* give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the Group's loss and the
Group's and the Company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

= have been properly prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union
and, as regards the company's financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

* have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financral statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements, includeg within the Annual Report and Financial Statements {the "Annual Report™), which

compnse the Consclidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the Consolidated statement of

comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company cash flow staterrents, and the Consolidated and Company statements of changes

in equity for the year then ended; the summary of significant accounting policies, and the notes to the financial statements

Qur opimien s consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audtt n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law Our responsibilities
under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Audrtors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report We
beleve that the audrt ewdence we have obtained 1s sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, which inciudes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as apphcable to Iisted publc interest entrties, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities N accordance with these requirements

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to
the Group or the Company

We have provided no non-audit services to the Group or the Company 1n the pericd from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018

Our audit approach

Overview
* Overall Group materiality £245,000 (2017 £310,000), based on 5% of Adjusted profit before tax {as presented

on the face of the consotidated statement of comprehensive income}

Marnn - » Qverail Company materiality £222,000 {2017 £300,000), based on 1% of Total Assets and capped to 90% of
Group materiahty

Audr Scope » The two significant components of the Group were based in the UK and have both been audited by the UK

audrt team

K;vﬂudﬂ * Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (Group)

atters

impairment of iInvestment in subsidiares (Company).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the members of Centaur Media PLC

The scope of our audit
As part of designing cur audit, we deterrmmned matenality and assessed the risks of matenal msstatement in the financial statements

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities. including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and ndustry, we dentified that the principal nsks of non-comphance with laws and regulations
related to GDPR, health and safety i refation to events and tax, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
matenal effect on the financrai statements. We aiso considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation

of the financiai statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated managerment's incentives and opportunities for fraudutent
mantputation of the financial staterments (including the nsk of ovemde of controls), and determined that the prmcipal nsks were related to
posting inappropnate jourmal entries to Increase the expenses allocated as adjusting items, posting inappropriate journal entries to Increase
revenue and management bias in accounting estimates Audt procedures performed by the Group engagement teams included:

* enquires with management and the Group's Internal legal teams, including consideration of known or suspected Instances of fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations;

understanding and evaluating the design and implementation of management’s controls designied to prevent and detect rreguianties,
Including whistieblowing arrangements;

Inspecting management reports and Board minutes in relation to any regulatory matters,

understanding and testing accounting estimates, n particular reviewing management estimates and comparing them to erther historic
accuracy or events after the balance sheet date, and

ldentifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations, postings by unexpected
users and key word searches

There are inherent imitations in the audht procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected n the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it Also, the risk of

not detecting a matenal misstatement due to fraud 1s higher than the nsk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through coliusion.

We aid not identify any key audit matters relating to Irregulanties, ncluding faud As in all of our audits we also addressed the nsk of
ranagerment overnde of internal controis, including testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that
represented a nsk of materal misstatement due to fraud

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audr of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of matenal misstatement {whether or not due to fraud)
dentified by the audrtors, inciuding those which had the greatest effect on. the overall audtt strategy, the allocation of resources in the audr,
and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon,
were addrassed in the context of our audt of the financial statements as a whole, and i1 forming cur opirion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters This 1s not a complete st of all nsks 1dentfied by our audt.



Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets

Refer to page 34 (Audit Committee Report},
page 81 (Key accounting assumptions,
estimates and judgements) anc page 94
{Note 11)

Determining f an impairment charge Is
required for goodwill and mtangible assets
involves significant judgements about the
ongoing structure of the business, future
results and cash flows of the business,
including forecast growth in future revenues
and EBITDA marging, as well as determining
an appropnate discount factor and fong
term growth rate Market conditions remain
challenging and performance has varied
compared to expectations for certain of the
Group’s businesses,

In irght of these factors and the judgements
involved and due to goodwill imparrment
charges being recognised in prior years, and
the charge In the current year of £13 1m, we
consider this to be a key audit matter,

Management aggregates busmesses

into Cost Generating Units (CGUs} which
represent the level at which the cash

flows of the businesses {and gocdwill) are
monitored and therefore this is the level at
which management performs its iImparment
assessment

Management used a Value in Use (VIU)
model, which included the factors and
Judgements referred to above, to compute the
present value of forecast future cash flows for
each CGU which was then compared to the
carrying value of the net assets of each CGU
(including goodwill and ntangible assets) to
determine If there was an imparment. Due to
the additional complexity ansing from certan
businesses being marketed for divestment
post year end multiple scenarios of the VIU
model were prepared to assess the impact
on the performance of the businesses arising
from different potential outcomes (Group)

We checked and confirmed that the allocation of CGlUs was consistent with internal
management monrtorng and inciuded. Marketing {Xeim), Financtal and Professional
{consisting of The Lawyer, Human Sesources, Travel & Meetings and Engineering).

We reviewed the judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure that these included
appropnate consideration of histoncal varances and uncertain market conditions We
also considered the appropriateness of sensitiity disclosures prowvided in the financial
statements, to explain that impairment amounts would not anse from reasonably
possible changes to the model's key assumptions

We evaluated the Board approved cash flow forecasts for each CGU, and understood
the process by which these were calculated We also obtaned evidence of the Board's
approval of these forecasts to 2021

As part of our assessment we considered,

» the Directors’ key assumptions including the potential tirming of the sale of certan

businesses If appropnate, overhead levels, including the allocation of central

overheads and any potential reductions, revenue and EBITDA growth rates used in

the cash flow forecasts by comparing them to Board approved budgets, fustonical

results and economic and industry forecasts;

the vanous forecast scenancs as part of the divestment plan, including sensitnaties

particularly surrounding potential cost savings to be achieved;

» the discount rate applied, by assessing the cost of capnai for the Group and
comparable organisations;

» the Long Term Growth Rate (LTGR) appled, by companng management’s rate to
forecast long term GOP growth in the UK and industry growth reports,

« the calculation of CGU net assets and ensured that these were included as part of
the impairment testing; and

= any indicative offers for businesses that had been receved from potential purchasers.

Qur work dentified that the LTGR and the discount rate applied n management'’s

models were outside our expected range. However, sensitivities showed that amending

these assumptions to bring therm into our expected ranges did not cause any addrtional

imparment in any CGU

With regard to the above procedures, all CGGUs showed headroom above the carrying
value of the relevant CGU net assets and that no further goodwill imparrment was
required

We also evaluated the disclosure of the sensitivity analyses performed by management
(as set out In Note 11). Wa determined the results of these sensitivities are appropriately
disclosed and the sensitivities present a farr reflection of reasonably possible changes
to assumptions used In the Vaiue in Use models

We agree with management’s assessment of goodwill impairment and the disclosures
that have been presented
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of investment in
subsidiaries
Refer to pages 96 to 87 (Note 13)

1AS 36 Impairment of assets requires
management to consider whether there are
any indicators of imparment at the year end.

The Company has investments in subsidianes
with a totai carmying amount of £125.8m after
recognising a £13 1m impairment in the year

An imparrment has been recognised as the
Value In Use (VIU} modei used to compute the
present value of forecast future cash flows for
each business did not support the carrying
vaiue of nvestments

Management used a Value n Use [VIU) modet
to compute the present value of forecast
future cash flows for each of the Group’s
businesses which was then compared to the
carrying vahg of the undertying imvestments

Due to the additional complexity ansing
from certain businesses being marketed for
divestment post year end multiple scenanos
of the VIU model were prepared 1o assess
the impact on the performance and resulting
valuations of the businesses arising from
different potential outcomes

We consider this a key audit matter gven the
size of the balances, the divestment plans
and the signficant judgements and estimates
involved to determine whether the carrying
value of the Investments i1s approprate,

(Company)

How we tailored the audit scope

We considered management's assessment of indicators of imparrment and whether the
actual Impairment recognised in 2018 1s appropnate.

Factors considered In our assessment were:

» the results of the VIU maodel used for the Impatrment test over goodwill, referred to
above, and a review of the assumptions nchluded withen the madel;

= any indicative offers that had been received from potential purchasers, and
* the market caprtalisation of the Group compared to the investment carrying vafue.

As aresult of these considerations, nciuding the facters above, we challenged
management on therr assessment of impairment and their inmal assessment was
updated to reflect an imparment charge of £13 1m

We reviewed the judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure that these ncluded
appropnate consideration of historical vanances and uncertain market conditions. We
also considered the appropriateness of disclosures provided in the financial statements,
1o explain imparment amounts This mvolved evaluating the Board approved cash

flow forecasts for each business, and understanding the process by which these were
prepared We also obtaned evidence of the Board's approval of these forecasts

to 2021

As part of owr assessment we considered

the Directors’ key assumptions including the potential iming,  appropnate, of

the sale of Financial and Professional businesses, overhead levels, including the
allocation of central overheads and any potential reductions, tevenue and EBITDA
growth rates used in the cash flow forecasts, by comparing them to Board approved
budgets, historical results, and economic and industry forecasts,

» the vanous forecast scenarios as part of the divestment plan, Including sensitivities
particularly surrounding the growth included in the forecasts and potential cost
savings to be achieved,

the discount rate appled, by assessing the cost of capital for the Group and
comparabie organmsatons,

the Long Term Growth Rate (LTGR) applied, by comparing managerment's rate to
forecast long term GDP growth In the UK and industry growth reports; and

= any indicative offers for businesses that had been received from potential purchasers
QOur work identified that the LTGR and the discount rate applied In management'’s
models were outside our expected ranges However, sensitvities showed that
amenaing these assumptions to bring it 1Nt our expected ranges did not cause any
further mpairment

We agree with management's assessment rgsulting in imparment of £13 1m and
that the disclosures in the financial statements as set out N Note 13 surrounding the
impairment are appropriate.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry i1 which they operate.

The Group maintains all of its books and records of its operations in the London head office with the exception of the MarketMakers
ncorporated Limited entity which was acquired in 2017 which 1s managed from its Portsmouth office Two components have been
identified" MarketMakers Incorporated entfty and the remaining Group companies

Both components require full scope audits as they are financaily significant

The Group audt team performed audit procedures aver bath components,



Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of matenality, We set certain quantitative thresholds for materality, These, together
with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of cur audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audrt procedures on
the Individual financial statement ine tems and disclosures and 1n evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate
on the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whaole as follows.

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Overall materality £245,000 (2017 £310,000) £222,000 (2017 £300,000)
How we 5% of Adusted profit before tax {as presernted on the face of the 1% of Total Assets and capped to
determined it consolidated statement of comprehensive income) 90% of Group materiality
Rationale for We believe that Adjusted profit before tax provides us with a consistent Based on 1% of Total Assets,
benchmark apphed pencd on pencd basis for determining matenality and eliminates the capped t0 90% of Group

disproporticnate effect of a smalt number of tems on the profit before tax matenaity
and s a measure of the Group's core business performance

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we aliocated a matenality that 1s less than our overall group materalty The range
of matenalty allocated across components was between £ 135,000 and £232,000.

We agreed with the Audit Cormmmuttee that we would report to thern rmisstaternents dentified duning our audit above £12,250 (Group audit)
{2017 £15,000) and £12,000 (Company audit) (2017, £15,000} as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualtatve reasons.

Going concern
In accordance with 1SAs (UK} we report as follows.

Reporting obligation Outcome

We are required to report If we have anything matenal to add or  We have nothing matenal to add or to draw attention to
draw attention to in respect of the directors’ staternent in the
financial staterments about whether the directors considered
It appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in prepanng the financial statements and the directors’
wdentification of any matenal uncertanties to the group’s and
the company's ability 1o continue as a gong concern over a
perod of at least twelve months from the date of approval of
the financial statements

We are required to report f the directors’ statement refating to We have nothing to report.
Gaoing Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) 1s
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtaned in the audit

However, becausa not all future events or conditions can oe
predicted, this statement 1s not a guarantee as to the group’s and
company’s ability to continue as a going concern For example, the
terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the European
Union, which is currently due 1o oceur on 29 March 2018, are not
clear, and it 15 difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on
the Company’s trade, customers, suppliers and the wider economy

Reporting on other information
The other information comprsas all of the information n the Annual Report cther than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon
The directors are responsible for the other information Gur opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and,

accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion o, except to the extent otherwise explcitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other Information and, in deoing so, consider whether
the other iInformation 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we dentify an apparent materal inconsistency or material misstaternent, we are required to perform procedures to
conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstatement of the financial statemsnts or a material misstatement of the other information If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities

With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors” Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included
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Based on the responsibiities descnbed above and our work undertaken in the course of the audt, the Companies Act 2006 (CA08), ISAs
{UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authortty {FCA) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below
{required by ISAs (UK} urless otherwise stated),

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opimon, based on the work undertaken n the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2018 15 consistent with the financiai statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements. (CACGE)

In ight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and theirr environment obtained in the course of the audtt, we did
not dentify any material rmsstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report (CAOB)

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken m the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement (page
29 tc 32) about internal controds and nisk managemeant systems In relation to financial reporting processes and about share capttal structures
n complance with rules 7 2 5 and 7 2 6 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the FCA {"DTR") s consistent
with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements {CAQ6)

In hght of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and therr ermironrment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in this information. (CAOB)

In our opinien, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement
{pages 29 to 32) with respect to the company's corporate governance code and practices and about its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and therr committess complies withrules 7 22, 7 23 and 7 2 7 of the DTR {CAQG)

We have nothing to report arising from our responsitbiity to report if a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the
Company. (CAQE)

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the group and of the principal risks that would threaten the
solvency or liquidity of the group
We have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to regarding

* The Directors' confirmation on page 18 of the Annual Report that they have carred out a robust assessment of the principal nsks facing
the group, including those that would threaten ts business model, future performance, solvency or iguidity

» The disclosures in the Annual Report that descnbe those nsks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

The Directors' explanation on page 35 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what penod

they have done so and why they considler that penod to be appropniate, and ther statement as to whether they have a reasonable

expectation that the group will be able to continue In operation and meet its habilites as they fall due over the perod of therr assessment,

including any related disclosures drawng attention to any necessary quatfications or assumptions

We hava nothing to report having performed a review of the Directors’ statement that they have carned out a robust assessment of the

principal nsks facing the group and statement 1n retation to the longer-term viability of the group. Our review was substantially iess in scope

than an audt and only consisted of making inquires and considenng the Drectors’ process supporting their statements; checking that the

statements arg in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code {the “Code™; and considenng whether the

staternents are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and therr environment obtainec in the course

of the audit {Listing Rules)

Other Code Provisions
We have nothing 1o report in respect of our responsibiity to report when,

The statement given by the Directors, on page 36, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be far, balanced

and understandable, and prowides the information necessary for the members to assess the group's and company’s pasition and
performance, business medel and strategy 1s materially nconsistent with our knowledge of the group and company obtained in the
course of performing cur audt.

The section of the Annual Report on page 34 descrioing the work of the Audit Committee does net appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Commrttee,

The Directors’ statement relating te the company's comphance with the Code does not properly disclose a depariure from a relevant
provigion of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors
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Directors’ Remuneration
In our oginien, the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 (CADB)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained mere fully n the Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilites set out on page 54, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements In accordance with the appiicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from matenal rmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to iguidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur obyectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whather the financial staterments as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditors” report that includes cur opinion, Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance,
but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstaterment when 1t exists
Misstaterments can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenal f, ndividually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be
expected to nfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

A further descnption of our responsibilites for the audit of the financial statements 1s located on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This descniption forms part of our auditors” report

Use of this report

This report, including the opiniens, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Ghapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibilty for any
other purpose or to any ather person to whom this repert 1s shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our

prior consent in writing

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in our cpinion®

* wa have not recewved all the informatiorn and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been recewved from

branches not visited by us, or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» the company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be auded are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns,

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibiity

Appointment

We were appointed by the Directors to audit the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 and subsequent financial periods
This 1S the year Centaur Media Plc became a public company The period of total uninterrupted engagement 1s 15 years, covering the years
ended 30 June 2004 to 31 December 2018 A competitive tender process for the audit was undertaken during 2016 for the year ended 31
December 2017,

Julian Jenkins (Senior Statutery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

19 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Adjusted Adjusting Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Results? items? Results Results? Iterns? Results
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue (restated) 2 705 - 70.5 84.7 - 64.7
Other operating income 0.8 - Lo Q7 — 0.7
‘Net operating expenses o 3 (66.1) {19.2) (85.3) 613) 7 (4.4) {65.7) i
Operating profit / (loss) 5.2 19.2) 14.0) 41 {4 4) 03)
Finance costs 6 (0.2) - 0.2) o4 - 0.4)
Profit / (ioss) before tax 5.0 (19.2) (14.2) 37 (4.4) 0.7)
Taxation 7 {1.0) 0.9 {0.) (el 0.5 0.4)
Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing
operations 9 4.0 (18.3) {14.3) 28 39 {11}
Discentinued operations
Profit for the penod from discontinued
operatians B,15 - o1 01 21 209 23.0
Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to
owners of the parant after tax 40 {18.2) {14.2) 4.3 170 219
Total comprehensive income / {loss)
attributable to owners of the parent a.0 (18.2) (14.2) 49 17.0 21.9
Earnings / (loss) per share attributabie to
owners of the parent 9
Basic from continuing operations 2.8p (12.7p) (9.9p) 1.9p (2.7p) {0.8p)
Basic from discontinued cperations - - - 15p 14.5p 16.0p
Basic from profit / (loss) for the year 2.8p (12.7p) (9.9p) 34p 11.8p 15.2p

The notes on pages 69 to 113 are an integral part of these consohdated financial statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
for sharas
Share Own Share te be Deferred Retained Total
capital shares premium issued shares earnings Equity
£€m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2017 15.1 6 4) 11 08 0.1 56 4 67 1
Profit for the year and total comprebensive income - - - - - 219 21.9
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Dividends {note 26) - - - - - 4 3) {4 3)
Acquisition of treasury shares {note 24) - Q1) - - - - (0.1}
Acquisition of businass ang assets (note 14) - - - on - - ©1
Fair value of employee services {note 25) - - - 0.4 - - 0.4
As at 31 December 2017 151 (6.5} 1.1 1.1 041 74.0 84.9
Loss for the year and total comprehensive 10ss - - - - - (14 2) (14 2)
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners:
Owdends {note 26} - - - - - 43 43
Acquisition of treasury shares {note 24) - 0 4) - - - - 0.4}
Farr value of employee services {note 25) - - - o7 - - a7
As at 31 December 2018 181 (6.9) 11 18 01 55.5 667

The notes on pages 69 to 113 are an mtegral part of these consolidated fnancial statements
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
for shares
Share Cwn Share to be Deferred Retained Total
capitat shares premium issued shares earnings equity
£m £m €m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2017 15.1 (6.2} 1.1 0.8 ¢ 83.8 99.7
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss - - - - - 29 (2 9)
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners:
Dwidends (note 26) - - - - - {4 3) (4.3)
Acquisthon of treasury shares {note 24) - {o1) - - - - {0.1)
Acquisition of busingss and assets (note 14) - - - o1 - - {01}
Exercise of share awards - - - - - 0.2) {02
Farr value of employee services (note 25} - - - 0.4 - 04
As at 31 December 2017 151 {6.3) 1.1 1.1 0.1 81.4 925
Loss for the year and total comprehensive 10ss - - - - (13.7) {(13.7}
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners:
Dividends {note 26) - - - - - 43 (4.3}
Farr value of employee services (note 25) - - - Q7 - - 0.7
As at 31 December 2018 151 (6.3) 11 18 01 63.4 75.2

The notes on pages 69 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2018

Registered number 04948078

31 Decemnber

31 December

2018 2017
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwil 10 62.6 75.6
Cther intangble assets 11 15.5 18.6
Property, plant and equipment 12 1.3 17
Deferred tax asssts 16 0.8 07
8¢.2 6.6
Current assets ’ - )
Inventones 17 1.4 14
Trade and other recevables 18 12.9 16
Cash and cash equivalents 19 Q1 41
Current tax asset 22 0.2 -
) - o h 14.6 171
Total assets o 94.8 113.7
Current liabilites A .
Trade and other payables 26 (12.4) (109)
Deferred income 21 {15.0) {14 6)
Provisions 23 [(+h]] {1 8)
(27.5) (27 3)
Net current liabilities (12-.-9) (102)
Non-current liabilites ’ ’ i S
Provisions 23 (0.9) 0.1
Deferred tax habiliies 18 (0.5} (1.4
(0.6) {1 5)
Net ass-.ets ) o : 77{;6.7 7 84 9
“Capltal and résé‘r;c;—s‘“;&;ibutable to owners of the parent
Share capital 24 151 151
Own shares (6.9) 6.5)
Share premium 14 11
Other reserves 19 12
Retained earnings 55.5 740
Total equity o 66.7

849

The financial statements on pages 69 to 113 were approved by the Board of Directers on 19 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf by

Swag Mukerji
Chief Financial Officer
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2018

Registered number 04948078

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments 13 125.8 1340
Deferred income tax assets Q1 -
- o - C2s9 1340
Cumrentassets -
Trade and other recevables 18 31 30
Cash and cash equivatents 19 _ _
E Tz 5o
Total assets I - 7 o 1290 7 7 1.37‘0‘
Current hatnlities o
Trade and other payables 20 7(53:787) o (74157)7
o N . - - ) (53.8) (44 5}
Net current liabilities - (50.7) 415

Non-current habilities - -

Net assets 75.2 925

Capital and reserves attributabie to owners of the parent

Share capnal 24 151 151
Own shares (6.3) 63)
Share premium 13 "
Other reserves 1.9 12
Retained earnings 63.4 81.4
Total assets 75.2 925

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption avalable under secton 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its
own statement of comprehensive Income In these financial statements. The movement 1N retaned earnings 1s the Company's loss for the
year of £13 7m (2017 £2 9m) and dividends of £4 3m (2017 £4 3m)

The financial statements on pages 69 to 113 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2019 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Swag Mukerji
Chief Financial Officer



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities T
Cash generated from operations 27 6.8 13.8
Tax paid (1.2} (1 6)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5.6 12.2
Cash flows from investing activities o o T T i
Other acguisitions - settlement of deferred consideration 23 - 15
Disposal of subsidiary 15 0.3 279
Purchase of property, plant and egupment 12 (C.5) 02
FPurchase of intangible assets 11 (2.3} {2 6
Acquisition of subsidiary 14 {1.8) {12 9)
Net cash flows {used in)/generated from investing activities (4.3} 107
Cash fiows_féor;'l_finan-t_:-lr-:g_activit_ies- T T i o o
Payment for shares bought back 24 (0.4} 01
Loan arrangement fees 24 {0.2) -
nterest paid 5} (0.4) 0.3)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders 28 4.3) 43
Proceeds from borrowings 28 4.5 55
Repayment of borrowings 28 {4.5) (23.0)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (5.3) (222)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {4.0) o7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 41 34
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19 01 41

The notes or pages 69 to 113 are an mntegral part of these consolidated financial staterments
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COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31December
208 2017
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 27 47 222
Cash flows from invesiing activities B i )
Net cash flows used In nvesting activities - -
Cash flows; %rom finanémg activities S T
Interest pard 6 (0.4) {3
Payment for shares bought back 24 - 0.1}
Oividends paid to Company's shargholders 26 (4.2 43
Proceeds from borrowings 28 4.5 55
Repayment of borrowings o . 28 ) _(_4_;5; (2?9) )
Net cash flows used in financing activities o ) (4.7) _ (_?:’»_‘_2)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents o .~ T
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year - ) -
19 -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The notes on pages 69 to 113 are an integral part of these consoldated financial statements




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted N the preparation of these censolidated and Company financial statements are set cut below
These policies have been consistently applied 1o all the periods presented, uniess otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the
Group consisting of Centaur Media Plc and its subsidianes, and the Cormpany, Certaur Media Plc. Centaur Media Plc 15 a public company
imited by shares and incorporated in England and Wales

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated and Company financiai statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS" as adopted by the European Union and IFRS Interpretaticns Committee {'IFRS IC") and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
apphcable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a gong concern basss, The Directors have carefully assessed the Group's abilty to continue
trading and have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
at least twelve months from the date of approvai of these financial statements and for the foreseeable future

Net cash {see reconciiation in note 27} at 31 December 2018 amcuntad to £0 1m {2017 net cash £4.1m). In November 2018, the Group
renewed Hs £25m multi-currency revolving credit facilty with the Royal Bank of Scotiand and Uoyds, which runs to November 2021 with
the option 10 extend for 2 periods of 1 year each None of this was drawn-down at 31 December 2018 OQur reported cash conversion® rate
fell to 85% (2017, 138%). This was due to a number of non-cash items that have been reported in adjusted operating profit, primarily the
recognition of an expected rent rebate due to be paid to the Company i March 2020 When adjusting for these items, cash cenversion i1s
99% The movement of the ratio towards 100% 1s as expected due to the Group having completed the collection of old outstanding debts
following the well-documented cash collection ssues of 2016 We have mantaned hght control over costs

The Group has net current habikties at 31 December 2018 amounting to £12 9m (2017 £10 2m) These mainly anse from its normal high
fevels of deferred income relating to events in the future rather than an nability to service its labiities  An assessment of cash flows for the
next three financial years, which has taken into account the factors described above, has indicated an expected level of cash generation
which would be sufficient to allow the Group to fully sahsfy s working capital requirements and the guarantee given in respect of its UK
subsidianes, to cover all prncipal areas of expenditure, ncluding maintenance, capital expenditure and taxation dunng this year, and to meet
the financial covenants under the revolving credit facility The Company has net current habiities at 31 December 2018 amounting to £50.7m
(2017 £41 5m) These amost entirely anse from unsecured payables to subsidiaries which have no fixed date of repayment

The preparation of financial statements In accordance with 1FRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the year.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, the actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates

Having assessed the pnncipal nsks and the other matters discussed in connection with the viability statement on page 31, the Directors
consider it approprate to adopt the going concern basts of accounting in preparing its consolidated financial statements

Prior penod restatement

Rental ncome for the sub-lease of properties under lease was presented within revenue in prior years As rental income does not anse from
the principal actmties of the business It has been restated and presented as other cperating income, The impact 1s a reduction in revenue
and an increase n other operating iIncome of €0 7m n 2017 There was no overall impact on the total comprehensive iIncome for the year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards that are mandatory for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 January 2018 have been adopted by
the Group.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’

IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecogrition of financial assets and financial liabilities, mtroduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new imparment model for financial assets

Impact

After review of the Group's financial assets and llabiliies the results indicate that only trade recevables are impacted by the new standard.

The new Impairment model for trade recewvables requires the recognrtion of Impaimment provisions based on expected credit losses for

12 months and Ifetime expected credit losses rather than only ncurred credit losses as s the case under IAS 39. We consider 12 month
and life time losses to be equal The results of the appiication of the new imparrment model indicates that there 1s net a matenal change to
the loss allowance for trade recevables We define a default as failure of a debtor to repay an amount due as this 1s the time at which our
estmate of future cash flows from the debtor Is affected,

The new standard has also been applied to all other financial assets and habiities, Including cash and cash equivalents, however, there is no
impact to the value of these assets and habilities.

As outhned in the FY17 Annual Report and as permitted under the transition requirements, the Group has not restated comparatves for
2017 as t applied the new rules retrospectively from 1 January 2018 per the practical expedients permitted under the standard

Disclosures

Disclosures have been made I ine with IFRS 9 requirements  The accounting pelicy for financial instruments 18 set out in note 1 (s),
including trade receivables (note 1 (s) (1)). Further disclosures on financial instruments Including trade recewvables can be found in note 28

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers’

IFRS 15 sets out the reguirements for recognising revenue from contracts with customers, replacing all existing revenue standards.
The standard requires entries to apportion revenue earned from contracts to ndwidual performance othgations, on a stand-alone selling
price basis, based on a five-step model framework

Impact

The Group has performed an impact assessment on revenue and other operating Incorne generated in the 12 months to 31 December
2018 and the results Indicate that the adoption of IFRS 15 has not had a matenat impact on the timing or quantum of revenue or other
operating Ncome recognition at a Group, Company, intercompany or at an operating segment level The impact assessment also indicated
that the Group rarely sells products relating to different operating segments to the same customer under the same contract. Consequently, &
change to revenue recognised In any given oparating segment s almost wholly the effect of iming differences under IFRS 15.

Other operating income 1s solely in relation to rental ncome from sub leases, which 1s recognised in the period to which 1t relates, therefore
there 1s no IFRS 15 impact

As outlined in the FY17 Annual Report, given the nsignificant impact to revenues, including other operating income, comparatives have not
been restated for the impact of IFRS 15

Disclosures

Disclosures have besn made In ling with IFRS 15 requirements  The accounting policy for revenue recognition 1s set out In note 1 (e)
Disaggregation of revenue 1s presented n note 2 Segmental Reporting Revenue has been disaggregated by revenue stream (premum
content, live events, advertising, capablity services, and other) and by gecgraphic location. The only assets and liabihes held on the
statement of financial posihion relating to contracts with customers 1s accrued ncome and deferred income respectively.



Other

No other new standards or amendments to standards (including the Annuat Improvements {2G15) t6 existing standards) that are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 January 2018 affected any of the amounts recognised in the current year or any prior
year and i1s not Itkely to affect future penods

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2018 reporting
penads and have not been early adopted by the Group®

IFRS 16 'Leases’
IFRS 16 sets ot the requirements for lessee and lessor lease accounting The new standard replaces IAS 17, and eliminates the

classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as required by IAS 17 and mstead introduces a single accounting mode!
for leases which requires lessees 10 receognised assets and liabiities for most leases

Impact

The Group has performed an impact assessment on ts existing and any expected upcoming lease arrangements The Group plans to take
advantage of the 'short term lease’ and 'low value tems' exemptions. The Group alsc pians to apply the practical expedient on transition
where only contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 are assessed for the purposes of IFRS 16, however the Group
does not belleve that any contracts cther than those faling in scope after the practical expedient 1s appied would be deemed to contain a
lease arrangernent under IFRS 16

The Group will elect to appfy the modified retrospectve transiton approach where comparative penods are not restated, but the cumulative
impact of applying IFRS 16 1s reflected as an adjustment to the opening balance sheet at 31 December 2019 Arrangements afready
constituting finance leases are not impacted by the transition to IFRS 16 There are 3 existing operating leasg arrangements that will become
finance leases on transibon and 1 upcoming lease arrangement commencing in 2019 that will constitute a finance lease under IFRS 16 The
results of the impact assessment indicates that nght-of-use assets of £3 8m and lease habilities of £3 6m will be recognised in the opening
balance sheet at January 2019 At commencement of the new lease arrangement in October 2019 a £3 5m rgnt-of-use asset and £3.2m
lease liabiity will be recognised The value of the IFRS 16 impact to the P&L 1s immatenal, however the expenses will now be classified as
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset and interest expense on the finance labilty The 2019 expense expected relating to all 4 of
these leases 1s £2 5m depreciation and £C.1m interest There 1s no impact to cash flow. Al leases discussed here are property leases

Date of adoption by the Group

For the Group, transition to IFRS 16 has taken effect from 1 January 2019 The half year resuits for FY19 will be IFRS 16 comphant, with the
first Annual Report publshed in accordance with IFRS 16 beaing that for the year ending 31 December 2019,

As outlined above, the Group does not plan to adopt a fully retrospective transition approach and so comparatives will not be restated
Other

There are ne other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting pericds and on foreseeable future transactions.

Discontimued operations

Discontinued operations 1N the prior and current year refate to the disposal of the Home Interest segment on 1 August 2017. See note 8 for
more detalls,

(b} Presentation of non-statutory measures

In addition to statutory measures, the Directors use vanous non-GAAP key financial measures to evaluate the Group's performance and

consider that presentation of these measures provides shareholders with an additional understanding of the core trading performance of the
Group. The mesasures used are explained and reconciled to their equivalent statutory headings below
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(b) Presentation of non-statutory measures (continued)

Adjusted operating profit and adjusted earmings per share

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earmings per share, spiit between continuing and discontinued operations, provide
additional useful nformation on the core operational performance of the Group to shareholders, and review the results of the Group on an
adjusted basis internally The term 'adjusted’ 1s not a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with ssmilarly titled profit
reasurements reported by other companies. It is not intended to be a substitute for, or supenor to, IFRS measurements of profit.

Adjustments are made in respect of.

[3

Exceptional items — the Group considers tems of ncome and expense as exceptonal and excludes them from the adjusted resuits
where the nature of the tem, or ts magnrtude, 18 matenal and likely to be non-recurmng 1N nature so as to asgsist the user of the financial
staternents to better understand the results of the core operations of the Group. Details of exceptional tems are shown in note 4.

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets — the amorhsation charge for those intangible assets recogrised on business combinations 1s
excluded from the adjusted results of the Group since they are non-cash charges ansing from investment activities As such, they are not
considered reflective of the core trading performance of the Group Detalls of amortisation of intangible assets are shown in note 11

Share-based payments — share-based payment expenses or credits are excluded from the adjusted results of the Group as the Drrectors
believe that the volatirty of these charges can dhstort the user's view of the core trading performance of the Group Detatls of share-based
payments are shown In note 25

Impairment of goodwill — the Directors believe that non-cash impairment charges in relation to goodwill are generally volatile and matenal,
and therefore exclude any such charges from the adjusted results of the Group Previous impairment charges were presented as
exceptional tems. Details of the goodwil imparrment analysis are shown in note 10

Earn-out consideration — deferred or contingent consideration in refation to business combinations recogrised n the statement of
comprehensive INCome (as a result of being classified as remuneration under IFRS 3) 15 not considered reflective of the care trading of the
Group since t results from mvestment actvihas and s volatile in natiire As such, statement of comprehensive mcome items refating to
business combinations are removed from adiusted results See notes 4 and 23

Acquisition related costs — expenses In relation to business combinations recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 1s not
considered reflective of the core trading of the Group since tt results from investment activities and 1s volatle In nature As such. statement
of comprehensive INcome tems relating 10 business combinations are removed from adjusted results See note 14

Profit or loss on disposal of assets or subsidiaries — profit or loss on disposals of businesses are excluded from adjusted results of the
Group as they are unrelated to core trading and can distort a user's understanding of the performance of the Group due to therr infrequent
and volatile nature. See note 4.

Other separately reported terms — certain other tems are excluded from adusted results where they are considered large or unusual
enough to distort the comparability of core trading results year on year Details of these separately disclosed tems are shown in note 4.

The tax related to adjusting tems 1s the tax effect of the items above that are allowable deductions for tax purposes (pnmarly exceptional
1terns), calculated using the standard rate of corporation tax. See note 7 for a reconciliation between reported and adjusted tax charges

Further details of adjushing terns are Included in note 4 A reconciiation between adjusted and statutory earnings per share measures I1s
shown in note 9



Loss before tax reconciles to adjusted operating profit as follows:

2018 2017
Note £m £fm
Loss before tax (14.2) 0.7)
Adjusting tems
Impairment of goodwill 10 134 -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 11 2.8 25
Share-based payments 25 0.8 0.5
Earn-out consideration 4 - 0B
Acquismion related costs 14 - 0.8
Exceptional operating costs 4 25 02
Adjusted profit before tax S o - - s0 a7
Finance costs 6 Q.2 04
Adjusted Dperating profit - S 52 41
Cash impact of adjusting items (2_.5) o (O é)
Tax impact of adjusting items 7 _0.;3 - (_)-5

Adjusted operating cash flow

Adjusted operating cash flow 1s not a measure defined by IFRS 1t 1s defined as cash flow from operations excluding the impact of adjusting
tems, which are defined above, and including capral expenditure The Directors use this measure 10 assess the parformance of the Group
as 1t exciudes volatile tems not related to the core trading of the Group and includes the Groug's management of capttal expendrture.

Statutory cash flow from cperations reconciles to adjusted operating cash as below:

Capital expenditure

2018 2017

£m £m

Reprdrt’érd cash flow from operating activities 27 6.8 138
Cash impact of adjusting tems (as above) 2.5 0.9
Working capital impact of adjusting items 7 {0.6)
Adjusted operating cash flow S I - P
(2.8) (2 8)

nditure cash 4.787 7 113

Post capital expenditure cash flow
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
{b) Presentation of non-statutery measures (continued)

Linderlying revenue grawth

The Directors review underlying revenue growth m order to allow a ke for like comparnson of revenues between years Underlying revenues
exclude the impact of event timing differences, as well as the revenue contnbution ansing from acquired or disposed businesses.

Statutory revenue growth reconciles to underlying revenue growth as follows:

Financial

Marketing Professional Services Total

£m £m £Em £m

Reported revenue 2017 ) 360 199 88 647
Bienrial events — AMS - 03 - 03

Acquired business — MarketMakers 75 - - 75
Disposed business — Corporate Adviser - - 3 C.3)

Underying revenue 2017 ~ a3s 186 85 718
Reported revenue 2018 ’ T 427 188 82 705

Acquired business — MarketMakers - - - -

Underying revenue 2018 427 19.6 8.2 70.5

Reported revenue growth 156/07 - (2%) 7 (7 %) i 913/;
Underlying revenue growth (2%) - {4%) (2%)

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA 1s not a measure defined by IFRS. 1t 15 defined as adjusted operating profit before depreciation and amortisation of
intangible assets other than those acquired through a business combination It 1s used by the Directors as a measure to review performance
of the Group and forms the basis of some of the Group's financial covenants under its revolving credit facility Adjusted EBITDA 1s calculated
as follows.,

2018 2017

£m £m

A‘cuusted operating profit (as above} - 5.2 41
Depreciation (note 12} 0.9 a7

Amortisation of computer software (note 11} 2.8 29

Adusted EBITDA 8.9 7.7

Net cash/{debt)

Net cash/(debt) I1s not 2 measure defined by IFRS Net cash/(debt) 1s caiculated as cash less overdrafts and bank borrowings under the
Group's financing arrangements The Directors consider the measure useful as it gives greater clanty over the Group's hquidity as a whole A
reconcihation between net debt and statutory measures 1is shown in note 27

(c} Principles of consolidation

The conscidated financial statements ncorporate the financial statements of Centaur Madia Plc and all of its subsicianes after eimination of
mntercompany transactions and balances.



(i) Subsidiaries

Subsicharies are all entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group 1s exposed to, or has nghts to, vanable
returns from its Involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entrty.
Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group until the date that the Group ceases to control
them In the statement of comprehensive Income the results of subsidianes for which control has ceased are presented separately as
discontinued operations in the year in which they have been disposed of and in the comparative year

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companigs are elminated. The accounting
policies of subsidianes are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group

(n) Business Combinations

The acquistion method of accounting 1s used to account for all business combinations The consideration transferred for acquistion of

a subsidiary 1s measured at the aggregate of farr values of assets transferred, labdties incurmed or assumed to the former owners of the
acquired business and equity nterests 1issued by the Groug in exchange for control of the subsidiary. Acquistion-related costs are expensed
as incurred and included in the consohidated staterment of comprehensive Income

Any deferred consideration to be transferred by the acquirer 1$ recogrised at fair value If the conditions attached to the consideration
indicate that the payment forms part of the acquisition, a provision 1s made for the future hability at the acquisiion date Where the deferred
consideration 1s contingent on the continued employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised In the consolidated statement
of comprehensive Income on a straight-ine basis over the period over which the contingent consideration 1s earned with an associated
provision on the consotidated statement of financial position. Subsequent changes to the far value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in accordance with 1AS 39 through the consciidated statement of comprehensive income

The excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, amount of any non-controfling interest in the acquired entity, and acquisition date far
value of any previous equity Interest in the acgquired entity over the farr value of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwil

(d} Fereign currency translation
() Functional and presentation currency
Items inchuded in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic

snvironment In which the entity operates {‘the functional currency’). The consobdated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling,
which 1s the Group and Company’s functional and presentation currency

iy Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary asssts and
labiities denominated n foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income

() Group Companies

The results and financial position of the Group entihes that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

* Agsets and labilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the ciosing rate at the date of that statement of
financial positicn,

* Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive Income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average 1s not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevaiing on the transacticn dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions), and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised i1 other comprehensive Income

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
recognised n other comprehensive income When a foreign cperation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised n the statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwil and fair value adustments ansing on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habilties of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies Continued
{e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the transaction price, which 1s the amount of conaideraticn to which Centaur expects to be entitled in exchange for
transfernng promised goods or services o the customer. Revenue anses from the sales of premium content (subscnptions and individua!
publications), live events, advertising space, and capability services (project work and consuttancy) provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and value added tax. Revenue I1s reduced for customer returns, rebates and other simitar allowances

The Group recognises revenue earned from contracts as individual performance obligations are met, on a stand-alone seling price basis
This 1s when value and control of the product or service has transferred, being when the product I1s delivered to the customer or the penod in
which the services are rendered as laid out below,

Premum Content

Revenue from subscriptions 1s deferred and recogrised on a straight-Ine basis over the subscnption penod  Revenue from individual
publications 1s recognised in the year in which the prblication s providedt ta the customer

Live events

Consideration recerved In advance for events 1s deferred and revenue 18 recogrised m the year In which the event takes place

Advertising

Sales of online advertsing space are recegnised over the penod durnng which the advertisements are placed Sales of advertising space in
publications are recognised in the year in which the publicahion cocurs

Capability Services

Revenue from project work and consultancy contracts 1s recognised when the Group has obtaned the nght to consideration in exchange for
its performance, which s when a separately identfiable phase (milestone) ot a contract has been completed and the value and benett of the
services rendered have been transferred to the customer.

{f) Other operating iIncome
Rental ncome for the sub-lease of properties under lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
{g) [nvestments

In the Company’s financral staterments, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for Impairment i~ value

Investments are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An imparment loss 1s
recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the investments farr value less cest of disposal and its value-in-use
An asset’s value-in-use 1s calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted average cost of capital Any
imparment is recognised In the statement of comprehensive income and not subsequently reversed

{h) Income tax

The tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax

Current tax 1s based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive Income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and r further includes terns that are never
taxable or deductible The Group and Company's liabiity for current tax s calcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the staternent of financial position date.

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the irability method, on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilties are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be avallable to utikse those temporary differences and losses Such assets and liabilties are not recognised i the temporary
difference anses from goodwilt or the initial recognition (other than In a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit,

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset s realised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive ncome, except when 1t relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, n which case the deferred tax 1s recognised in other comprehensive Income
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{i} Leases

Agreements under which payments are made to owners in return for the nght to use an asset for a period are accounted for as leases
Leases that transfer substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are recognised at the commencement of the lease term as
finance leases within property, plant and equipment and debt at the far value of the leased asset or, If lower, at the present value of the
rminimurm lease payments, Finance lease payments are apportioned between interest expense and repayments of debt  All other leases are
classified as operating leases and the cost 1s recognised In income on a straight-ine basis

Rental income for the sub-lease of properties under lease Is recognised on a straight-line basis over the tease term

{j} impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoveratle Animparment 10$S 13 recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the asset’s farr value fess cost
of disposal and its value-in-use. An asset’s value I use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted
average cost of capral

{k) Inventories

inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Work in progress comprses costs incurred relating to pukiications and
exhibitions prior to the publication date or the date of the event

{!) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at histercal cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, The historical cost of
property, plant and eguipment 1s the purchase cost together with any incidental direct costs of acquistieon Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost, less estimated residual value, of assets, on a straight Ine-pasis over the expected useful economic kves to the Group over the
foliowing penods:

Leasehold improvements - 10 years or the expected fength of the lease if shorter
Fixtures and fittings -5to 10 years
Computer equipment - 3to 5 vyears

The estimated useful ives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any
changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

{m) Intangible assets
(1) Goodwill

Where the cost of a bustness acquisition exceeds the far values attnbutable to the separabie net assets acquired, the resulting goodwill
15 capitahised and allocated to the cash-generating unit {{CGU") or groups of CGUSs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination Goodwill has an indefinte useful life and 1s tested for mpaiment annually on a Group level or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Fach segment s deemed to be a CGU. Goodwill and acquired intangible assets are assessed for impawrment in accordance with IAS

36. In assessing whather a wiite-down of goodwill and acquired intangibie assets 1s required, the carrying value of the segment 1s
compared with its recoverable amount Recoverable amount is measured as the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use
Any mmparrment 15 recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (in net operating expenses} and 1s classified as an adjusting tem
Imparment of goodwill Is not subsequently reversed

On the dispesal of a CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is iIncluded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
{m}) Intangible assets continued

(i1} Brands and pubhishimy ityhls, customier relalivtiships and non-compele arrangemants

Separately acquired brands and publishing rights are shown at historical cost Brands and publishing nghts, customer refatienships and
non-compete arrangements acquired in a business combination are recognised at far value at the acquisition date They have a firte useful
life and are subsequently carred at cost iess accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(1) Software

Computer software that 1s not integral to the aperation of the related hardware is carned at cost less accumulated amortisation

Costs associated with the development of identifiable and unigue software products controlled by the Group that will generate probable
future gconomic benefits in excess of costs are recognised as Intangible assets when the critena of IAS 38 'intangible Assets’ are met
They are camed at cost less accumulated amortisation and iImpaiment losses.

(v} Amortisation methods and pernods

Amortisation 1s calculated to write off the cost or far value of intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic
Inves to the Group over the following periods

Computer software - 3to S vears

Brands and pubhshing nghts - 5to 20 years

Customer relationships - 3 to 10 years ar over the term of any specied contract

Separately acquirsd websites and content - 3to 5 years

Non-compete arrangements - Over the term of the arrangement '

(n) Employee benefits
(1) Post-employment abligations

The Group and Company contnbute to a defired contribution pension schame for the benefit of employees The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged
to the staterment of comprehensive income when employer contributions become payable.

(n) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based compensation plans for its employees The farr value of the share-based
compensation expense (s estmated using ether a Mante Carlo or Black-Scholes option pricing model and 1s recogrnised in the statement
of comprehensive income over the vesting pericd with a corresponding Increase In equity The total amount to be expensed Is determined
by reference to the farr value of the awards granted.

¢ Including any market performance conditions;

» Ixcluding the mpact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions {for example, profitability, sales growth targets, cash
flow performance and remairing an employee of the entity over a specified time perod); and

s including the iImpact of any non-vesting conditions {for example, the requirement for employees to save}

The total expense is recognised over the vesting penod, which 1s the pencd over which all of the speciiied vesting condittons are

to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting year, the Group revises Its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting and service conditions It recognises the impact of the revision to original estmates, f any, in the statement

of comgrehensive INcorme, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The Company issues new shares or transfers shares from treasury
shares 10 settle share-based compensation awards

The award by the Company of share-based compensation awards over its eguity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
N the Group 1s treated as a capital contribution, only f itis left unsettlied The farr value of employee services received, measured by
reference o the grant date far value, 1s recognised over the vesting penod as an Increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,

with a corresponding credit 1o equity.
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(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 1t is prebabie that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the obhgation can be reliably estimated

Provisicns for deferred contingent consideration are measured at far value. Where the deferred consideration is contingent on the continued
employrment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised In the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome on a straight iine
basis over the pencd of the arrangemeant

{p} Share capital and share premium

Ordinary and deferred shares are classified as equity. The excess of consideration received in respect of shares issued over the norminal
value of those shares 1s recogrused in the share premium account Incremental costs directly attributatie to the issue of new shares
or options are shown 0 equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buyback or share-based
payment plan, the consideration pad, including any directly attnbutable incremental costs {net of Income taxes) 1s deducted from equity
attnbutable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelied or reissued Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration receved, net of any directly atinbutable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, s ncluded in equity attnbutable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Centaur Employees’ Benefit Trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from contnbuted equity. The Compary
also helds a non-distributatle reserve representing the farr value of unvested share-based compensations plans

(a) Dividends

Dividends are recognised i the year in which they are paid or, In respect of the Company’s final dvdend for the year, approved by the

shareholders in the Annual Generai Meeting

{r) Segmental reporting

Operating segments are repcrted In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker The Executive Comimittee has been dentified as the chief operating decision-maker, responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance of the operating segments The Group operates In three market-facing dvsions: Marketing, Professional, and
Financial Services.

{s) Financial instruments

The Group has apphed IFRS 9, Financial Instruments as outhned below

(1) Financial assels

The Group classfies and measures ts financial assets in ine with one of the three measurement models under IFRS 8 at amortised cost,
fair value through profit or ioss, and far value through other comprehensive income Management determines the classfication of its financal
assets based on the requirements of IFRS 9 at intal recognition

They are incluced in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of financial position date These are
classrfied as non-current asssets The Group's financial assets comprise trade and other recetvables and cash and cash eguivalents in the

statement of financial position Please see the following sections

) Trade receivables

Trade recewvables are accounted for under IFRS 9 using the expected credit ioss model, recognised inmally at far value and subsequently
at amortised cost less any allowance for expected credit losses.

The allowance for expected credit losses far trade recevables 1s established by censidering on a discounted basis the cash shortfalls

it would incur in vanous defaults scenanos for prescrbed future penods and multiplying the shortfalls by the probability of each scenano
occurnng. The histoncal loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-lecoking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the recelvables. The allowance s the sum of these probability weighted outcomes The allowance and
any changes to 1t are recognised n the statement of comprehensive Income within net operating expenses A provision matnx s used

to calculate the allowance for expected credit losses on trade recevables which 1s based on historica! default rates over the expected

Ife of the trade receivables and i adjusted for forward looking estimates VWhen a trade recevable 15 uncollectible, it 1s whitten off against
the allowance account for trade recewvables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against net operating
expenses N the statement of comprehensive ncome
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

{s) Financial instruments continued

(i) Cash and cash eqiivatenis

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or matunng within three months of the statement
of financial position date

(iv) Financial ahilibes

Debt and trade payables are recogmsed intially at far value based on amounts exchanged, net of transaction costs, and subsequently
at amortised cost.

Interest expense on debt 1s accounted for using the effective Interest method and 1s recognised in income

(v) Trade payables

Trade payables are recogrised nitially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

{vi) Borrowings

Borrowings are intially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and carned subsequently at amortised cost Costs
of borrowings are recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income as Incurred or, where appropriate, across the term of the
related borrowing

{viy) Dernvative financial instruments
The Group does not hold derwatve financial nstruments erther for trading purposes or designated as hedges
(1) Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements

The preparation of financiai staternents under IFRS requires the use of certain key accounting assumptions and requires management
to exercise its Judgement and to make estmates The areas where assumptions and estimates are signiicant to the consalidated financial
statermeants are as follows.

1 Carrying value of goodwtill and other intangible assets estimate

In assessing whether goodwill and other intangible fixed assets are imparred, the Group uses a discounted cash flow model which iIncludes
forecast cash flows and estimates of future growth If the results of operations in future periods are lower than included in the cash

flow model, impairments may be tnggered A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-calculations  Further details of the
assumptions and sensitivities in the discounted cash flow model are included in note 10,

Intangible assets ansing on businéss combinations are entied based on the Group’'s understanding of the acquired business and previous
expenence of smilar businesses Consistent methods of valuation for similar types of intangible asset are applied where possible and
approprate, using information reviewed at Board level where avalable Discount rates appiied In calculating the values of mtangible assets
ansing on the acguisition of subsidianes are cakculated specifically for each acquisition and adjusted to reflect the respective nsk profile of
each individual asset based on the Group's past experence of similar assets

1) Recoverability of trade recewvabies estimate

The allowance for expected credtt losses for trade recevables is calculated in line with IFRS 9 This 1s established by considering on

a discounted basis the cash shortfalls it wouid incur in various default scenarios for prescribed future penods and multiplying the shortfalis
Dy the probabiity of each scenanc occurnng The histoncal loss rates are adjusted 1o reflect current and forward-looking infermation on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. Further details about trade recenvables are included
in note 18 and informaton about the credit nsk and expected credit losses are shown in note 28

ni}) Adjusting stems judgement

The term ‘adjusted’ 1s not a defined term under IFRS Judgement s required to ensure that the ciassification and presentation of certan
tems as adjusting, Including exceptional items, Is appropnate andg consistent with the Group's accounting policy Further details about the
amounts classified as adusting are included in notes 1(b) and 4.




w) Contingent consideration estimate

The valuation of contingent consideration arising from business combinations {'earn-out’ consideration) requires judgement, mcluding the
assessing the probability and quantum of the expected payment The Group uses alt available information, including current and forecasted

() Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements {continued)

performance under earn-out arrangements to assess the required level of provision Iltems relating to earn-out consideration are treated as
an adjusting item under the Group's accounting policy. Further details about the classificaton of earn-out consideration are included in notes
1(b) and 4, and details of current and prior year earn-out arrangements and provisions are shown in notes 4 and 23

v) Share based payments estimate

The farr value of the share-based compensaticn expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income requires the use of
estimates. Details regarding the determination of fair value of these costs are set out in note 1(n}i)

vi) Deferred tax

The calculation of deterred tax assets and liabilities requires judgement Where the uthmate tax treatment 1s uncertain, the Group recognises
deferred tax assets and labilities based on an estimate of future taxable income and recoverability Where a change in circumstances
oceurs, or the final tax outcome 1s different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences wit mpact the income tax and
deferred tax balances in the year in which that change or outcome 1s known. The accounting policy regarding deferred tax 1s set out above
in note 1{h}

vii) Valuation of intangibles

Intangibles assets acquired N a business combination are required 10 be recogrised separately from goodwill and amortised over their
useful ife The Group has separately recognised computer software, brands and customer relationships In the acquisitions made (see notes
11 and 14).

The farr value of these acquired intangibles 1s based on valuation techmigues that require iInputs based on assumptions about the future and
estimates related to current market condtions

The Group also makes assumptions about the useful ife of the acquired intangibles as outhned in note 1(m)(iv)

vi}) Assets Held for sale

Any group of assets that are to be disposed of through sale should be classified as held for sale where the critena are met

As part of a plan to explore the divestment of selected businesses on 25 October 2018, to accelerate the Group’s activities and structure an
assessment of the held for sale critena was carried out at the year end

Management have concluded that the held for sale criteria was not met at year end as the sale of any assets was not hughly probable,
assets were not being actively marketed or avarable for mmediate sale and the entity was not committed to a sale

Due to the progression of the drvestment plan subsequent to the year end and before signing of the Annual Report, the held for sale
crieria were met and therefore this constritutes a non-adjusting post balance sheet event which has been disclosed in the post balance
sheet note 33
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Segmental reporting

The Executive Committee has been identfied as the chief operating decision-maker, reviewing the Group's Internal reporting on a monthiy
basis In order to assess parformance and allocate resources

The Group is organised around three reportable market-facing segments: Marketing, Financial Services and Professional. The Professional
segment aggregates the Legal, Human Resources, Engineenng and Travel & Meetings portfohos, which are deermned 1o have similar profiles
of nsk and return Segments dernve revenues from a combination of kve events, premim content, advertising and capability service
revenues. Corporate Income and costs are aflocated to these segments on an appropriate basis, depending on the nature of the costs,
Including it propertion to revenues or headcount There 1s no iInter-segmental revenue,

Segment assets consist prmaniy of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets mcluding goodwill, inventories and trade recevables
Segment liabilities compnse trade payables, accruals and deferred income

Corporate assets and labilities comprnise current and deferred tax balances, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings

Capnal expenditure compnses additions to proparty, plant and egquipment, ntangibie assets and includes additions resuiting from
acquisitions through business combinations

Financial Continuing Discontinued
Marketing Professional Services operations operations Group
2018 £m £m £m £€m £m £m
Revenue az7 19.6 T 8.2 {ﬁﬂ);i - 705
Other operating income 04 03 a1 o8 - 08
Adysted operating profit {note 1 (b)) 17 23 12 sz o "2
Amortisation of acquired intangibles
{note 11) 24 ©.2) 0.2) (2.8) - (2.8)
Goodwill impairment {note 10) (12 8) 03 (13.1) - {13.)
Exceptional cperating costs (note 4) 0 5) {13 {0.7) {2.5) - (2.5)
Share-based payrnents (note 25) {05) 02 o1 (0.8) - (0.8)
Profit on disposal of subsidiary (note 15) - B - - 01 01
Operating (lossl/proft (148 06  ©% a0 o1 (3.9
Finance costs {(note 6) 10.2) - (0.2)
(Loss)/ profit beforetax " T aay T o1 pan
Taxation (note 7} (09) - {0.1)
{Loss) / profit for the year T i o (1-4.—3) 01 T “(;4.2)
Segment assets 578 28.0 T 7.8 ——“93.4 T BH
Corporate assets - - - - - 1.4
Consolidated total assets ) o S o _94.8
?e;;ment fabilties (13.9) (10.5) 32 (27.6) - (27.6)_
Corporate-habilities {0.5)
Consolidated total liabilities {28.1)
Other items B T -
Capital expenditure (tangible and
intangible assets) 23 06 o1 3.0 - 3.0
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Financial Continuing Discontinued
Marketing Professional Services operations operations Group
2017 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 36.0 19.9 8.8 64.7 72 7.9
Other operating Income 03 0.3 (O] 07 - 07
“Adusted operating profit inote 1 (o) 17 18 06 a1 25 6.6
Amortisation of acquired intangibles
(note 11) {20 {03 02) (28) - {2.5)
Earn-out consideration {note 4) {©6) — - {0.6) - {0.6)
Costs relating to business acquisitton
{note 4) e - - {0.6} - {0.6)
Exceptionai operating costs (note 4) ©1) o1 - (0.2} - (C.2)
Share-based payments (note 25) {0 3) o.n {01} {0.5) - [0.5)
Profit on disposal of subsidiary (note 15) - - - - 209 209
Operating (loss)/profit ’ e 13 c3 (03 3.4 231
Finance costs (note 6) {0.4) - (C.4)
{Loss) / profit before tax o - e 234 227
Taxation {note 7) (0 4) {04 (0.8}
{Loss) / profit for the year - - N 1 930 219
Segment assets T T T 71 286 88 108.8 — 108.8
Corporate assets 4.9
Consolidated total assets 7 - 1137
Segment abilties T T s &2 @2 (25.9) - (25.7)
Corporate-habilties [ER))]
Consolidated total liabiiities (28.8)
Other itemns - 7 o - S ) i
Capital expenditure {tangible and
intangible assets) 15 10 04 2.9 - 2.9
Supplemental Information - Revenue by Geographical Location
The Group's revenues frarm continuing operations from external customers by geographical location are detailed below:
2018 2017
£m £m
United Kingdom 57.6 515
Eurcpe (exciuding United Kingdom) 37 35
North Amernca 5.6 6.0
Rest of world 36 3.7
76.5 6847

Substantally all of the Group's net assets are located In the United Kingdom The Directors therefore consider that the Group currently

operates In a single geographical segment, being the United Kingdom.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Segmental reporting continued

The Group's revenue from continuing operations by type 15 as follows:

2018 2017
£Em £m
Sale of goods and services -
Premium content 17.6 181
Live events 261 267
Advertising 12.6 135
Capabiity Services 141 61
Other B 01 03
) 705 64,7
3 Net operating expenses
Operating profit / (loss) 1s stated after charging
Adjusted Adjusting Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Stelutory
Resuits Items Results Resuits Items Resulis
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Note £m £ Em £€m £m £m
Net forelg-n exchange losses 7 o - N - G3 o _Tiiﬁi(},g’
Employse benetts expense 5 369 0.4 373 309 02 311
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 0.9 - 0.9 o7 - 07
Amortisation of intangtbie assets 1 2.8 2.8 5.6 28 25 53
Impairment of goodwaill 10 - 134 131 - - -
Earn-qut consideration 4 - - - - 0.6 0.8
Acquisition related costs - - -~ - 0.6 0.6
Other exceptional operating costs 4 - 21 21 - - -
Operating lease rentals 29 1.6 - 1.6 1.8 - 18
Repairs and maintenance expenditure 01 - 01 02 - 0.2
Impairment of trade recevables 28 03 - 0.3 05 - 05
Share-based payment expense 25 - 0.e 0.8 - 05 05
Other operating expenses 235 - 235 241 - 24 1
66.1 19.2 85.3 613 44 657
Cost of sales 30.4 - 30.4 291 - 281
Distnbution costs 0.5 - 0.5 o5 - 05
Administrative expenses N 35.2 19.2 54.4 317 44 36.1
66.1 19.2 85.3 61.3 44 B57

See ncte 1(b) and 4 for detalls of adjusting iterms,




Services provided by the Company’s auditors

2018 2017

£'000 £000

Fees payable to the Company'é _audnors for the audit of Company and consolidated ﬁnarWC|aI‘stateme;tg- 214 210

Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services

The audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant tc legisiation 58 10

Total audit fees ' o 272 220

Audrt related asisirar;c;;égmces ’ D 25 2

QOther assurance services - 303
Total non-audit-fe;es o - - 25 325 )

Total fees o ) 297 545

Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of Company and consclidated financial staternents include non-recurnng fees of

£34,000 (2017 £60,000)

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries includes non-recurning fees of £23,000 in relation to the

Econ Asia Singapore audit

In the pnior year, other assurance services Included covenant compliance (£7,500), acquisition related costs (£100,000) and disposal related
costs {£195,000}. There are no other assurance services in the current year

4 Adjusting items

As discussed n note 1(D), certain tems are presented as adjusting These are detailed below

2018 2017
Continuing operations Note £m £m
Exceptional 6perat|ng costs h - -
Staff related restructuring costs 5 0.4 02
Costs relating to strategic corporate restructunng inhiatves 0.3 -
Divestment related costs .8 -
Exceptonal operating costs - : ’ - 25 o2
Impairment of goodwill 10 131 -
Amortisation of acquired ntangible assets 11 2.8 25
Share-based payment expense 25 0.8 a5
Earn-out consideration 4 - 06
Costs relating to business acquisiton 14 - 06
Ad;aE{\ng'ltems to p}cﬁt before tax ) - T 192 44
Tax relating to adjusting tems 7 {0.9) {C5)
Total adjusting items after tax 18.3 39
_Discontinued operations . -
Profit on disposal of subsidiary 8/15 [Ls )] 209
Tax relating to adjusting items -~ -
18.2 (170}

Total adjusting items after tax
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Adjusting items continued
Exceptional costs

Staff related restruicturing costs

During 2018 staff related restructurng costs of £0.2m related to the closure of the E-consuttancy Asia Pacific office, £0.1m related 1o
restructuring of the Marketing portfolio and £0.1m related 1o the restructurning of the m-house production function

During 2017, exceptional restructunng costs of £0 2m were iIncurred as a result of the recrgarisation of the Human Resourcas functon and
the exit from print Whilst similar costs have been incurred previously, such costs linked to the Group's transformation programme are not
expected to recur once this 1s completed, and as such these costs are deemed to be exceptional in nature

Costs relabing 10 strategic corporate restructunng imvatives

In 2018 these relate 1o professional fees for the corporate simpilfication programme to restructure the Group ahead of the divestrment
programme announced in October 2018

Divestment related costs

In 2018 these relate to vanous transaction refated and professionat fees for the divestment programme announced in October 2018,
accelerating the simplfication of the Group's structure to )mprove operational execution and to focus attention on the leading brands within
its Marketing division

Other adjusting 1items

Other adjusting items relate to the amortisation of acquired ntangible assets (see note 11) and share-based payment costs (see note 25)
as well as the tems discussed below,

Gaoodwill impairment

An impairment of £13 1m has been recognised aganst goodwill primanly relating tc events to be closed and other businesses within the
marketing portfoko. There were no impairments in the prior year See note 10 for further details

Farn-out consideratian

in 2017, a charge of £0 5m was recopnised 1 relation 1o acquisiion earn-out consideration for Cystercaichers See note 14 of the Group's
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 for further details, There was no such charge in 2018.

Costs relating to the acquisition of business

In 2017 these costs related to the acquision of MarketMakers Incorporated Limited {"MarketMakers'} (see note 14), These costs Included
stamp duty of £0.1m, sponsors’ fees of £0.1m, legal fees of £0 1m, due dikgence and planning fees of £0 1m and vanous other professional
fees of £0 2m No such costs were incurred n 2018

Profit on disposal of subsidiary
During 2018, £0.1m addticnal profit on disposal arose in relation to the Home Interest disposal following the agreement of final completion
accounts

On 1 August 2017, the Group sold its business-to-consurmer division, the Home Interest segment, recognising a profit on disposal of
£20.8m (see note 15 for more detall)
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2018 2017 2018 2017
Group Group Company Company
£€m £m £m £m
Wages and salaries 322 269 1.0 13
Social secunty costs 37 31 0.2 A
Other pension costs 1.0 09 01 cA
Adjusted staff costs 36.9 309 13 15
Exceptional staff related restructunng costs (note 4) 0.4 0z - -
Earn-out consideration (note 4} - 06 - _
Equity-settled share-based payments (note 25) 0.8 05 o.8 g2
3841 32.2 21 1.7

The avarage monthly number of employees empicyed dunng the year, including Directors, was’
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 3t December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Group Group Company Company
Number Number Number Number
Marketing 502 307 - ~
Financial Services 41 43 - -
Professional 84 g0 - -
Central 1 148 4 4
758 589 4 4

With the exception of MarketMakers, the Group's employees have contracts of service with Centaur Communications Limited and are paid
by Chiron Communications Limrted, both of which are Group companies As the employees provide services to the Company, therr costs
are recharged and the relevant drsclosures are made in the financial statements, The MarketMakers' employees are employed and paid

by MarketMakers Incorporated Limrted

Key management compensation

Year ended ‘Year ended

31 December 31 Decembar

2018 2017

£m £m

Salanes and short-term employment benefits 1.8 25

Termination benefits [+X] -

Post-employment benefits 01 01

Share-based payments 0.6 0.3

Earn-out consideration - 0.2
2.6

Key management 1s defined as the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Directors and employees continued
Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

208 2017
£m £m
Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits n kind 0.9 12
Charge under long term incentive schemes 0.3 02
Paost-employment benefits 01 01
13 156

Highest paid Director's remuneration
2018 2017
£m £m
Salaries, fees, bonuses and benetis n KiNg 0.4 [4X6)
Charge under long term incentive schemes 0.2 [
06 Q7

Ng Directors exercised share options during the current or pnor year No Directors were paid compensation In respect of loss of office during
ether year Further details of Directars’ remuneration are included in the Remuneration Committee Report between pages 38 to 53,

6 Finance costs

2018 2017

£m £m

interest payable on revolving credrt facility B - 02
Commitment fees and amortisation of arrangement fee

i respect of revotving credit faciity 0.2 oz

Total finance costs 0.2 04

All finance costs are 10 relation to the £25m revolving credit faciity, none of which 1 drawn-down at 31 December 2018 (2017 £ni). As
indicated by the consolidated cash flow statement, all draw-downs from this facility durng the year were aiso repaid wrthin the year. Finance
costs N relation to this faciity resulted in cash outflows by the Company and Group of £0.4m dunng the year (2017, £0 3m).
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7 Taxation
2018 2017
£m £m
Analysis of charge for the year
Current tax
UK Corporation Tax 0.8 12
Cverseas tax 0.3 01
Adjustments in respect of prior years - o1
11 T 14
Deferred tax (note 16) T o S T
Current penod (0.9} 0 6)
Adjustments in respect of prnor years {0.) -
{1.0) 0.6)
Taxation 01 0.8
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) / profit in the statement of comprehensive income as foliows
2018 2017
£m £m
{Loss)/profit before tax {14.2) 227
Tax at the UK rate of corporation tax of 18 00% (2017 19 25%) (2.7 43
Effects of:
Expenses not deductble for tax pursoses 27 04
Profit on disposal - @ n
Deferred tax not recognisec ok -
Adjustments in respect of prior years (0.1) 01
Different tax rates of subsidiares in other jurnsdictions 0.1 [oR]
Taxation 01 08

The Finance Act 2015 inciuded legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 18% from 1 Aprii 2017 and to 17% from
1 Apnl 2020 This change had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, the Group's deferred tax balances are

recorded at 17%

A reconciiation between the reported tax expense and the adjusted tax expense, taking account of adjusting tems as discussed

in note 1{t) and 4 15 shown below

2018 2017

£m £m

E%éﬁéd tax expense 01 o8
Effects of:

Amortisation of acguired intangible assets 0.4 03

Share-based payments 01 C1

Excepticnal expenses 0.4 01

Adjusted tax expense 1.0 13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 Discontinued operations

In the prior year, on 1 August 2017 the Group disposed of its Home Interest segment, compnsed of Centaur Consumer Exhibions
Limited and Ascent Publishing Limited The disposal was effected in ine with the Group's strategy to become a pure business-to-business

{'B2B") business.

The results of the discontinued operations, which were included in the consolidated statement of comprehensie income and consclidated

cash flow statement, were as follows-

Statement of comprehensive income

Ravenug
Expenses

Profit on d|sposair

Profit before tax
Aftributable tax expense

éte&utory profit after tax

Profit on disposal

Adjusted profit attributable to discontinued operations

Cash Flows

"Operating cash flows
Investng cash flows
Financing cash flows

Total cash flows

Dunng 2018, £0.1m additional profit on disposal arose In reiation to the Home Interest disposal following the agreement of final

compietion accounts.

Year ended
31 December
2018

£m

(0.1)

Year ended
31 December
2018

£m

Year ended
31 July 2017
£m

72
“n
209

234
0.4
230

21

Period ended

31 July 2017
£m

o7

In 2017, a profit of £20.9m arase on the disposal of the Home Interest segment, being the difference between proceeds of disposal and the
carrying amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets and attrbutable goodwill, less £1.9m of transaction costs



9 (Loss)/earnings per share

Basic earnings per share {EPS’) 1s calculated by dividing the earmings attributabte to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of shares In 1IssUe during the year 857,991 (2017: 91,191) shares held in the employee benefit trust and 6,964,613 (2017, 6,964,613) shares
held in treasury have been excluded n amving at the waighted average number of shares

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares nissue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares This compgnses share options and awards (ncluding those granted under the share save plan} granted to Directors
and employess where the exercise price 15 less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year

Basic and chiuted earnings per share have also been presented on an adjusted continung and discontinued basis, as the Directers believe
that these measures are more reflective of the underlying performance of the Group These have been calculated as follows

2018 2017
{Losses} / 2018 (Lasses) / 2017
Earnings Weighted 2018 earnings Weighted 2017
attributable average {Loss) / attributable average {Loss) /
to owners of number of Earnings to owners of number of Earnings
the parent shares per share the parent shares per share
£m milligns Pence £m millions Pence
Basic
Continuing operations (14.3) 143.9 €9 (11) 144 4 0.8}
Continuing and discontinued operations (14.2) 143.9 (2.9 219 144 4 152
Effect of dilutive securities
Options' Continuing operations - - - - - -
Optons Continuing and discontinued operations - - - - 83 0.9
Diluted
Continuing operations [14.3} 143.9 {8.9) 11 144 4 08
Gontinuing and discontinued operations {14.2) 143.9 89 219 1627 143
Adjusted
Continuing operations
Basic {14.3) 1439 (9.9) (11 144 4 0 8)
Amoertisation of acquired intangibles (note 11) 2.8 1.9 24 1.7
Impairment of trade recevables - - -
Earn-out consideration (note 4) - 06 0.4
Cther exceptional costs (note 4) 2.5 17 03 02
Share-based paymenis (note 25} 0.8 0.6 Q.5 0.3
Impairment of goodwill {note 10} 131 91 -
Acquisition related costs {note 14) - - 0.6 04
Tax effect of above adjustments (0.9) 0.6) {C 5) o3
Discontinued operations
Basic 01 143.9 - 230 144 4 160
Amortisation of acguired intangibles - . - -
Impairment of trade recevables - - - -
Profit on disposal (ncte 15) (o) - (20.8) (14 5)
Tax effect of above adustment B - o o o o
Adjusted basic
Continuing operations 4.0 143.9 2.8 28 144 4 1.9
Gontinuing and discontinued operations 4.0 143.9 238 49 144.4 34
Effect of dilutive secunties
Options Continuing operations - 10.8 {0.2) - 83 1)
Options. Continuing and discontinued operations - 10.8 (0.2) - 83 ©2)
Adjusted diluted
Continuing operations 4.0 154.7 26 28 1527 18
Contnuing and discontnued operations o . an 1547 26 49 1527 32

N
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9 (Loss)/earnings per share continued

Adjusted Adjusted Statutory AdJusted Adjusted Statutory
Results” Items? Resulis Results? Itams? Resuits
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
£m £m £m £Em £m £fm
Earnings per share attributable to owners
of the parent
Fully diluted from continuing operations 2.6p (12.7p) (9.9p) 18p (2.6p) {C 8p)
Fully dituted from discontinued operations - - - 14p 137p 15 1p
Fully diluted from profit / {oss) for the year _ 286p (1279 {9.9p)  32p Mip 143p

In 2018 there was no difference between the waighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic and the diluted foss per
share as the effect of all potentially dilutive shares outstancing was anti-dilutive.

10 Goodwiill

Group
Cost £m
"At 1 January 2017 T - 1563
Addrtions n the year (note 14) 10
Disposal of subsidiary (note 15) (7 9)
At 31 December 2017 S ) T 7 1594
Addrions i the year {note 14} 01
At 31 December 2018 ' T o T o 1595
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2017 842
Disposal of subsidiary {(note 15) {0.4)
‘At 31 December 2017 S o T T 7 s3s
Charge for the year 131
At31 December 2018 o S T T 96.9
Net book value
At 31 December 2018 62.6
At 31 December 2017 B - 756

Additions and disposals in the prior year relate to the acquisthon of MarketMakers and disposal of the Home Interest segment respectively

Addtions 1 the year relate to adahonal consderahon pad on the prar year acquisition of MarketMakers faliowing the finalisation of
contingent consideration paid during the year. See note 14 for further details

The largest adjusting tem of £12 8m relates tc the imparrment of goodwill which primanly relates to everts to be closed and other
businesses within the marketing portfolic Following a review of expected cashflows from the Financial Services portfolio, the carrying value
of ts goodwill was impaired by £0 3m




Goodwiil by segment

Each brand 15 deemed to be a Cash Generabng Unit {{CGU"), being the lowest level at which cash flows are separately ientfiable.
Goodwill1s attnbuted to indmdual GGUs and in prior years has been reviewed at the operating segment level for the purposes of the annual
Impairment review as this s the ievel at which management monitors goodwill. However, in ight of cur simplfication plan, the Professional
segment has been considered at a lower leve! and spiit into 1ts sub-porticlios {Legal and Other Professional) for the purposes of the
mpairment review. The maortty of the Group's goodwill arcse on the acquisition ¢of Centaur Communications Group in 2004

Goodwill is allocated to segments as follows.

Financial Other
Marketing Services Legal Professional Home Interest Total

£m £ £m m £m £m
At 1 January 2017 379 51 160 56 75 721
Addhions 10 - - - - 11.0
Irmpaiment charge - - - - {7 5) {7 5)
At 31 December 2017 489 51 B TYY) 56 - 75.6
Addtens 0.1 - - - - ot
Impairment charge (12 8) 03 - - - {13 1)
At 31 December 2018 36.2 a8 16.0 56 - 626

Impairment testing of goodw!ll and acquired intangible assets

Durng the year, goodwil and acguired intangible assets were tested for iImparment in accordance with IAS 38, In assessing whether a
wite-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets 1s reguired, the carrying value of the segment 1s compared with its recoverable
amount Recoverable amounts are measured based on value-in-use

The Group estimates the value-in-use of s CGUs using a discounted cash fiow model, which adjusts the cash flows for nsks associated
with the assets and discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 11 3% (2017 11 4%) The discount rate used 1s consistent with the Group's
weighted average cost of capital and s used across all segments, which are all based predominantly in the UK and considered to have

similar nsks and rewards

The key assumptions used In calculating value-Iin-use are revenue growth, margn, adusted EBITDA, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate The Group has used formally approved forecasts for the first three years of the calcutation and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.5%
{2017. 2.0%). This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropnate given the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues.

The assumptions used n the calculations of value-in-use for each segment have been derived based on a combination of past experience
and management’s expectatons of future growth rates in the business

At 31 December 2018, before impairment testing, goodwill of £48 9m, £21 6m and £5 1m was allocated to the Marketing, Frofessional,
and Financial Services segments respectively. Prior to a full impairment test, the goodwill of each segment was reviewed This led to an
mparment of £12 8m to be recegnised in the Marketing segment primarily relates to events to be closed and other businesses within the
marketing portfolio, and an impairment of £0 3m in the Financial Services segment following a review of expected cash flows Considenng
these impairments, goodwill of £36 2m, £21 6m and £4.8m was allecated to the Marketing, Professional, and Financia! Services segment
respechvely It is these goodwill carrying values of the segments that have been compared with therr recoverable amount in these

impairment tests.

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-calculations, holding all other variables constant, tor

) apply a 10% reduction to forecast adjusted EBITDA in each year of the modelled cash flows No impairment would occur 1n any the
segments

(I apply a 2 0% increase in discount rate from 11.3% to 13 3% No mparment would occur in any of the segments.

{1} reduce the terminal value growth rate from 2 5% to 1 5% No imparment would occur in any of the segments
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11 Other intangible assets

Separatety

Brands and acquired

Computer publishing Customar wabsites
saftware* rights* relationships® and content* Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Caost
At 1 January 2017 132 5.8 12.5 a7 362
Additions - separately acquired 1.5 - - - 15
Addtions - Internally generated t2 - - - 12
Additions - business comoinaticn {note 14) 07 08 36 - 51
Disposal of subsihiary (note 15) o ©08___ (o__ o7 - ez
_At 31 December 2017 L o T el s 154 a7 418
Additions - separately acquired t8 - -7 - 18
_Addttions - internally generated S 07 . L. R o7
At31 December 2018 L . 188 56 _ 154 a7 243
Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2017 6.9 21 63 a2 19.5
Ameortisation charge for the year 29 03 17 04 53
Disposals of subsidiary (nate 15) 03 - (09 [0R]] L 16)
At31 December 2017 __ S 8s 1872 a_ 232
Amortisation charge for the year } 29 04 2z 61 __.__858
At 31 December 2018 ~ 124 23 2.4 4.7 288
Net book value at 31 December 2018 B ) T 82 33 6.0 0.0 15.5
Net book value at 31 December 2017 i 66 37 8.2 01 1886
‘Net book value at 1 January 2017 ) 63 37 62 05 16 7

* Amortisation of £2.8m (2017 £2 5m) of acquwgg ntangicle assets frc;m busingss combmatlonsilgpresented as an ad](Jstlng item (see note 1{b) for

further infarmnation) The current year charge of £2 8mincludes £0 1m i computer software (2017 £0 1mj)

The Cormpany has no intangiole assets (2017: £nil} Amortisation of intangible assets 1s ncluded in net operating expenses In the statement

of comprehensive income.




12 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Fixtures Computer
improvements and fittings equipment Total
£m £m £m £€m

Cost T
At 1 January 2017 2.2 o7 1.0 3.9
Addrions - separately acquired (O} - 01 oz
Addittons - business combination (hote 14) - - 02 02
Oisposal of subsidiary (note 15) ©Mn 01N — 0.2)
'At 31 December 2017 o 22 06 13 41
Additions - separately acquired - o - o __6-_1_ T 0.4 0.5
At31 December 2018 - - 2.2 o7 17 a8
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017 12 03 o4 19
Depreciation charge for the year 02 a1 04 o7
Disposal of subsidiary (note 15) 01 [(OID] - {02
At 31 December 2017 13 os 08 24
Depreciation charge for the yeiz?i o ’ ' a o3 T oz T TTToa ' co
‘At31 December 2018 - 1& 05 12 33
Net book value at 31 December 2018 0.6 0.2 05 13
Net bock value at 31 December 2G17 B B 09 03 0s 17
“Net book value at 1 January 2017 1.0 04 06 2.0

The Company has no property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2018 (2017 £nil)
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13 Investments

Investmaents
in subsidiary
undertakings
Company £m
Cost
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 T S T sB2
Transfer from amounts receivable from subsidianes 49
At 31 December 2018 S /s e T/ e T T et
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2017, 31 Decemnber 2017 12.2
Imparmeant charge for year 131
'A131December 2018 - o - i - 253
Net book value S ’ N o S o ’ o
‘At 31 December 2018 - - T 1258
X ! T T - ) 1340

At 1 January 2017, 31 Decemier 2017

Following an internal corporate restructure in the year, £4 9m of intercompany balances due from subsidianes of Centaur Media pic

were capitalised

The Company mpaired its investment in the group durng the year following an imparrment test which identified the value in use no longer
supported the carrying value of the nvestment. The rematning balance 1s supported by the underlying trade of the group

There were no disposals In the current year. The Group disposed of its interests in the following subsidiaries on 1 August 2017+

Name

Proportion of
ordinary shares
and veting
rights held (%)

Principal activities

Country of incorpatation

Ascent Publishing Limited -
Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited

100
100

D:glfal anad print pubhshing
Exhibrtions

Un—ned Kingdom
United Kingdom

The gain on disposal of Ascent Publishing Limited and Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited was £20.9m A further gain on disposal of
£0.1m was recognised in 2018 following agreement of final completion accounts. The gan on disposal 1s presented as an Adjusting ltem
against net operating expenses on the statermant of comprenensive Incorme



Name

Propartion of
ordinary shares
and voting rights
held (%)

Principal activities

Country of
incorporation

Centaur Communications Limited *
Centaur Engineenng Limited 2

Centaur Financial Platforms Limited 2
Centaur Human Resources Limited ¢
Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Lim
Centaur Media USA Inc 8

Centaur Newco 2018 Limited™

Chiron Communications Lirmited
E-consuitancy Asta Pacific Pty Limited 7
E-consultancy Australa Pty Limited ®
E-consultancy LLC ®
E-consultancy.com Limited
MarketMakers Incorporated Limited '
Mayfield Publishing Limited

Pro-talk Ltd

Taxbriefs Holdings Limited

Taxbriefs Limited

Thetawyer com Limited '2

Venture Business Research Limited
Xeim Limited '3

Your Business Magazine Limited

100
100
100
100
ited * 100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100

Holding company and agency semices
Other publishing activities

Research data and analysis

Events and information serices

Other publishing activities

Digttal information, fraining and events
Media representation services

Digtal information, training and events
Dormant

Drgrtal information, training and events
Digrtal nformation, training and events
Digital information, traning and events
Telemarkating and Research
Investment company

Digital Publishing

Holding company

Digetal and print publishing

Publishing of consumer and business
journals and penodicals

Research data and analysis
Cigital nformation services
Investment company

United Kingdoem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
Australa

United States
Urited Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urrted Kingdem
United Kingdom
United ¥ingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Untted Kingdom

Directly owned by Centaur Media Pic

Subsidiary incorporated orn 14 September 2018 No previous interest held
Subsidiary changed registered name from Investment Platforms Limited on 24 October 2018

Subsidiary iIncorporated on 14 November 2018 INo previous Interest heid

Regustered address 1s 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400 Wilmmngton, DE18808, USA Funchional currency 18 USD
Registered address 15 30 Ceail Street, #19-08 Prudential Tower, Singapore 049712, Functional currency 1s USD

;
2
3
¢ Bubsidiary changed registered name from The Forum For Expatriate Management Limited on 05 December 2018,
5
[
7

L

©

Registered address 1s Level 17, 383 Kent Streat, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia. Functicnat currency is AUD
Registered address 1s 41 East, 11 Street, 11FI, New York, NY 10003, USA Funchional currency 1s USD

" Registered address 1s 1000 Lakeside North Harbour Western Road, Portsmouth, Hampshie, POB 3EN

" Subsichary acquired on 02 August 201

12 Subsidiary meorporated on 31 July 2018, No previous interest heid

7 No previous interest hetd,

'? Subsidiary changed registered name from The Profile Group (UK} Limited on 14 January 2019,

** Subsidiary incorporated on 13 December 2018 No previous interest held

The registered address ot all subsidiary companies s 79 Wells Street, London, W1T 30N, United Kingdom, with the exception of those
dentfied above The functional currency of all subsidianes s GBP except for those identfied above The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of all entites controlled by the Company at 31 December 2018.
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14 Business combination

In the pnor year Centaur Communications Limited, a Group company, acquired 100% of the Issued share caprtal of MarketMakers
incorporated Limited (‘MarketMakers’), a busingss-to-husiness (‘B2R’) telemarketing agency The resi s of MarkatMakears are included

In the Marketing segment. The £7 9m net identifiable assets of MarketMakers were acquired for total purchase consideration of £18.9m,
resutbing in £11.0m of goodwili. The consideration was wholly cash, including contingent consideraton of £1 7m and deferred consideration
of E01m

During 2018, an amount of £1.8m was settied in relation to contingent consideration of £1 7m The additional £0.1m paid was due to
MarketMakers achieving a twgher EBITDA than expected. As the settlement came within the measurement penod the carrying value
of goodwill related to the acquisition of MarketMakers has been increased by £0 1m (Note 10). £0.1m of deferred consideration is still
outstancing at the year end. (Note 23)

Further details of this acquisition can be found in note 14 of the Group's Annual Report and Financial Staterments for the year
ended 31 December 2017

There were no business combinations N 2018,

15 Disposal of subsidiary

In the prior year the Group disposed of its interest iIn ts Home Interest segment, by way of sale of 100% of the equity shares of Ascent
Publishing Limited and Centaur Consumer Exhibitions L'mited  Net assets attributable to Shareholders of the Company were disposed
for a total consideration of £32 8m. This resulted in & gain on disposal of £20 9m. £1.7m of costs were considered directly attributable
tc the disposat

During 2018 an additional amount of £0 1m was recewed following the agreement of final completion accounts resuting N a proft on
disposal from discontinued operations during the year

Further details of this disposal can be found 0 note 15 of the Group's Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2017

There were no disposais in 2018



16 Deferred tax

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s shown below

Accelerated Other
capital tempotary Tax
allowances differences losses Total
£m £m £m £m
Net asset / {liability) at 1 January 2017 04 (0 8B) 02 0.2)
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 0.2 0.4 - (033}
Ansing on business combination (10) - (10
Disposed 0.1 - - ©1
Net asset / (liability) at 31 December 2017 05 {1 4) g2 09
Adjustments 1N respect of prior period 0.1 - - 01
Recogrised in the staterment of comprehensive ncome 01 0.9 (0. 1) 098
Net asset / (liability) at 31 December 2018 07 (0.5} Q1 0.3
Deferred tax assets and liabilites are only offset where there I1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an intention to settle the
balances net,
2018 2017
Group Group
£m £m
Deferred tax assets within one year T 0.8 - o7
Deferred tax labiities within one year (0.5) (14
Total 0.3 {0.7)

At the statement of financial position Gate, the Group has unused tax losses of £1 2m (2017, £1 4m) avalable for offset aganst future
profits A deferred tax asset of £0 1m {2017 £0 2m) has been recogrised in respect of £0 6m (2017 £1 Om) of such tax losses No deferred
tax has been recogmised in respect of the remaining £0.6m (2017 £0 4m) as it 1s not currently considered probabie that there wilt be future

sufficient taxable profits avalable Unrecognised losses may be carried forward indefintely Deferred tax assets and llabilties are expected to
be materially realised after 12 months

17 Inventories

2018 2017

Group Group

Em £€m

Work in progress 1.4 1.4

The Gompany had no inventory at 31 December 2018 (2017 £nif}

There are no provision amounts N respect of nventenes {2017 £nil) and there were no write-downs of inventory 1n the year (2017, £nil).
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18 Trade and other receivables

2018 2017 2018 2017
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade recevables 10.2 10.5 - -
Less' expected credr ioss (note 28) (1.2) {15) - -
Trade recenables -net " eo 90 - -~
Receivables from subsidiaries - - 2.0 27
Recewvable from Employee Benefit Trust - -~ 0.4 -
Other recevablas 17 a9 04 a3
Prepayments 17 14 01 -
Accrued income 0.5 o3 - -
Social securty and other taxes - - 0.2 e
Tz,g - 116 31 3.0
Recewables from subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed due date and bear mnterest at an annual rate of 2 67% (2017 2.39%)
In 2018, trade receivablas are accounted for under IFRS 9 using the expected credit loss modet, recognised inmally at fair value and
subseguently at amortised cost less any allowance for expected credit losses For further deta refer to note 1 (sj{n}
19 Cash and cash equivalents
2018 2017
Group Group
€m £€m
Cash at bank and in hand 041 4.1
The Company had no cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2018 (2017 £nil)
20 Trade and other payables
2018 2017 2018 2017
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables T 2.7 26 - T
Payabtles to subsidiaries - - 53.3 439
Social secunty and other taxes 24 11 - -
Other payables 0.8 14 - -
Accruals ) 6.8 5.8 0.5 06
12.4 109 53.8 44 5

Payables to subsichanes are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear nterest at an annual rate of 2 67% (2017, 2 39%).

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the trade payables approximates therr far value



21 Deferred income

2018 2017
Group Group
£fm £m
Events 87 84
Subscriptions 6.3 6.2
15.0 146
22 Current tax asset
2018 2017
Group Group
£m £m
Corporaticn tax receivables 0.2 -
The Company had no corporation tax recervailes or payables at year end (2017 £rul}
23 Provisions
Deferred
consideration Other Total
£m £m £m
Group
At 1 January 2017 c4 - 04
Charged to statement of comprehensive income dunng the year 0.5 - 05
Transferred from equity 03 - 03
Acguistion related {note 14) 18 o1 19
Utiised in the year {12 - (12
At 31 December 2017 18 01 1.9
Acquisition related (note 14} 0.1 - 01
Utiised in the year {18 - (1.8)
At 31 December 2018 01 04 0.2
Current 01 - 0.1
Non-current - 0.1 o1
Total 0.1 0.1 0.2

Deferred consideration

Deferred consideration at 31 December 2017 related to the acquistion of Market Makers Incorporated Limited (‘MarketMakers'). An
addmonal amount of £6.1m contingent consideration was provided for dunng the year due to MarketMakers achieving a higher EBITDA than

expected £1 8m was settled in cash dunng the year

The remaining balance of £0 1m was held as a current provision at 31 December 2017 as it was expected to be settled dunng FY18

However, the consideration remained unsettied at 31 December 2018 and therefore a current provision still exists for this at the year end.

The amount of £0 1m was settied in full in January 2019

Other

The cther provision relates to the dilapidation provision which was acquired on the acquistion of MarketMakers in relation to the bulding

leased by the Company In Portsmouth.

All armounts represent the Directors' best estimate of the balance to be paud at the statement of financial posttion date
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24 Equity
Nominal value Number of
Qrdinary shares of 10p each £m shares
Authonsed share caprtal — Group and Company
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 200 200,000,000
iasued and fully paid share captal — Group and Compary
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 3t December 2018 15.1 151,410,226

Deferred shares reserve

The deferred shares reserve represents 800,000 (2017. 800,000} deferred shares of 10p each, which carry restricted voting nghts and have
no nght to receve a dvidend payment in respect of any financial year

Reserve for shares 1o be issued

The reserve for shares to be 1ssued 15 In respect of equity-seftled share-based compensation plans The changes to the reserve for shares to
be 1ssued represent the total charges for the year relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions with emnployees as accounted
for under \FRS 2

Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve rgpresents the vaiue of shares held as treasury shares and in an employee benefit trust. At 31 Decerber 2018,
6,964,613 (2017 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 857,991 (2017, 91,191) 10p ordinary shares are held n an

employee benefit trust
Dunng 2018, the employee beneft trust purchased 766,800 (2017, i} ordinary shares held in the employee benefit trust in order to meet future

obligations ansing from share-based rewards to employees The shares were acquired at an average price of 45 9p per share, with prices
ranging from 36p to 52p The total cost of £U 4m (2017 O 1m) has been recognised in other reserves in the own shares reserve in equity.

In 2017 the Cormpany purchased 94,176 ordinary shares to be held in treasury in order to meet future obligations ansing from share-based
rewards to employees The buyback programme was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 9 May 2017 up to
avalue of £1 Om The shares were acquired at an average pnce of 53.58p per share, with pnces ranging from 468p to 55p. The total cost of
£0 1m was recognised In other reserves in the own shares reserve n equity

25 Share-based payments

The Group's share-based payment expense for the year by scheme:

2018 2017
£m £m
Equity-settled plans ; : )
LTIP 0.8 05
%oi;aliéquny/;ettled ;r;;;eﬁtlvé piéns;; a;ng;hare baééd pa);ringnrtﬁe;xpensei I T 7 6; T 0-5- )

The Group's share-based payment schemes upen vesting are equity-settled. In the prior year opening reserves In equity were restated
to account for histoncal share plan vests See note 1(a) for details,

The current year charge of £0 8m includes £0.1m in relation 1o national Insurance payable on equity settied share-based schemes and
15 ncluded in labhties as it s to be settled in cash



Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP') for Executive Directors and selected senior management. This 1s an existing
incentive policy and was approved by shareholders at the 2016 AGM. The share awards are valued at date of grant and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income 1s charged over the vesting penod, taking into account the number of shares expected to vest.
Full detals of how the scheme operates are included in the Remuneration Report

These awards were priced using the following medels and inputs.

LTIP 2018

LTIP 2018

LTIP 2016

LTIP 2016

LTIP 2016  LTIP 2016

LTIP 2006

LTIP 2006

LTIP 2006

LTIP 2006

Grant date
Share price at
grant date
Farr value
Exercise date

Exercise pnice (p}

Numberof
awards

Balance at 1
January 2018
Granted dunng
the year

Forfeited dunng
the year
Exercised dunng
the year

Lapsed dunng
the year

Balance at 31
Decernber 2018

Exermsable at 31-
December 2018
Average share
price at date of
exercise (P}

06 04 18

50.20
2865
06.04 21

£nil

06.04.18

5020
2510

06.04 20
and
06 04 21

£rul

24.04 17

45.75
24.46
2404 20

1,248,879

1,246,879

2,145375

{40,485}

204,890

Balance at 1
January 2017
Granted during
the year
Forferted during
the year
Exercised dunng
the year

Lapsed during
the year

Balance at 31
Decemer 2017

Exercisable at 31
December 2017

Average share
orice at date of
exercise (o)

1,351,528

1,351,528

Toro0217

40 75

2108

0704 20

3,589,405

{630,619

041016 220916

44.00
18.04
041019

41.00
16 81
220919

£ £l

573,395 366,667

300318

49.00
2092
30.03 19

il

27 10.15

7825
47 42
281018

1008 15

805
48.22

100818

£t

2,058,390

{75,901}

3,758,228

(168,823)

3,589,405

573,395 366,667

2,514,797

{455,407)

573,385 366,667

2,059,390

143,036

143,036

108,556

108,556

2603 15

695
42 43
230318

£l

842,992

(842,992)

1,115,439

{272,447)

143,036 108,656 842,992

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a weighted average exercise price of £ril (2017 £nil) and a weighted remaining Ife of
1 4 years (2017 1 7 years)
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25 Share-based payments CONTINUED

LTIP2018 LTIP2018 LTIP2016  LTIP2076 LTIP2016 LTIP2016 LTIP2006 LTIP 2006  LTIP 2006
Grant date 06.0421 06.0420 24,0417 07.0417 041016 220916 300316 271015 100815 2603156

LTIP 2006

and

06 04 21
Expected
volatility (%) 43.5 43.5 454 454 438 43.8 31.8 281 36.8 394
Expected
dividend
yield (%) - - - - - - - - - -
Risk free 0.86 086 012 012 06 006 048 0.69 102 058
interest
rate {%)
Valuahion of Btack-
model used Stochastic Scholes  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastc  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic Stochastic Stochastic

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan {'SELTIP’)

The Centaur Media Plc 2010 Senior Executive Long-Term incentive Plan (the ‘SELTIP") was introduced dunng 2011 and was approved by
shareholders at the 2010 AGM This 1s not an HMRC approved scheme and vests over a three-year penod with service and performance
condfions Awards were granted under ¥his scheme n 2013 for no consideration and no exercise price This scheme has closed 1o new awards

Awards of bonus units were rmade in 2013 as summansed 11 the following table.

Number

of shares

Financial Threshold PBTA Profit SELTIP Total Bonus pool awarded in
year profit achieved growth contribution bonus pool allocated* total™"
2013 £8.0m £8 6m £0 6m 30% £01m £0.1m 118,851

“The Remuneration Committee did not atlocate the entire bonus pod In 2013
“ Awards were only made o participants with continuing employment



Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs

SELTIP 2013
Grant date ’ 1509171
Share price at grant date 33.88
Fair value 2376
Exercise date 1709 14
Exercise price (p) £nd
Number of awards
Balance at 1 January 2018 6,862
Granted during the year -
Forferted dunng the year -
Exercised during the year -
Balance at 31 December 2018 ) o - ) S s8e2
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 o . 6,862
Average share price at date of exercise @ ) o T - -
Balance at 1 January 2017 | o o | T 6,862
Granted during the period -
Forfeited during the period -
Exercised during the penod -
Balance at 31 December 2017 o S 7 6,862
‘Exercisable at 31 December 2017 - ) 8882

_Averag_e_ share p_n-c_e_ at date of exercise H{#)]

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a weighted average exercise price of £nil {2017 £nil) and a weighted remaining life of 3 7

years (2017, 4.7 years)
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25 Share-based payments continued

These awards were pnced using the following models and inputs:

SELTIP 2013

Grant date 1509 11
Expected volatiity {%) 54.0
Expected dwvidend yield (%) 526
Risk free intarest rate (%) 0.57
Black-Scholes

Medet of valuation used

Share Incentive Plan

The Group has a Shara Incertiva Plan, which s 2 HRMC approved Tax-Advantaged plan, which provides ernployees with the opportunity

to purchase shares in the Company This plan is open to all employees who have been employed by the Group for more than 12 months

Employess may nvest up to £1,80C per annum {or 10% of ther salary if less) in ordinary shares n the Company, which are held in trust

The shares are purchased in open market and are held in trust for each employee. The shares can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time,

cr tax-free after five years The Group matches the contribution with a ratio of one share for every two purchased, Other than continuing

employment, there are no other performance condtions attached to the plan. ‘

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the Group

2018 2017
Group Group
)r\hﬁpr of OL;'rstar;dmg r;a{chlﬁg sharlr'es ‘ o o - 57.298_ . 57.532
26 Dividends
2018 2017
£m £m
7I‘Equity dividends - o T
Final dwvidend for 2016. 1 5p per 10p ordinary share - 22
intenm dinadend for 2017 1 5p per 10p ordinary share - 21 I
Final drvidend for 2017 1 5p per 10p ordinary share 22 -
intenm dradend for 2018, 1.6p per 10p ordinary share 21 -
T o o o o S S _1;.3_ ___14 3

A final dwidend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of £2 2m (1.5p per share) 15 proposed by the Directors and, subject to shareholder
approval at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid to all shareholders on the Register of Members on 24 May 2019



27 Notes to the cash flow statement
Reconciliation of (loss)/profit for the year to net cash inflow from operating activities:

2018 2017 2018 2017
Group Group Company Company
Note £m £m £m £m
Profit/{loss) for the year {14.2) 219 13.7) {29
Adjustments for;
Tax 7 [+B} 0.8 (3.2) C7
Interest expense 6 0.2 04 1.6 14
Depreciation 12 0.9 o7 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 5.6 53 - -
Impairment of goodwill 10 131 - - -
Gan on disposal of subsichary 15 (0.1) (20 9) - -
Loss on impairment of investrment 13 - - 131 -
Earn-out costs 4 - 06 - -
Share-based payment charge 25 0.8 05 0.3 02
Unrealised foreign exchange differences - 01 - -
Other - 01 - -
Changes in working capital (excluding effects of
acquisitons and disposals of subsidianes)
Increase In inventories - 08 - -
{increase) / decrease n trade and other receivables (1.3 5 (2.3) 10
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 1.4 {14) B.9 252
Increase n geferred income ) i 03 - - =
Cash generated from operating activities 6.8 138 4.7 222
Analysis of changes in net cash/{debt)
At At
31 December Net 31 December
2017 cash flow 2018
Group Note £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 19 41 4.0 01
Net cash 41 {4.0) 01
At At
31 December Net 31 December
2017 cash flow 2018
Company Note £m £m £m
19 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents
Net {debt) / cash
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the deterrmenation of the Group's nsk management policies. The Board receives monthly reports from
the Chief Financtal Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness ot poiicies and processes put in place to manage nsk. The Board sets
policies that reduce nsk as far as possible without unduly affecting the operating effectiveness of the Group.

The Group’s activities expose tt to a varety of financal risks, including nterest rate nsk, credd nsk, kquidity nsk, capital nsk and cuirency nsk
Of these, credit risk and liquidity sk are considered the most signficant This note presents iInformation about the Group's exposure to each

of the above risks
Categories of financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the cntena for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basts on which income and expenses are recognised In respect of sach class of financial asset, financial kabiity and equity nstrument are
disciosed 1n note 1(s). All financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost

2018 2017
Note €m £m
?n-anciaf assets - o ’ a

Cash and bank balances 19 01 41
Trade recevables - net 18 90 90
Other receivables 18 17 09
Total financial assets ’ ’ o 10_.-2_{ ) 140

Financial liabilities 7 7
Irade payables 20 27 26
Accruals 20 6.8 58
Provisions 23 0.2 19
Other payables 20 0.8 14
’ B ) o 7 o o ) 10.5 7z

Total financial iapities

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other recewvables {note 18) Credit nsk refers to the nsk that a counterparty wiill default
on 1ts contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group The carmying amount of financial assets recorded in the financral
statements, which i1s net of impaimment losses, represents the Group's maximumm exposure to credit nisk in relation to financial assets Credit
rnisk is managed on a Group basis The Group does not consider that 1t 1s subject to any significant concentrations of credit nsk.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables cansist of a large number of customers, of varying sizes and spread across diverse mndustnes and gecgraphies
The Group does not have signficant exposure to credit sk In relation to any single counterparty of group of counterparties having sirmiar
charactenstics, The Group’s exposure to credrt risk s influenced predorminantly by the circumstances of ndmdual customers as cpposed

1o industry or gecgraphic trends

The business assesses the credr quality of customers based on therr financial position, past expenence and other qualitative and
quantitative factors. The Group's policy requires customers te pay In accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days
from the date of invoice. Under normat trading conditions, the Group is exposed to relatively iow levels of risk, and potential losses are
mitigated as a result of a diversified customer base and the requirement for events and certain premium content subscrption Invoices to be

paid in advance of service detivery.

The credit control function within the Group's finance department monitors the cutstanding debts of the Group, and trade recewvabies
balances are analysed by the age and value of cutstanding batances



Any trade recevable balance which 1s objectively determined to be uncollectible 1s written off the ledger, with a charge taken through the
statement of comprehensive iIncome The Group also records an aliowance for expected credit ioss on its trade receivables balances

This approach 1s In ling with reguirements of IFRS 9 and the new impairment model for trade recevables which requires the recognition of
imparment provisions based on expected credit losses, rather than only incurred ones as was the case under (AS 39. All balances past due
are reviewed, with those greater than S0 days past due considered to carry a higher level of credit nsk. Refer to note 1 {g) for further details
on the approach to aflowance for expected credit iosses on trade recevables,

The allowance for expected credit losses, and changes to it, are taken through administrative expenses In the statement of
comprehensive income

The ageing of trade recevatles according to therr onginal due date 1s detalled befow

2018 2018 2017 2017

Gross Provision Gross Provision

£m £m £m £m

Not due T 5.3 o) 52 -
(-30 days past due 2.3 - 2.4 -
31-60 days past due 0.8 (01 10 -
61-90 days past due 0.4 - 63 -
Over 90 days past due 1.4 (1.0} 18 15
10.2 (1.2) 105 15

Trade receivables that are less than 3 months past due are generally nct considered to be imparec, except where specfic credit 1ssues

or delinquency n payments have been identfied At 31 December 2018, there are debtors greater than 90 days past due with a carrying
value of £0.4m (2017 £0 1m} which have not been provided against In making the assessment that these amounts are not imparred, the
Directors have considered the quantum of amounts included in gross trade receivables which relate 1o amounts not yet mcluded In income,
ncluding pre-event debt included in deferred income and amounts relating to VAT The credit quaity of trade recevables not yet due nor
impaired has been assessed as acceptable

The movement In the allowance for expectad credit losses on trade receivables is detatled below

2018 2017

Group Group

£m £m

Bafance at 1 January ’ 1.5 2.7

Utlised (0.6) 12

Disposal of subsidiaries - {05)
Additional allowance charged to the statement of comprehensive iIncome.

Recorded in adjusted operating profit 0.3 05

Balance at 31 December 1.2 15

The Group's policy requires customers to pay In accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days from the date of
nvoice of, In the case of live events related revenue, no less than 30 days before the event. All credit and recovery nsk associatad with trade
recevables has been provided for in the statement of financial positicn The Group's policy for recognising an impanment {0ss 1s given In
note 1 Imparment losses are taken through administrative expenses in ihe statement of comprehensive Income

The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other recevables approximates to therr fair vaiue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Banks and financial nstitutions are independently rated by credit rating agencies We choose only 1o deal with those wath a mirimum ‘A’
rating, We determine the credit qualtty for cash and cash equivalents to be strong.

Other receivables

Other recevables are nerther past due nor impaiwed These are pnmanly made up of sundry recevables, Including employse-related debtors
and receivables in respect of distnbution arrangements.
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Liguidity risk

Liguidity sk 1s the nisk that the Group will not be able to mest its financial obligations as they fall due The Group manages liquidity nsk
by mantaning adequate reserves and working capital credit facilties, and by continuously monitonng forecast and actual cash flows

In November 2018 the Group renewed its £25m multi-currency revoiving credit facility with the Royal Bank of Scotland and Lloyds which
runs 1o November 2021 with the option to extend for 2 penods of 1 year each As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash of £0 1m
(2017 £4 1m) wrth a full undrawn loan facility of £25 Om {2017 full undrawn toan facility of £25.0m).

The following tables detait the financial maturtty for the Group’s financial iabilities:

Less than
Book value Fair value 1year 2-5 years
£m £m £fm £m !
"At31 December 2018 o o
Financial abilities .
Non-interest beanng 10.5 10.5 10.5 -
1C.5 10.5 10.5 -
mw—ecember 2017 T . o h ’ T
Financial labilities
Non-interest beanng 7 11.7 117 -
T R T o - T o 17z 117 R T 2 -

The Directors consider that book value 1s matenally equal to farr value

The bock value of pnmary financial Instrurnents approximates 1o fair vaiue where the instrument 1s on a short matunty or where they bear
interest at rates that approximate to the market

All trade and other payabies are due \n one year or less, or on demand.
Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-beanng assets but 1s exposed to interest rate risk when 1t borrows funds at floating nterest rates
through tts revolving credit facility Borrowings issued at vanable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk. The Group evaluates
its nsk appetite towards interest rate nsks regularly, and may undenake hedging activiies, nciuding nterest rate swap contracts, to manage
nterest rate nsk N retation to its revolving credrt faciity If deemed necessary

The Group did not enter into any hedging transactions during the curent or pror year and as at 31 December 2018, the only ficating rate to
which the Group 1s exposed was LIBOR. The Group's exposure to nterest rates on financial assets and financial labilities is detalled in the
hquidity nsk section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis has been performed based on exposure to variable interest rates at the
reporting date.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other varables were held constant, the Group's net profit after tax would
increase / decrease by £0 Om {2017 £0.0m)

Capital risk

The Group manages 1ts capital to ensure that all entives m the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while Maximising return to
stakeholders, as well as sustaining the future development of the business

The capital structure of the Group consists of net dett/cash, which includes ¢ash and cash equivalents {note 19), and equity attributable

to the owners of the parent, comprising issued share cap#tal (note 24), other reserves and retained earnings. The Board alsc considers the

levels of own shares held for employee share schemes, and the abiiity to 1ssue new shares for acquisitions, In managing capital nsk i the '
business

The Group continues to bensfit from its barking facilities (as renewad during November 2018), which features both a working capital facility,
1o asgrst In managing the Group's iquidity nsk, and an acquistion facility to support the Group's acquisition strategy. The faciry, avalabie
until Novernber 2021 with an option to extend for a further 2 penods of 1 year each, allows for a maxirnum drawdown of £25m.
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Interest 1s calculated on LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the Group’s net leverage positon, which is re-measured quarterty n ing with
covenant testing. The Group's borrowings are subject to financial covenants tested guarterly. The principal financial covenants under the
facility are that the ratic of net debt to adjusted EBITDA {see note 1(0} for explanation and reconciiation of adjusted EBITDA) shall not
exceed 2.51 and the ratic of EBITDA 0 net finance charges shail not be less than 4.1, At 31 Decermber 2018 and throughout 2018 all of
these covenants were achieved.

Currency risk

Substantially alf of the Group’s net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The majonty of revenue and profits 1s generated in the United
Kingdom and consequentiy foreign exchange nisk 1s limited. The Group continues to monitor its exposure to currency nsk, particutarly as
the business expands intc overseas temitories such as North Amenca, however the results of the Group are not currently considered to be
sensitive to movements In currency rates

29 Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had committed to the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buldings

2018 2047
Commitments payable under non-cancellable operating leases £m £m
7V;’<{E|?1—c;r;e year 25 7#—2Y1‘ -
Later than one year and less than five years 4.8 38
o 7.3 57977

On 27 July 2018, the Group signed a new property Lease with WeWork for its London head office in Waterloo commencing on 1 October
2019 for 24 months to September 2021

At 31 December 2018, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive payments In respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2018 2017

Commitments receivable under non-cancellable subleases £m £m

Within one year T 0.5 07

Later than one year and less than five years - 05
) - o S 0.5777777 77715 7

The Company does not have any operating lease commitments

30 Pension schemes

The Group contnbutes to indvidual and collective money purchase pension schames n respeact of Directors and employees once they have
completed the requisite period of service. The charge for the year in respect of these defined contnbution schemes 1s shown 1n note 5.
Included within other payables 1s an amount of £0 1m (2017, £0.1m) payabie in respect of the money purchase pension schemes

31 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments totaling £0 1m in relation to fit-out costs for the new WeWork property lease
{31 December 2017, 2nil),

m



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 Related party transactions

Group
Key management compensation 1s disclosed in note 5 There were no other matenal reiated party transactions for the Group in the current
or prior year
Company
During the year, Interast was recharged from subsidiary companies as faliows:
2018 2017
£m £m
Interest payahle 13 10

There wera no barrowings at the year end.
The balances outstanding with subswliary coipangs as teclosed o notes 18 and 20

There were no other material related party transactons for the Company 1 the current ar prior year
Audit exemption

For the year endad 31 December 2018 the Company has provided a guarantee pursuant to sections 479A-G of Companies Act 2006 over
the hiabiities of the following subsidianes and, as such, they are exempt from the requirernents of the Act refating to the audt of Indwidual
financial statements, or preparation of individual financial statements, as appropriate, for this financial year

Cutstanding

Company liabilities
Name Number £m
"Gentaur Communications Limited T T T T T Towseszes . 135
Centaur Engineenng Limited 011563365 0.3
Centaur Financiai Platforms bimiteg 0B439194 19
Centaur Human Resources Limrted 06776955 Q.3
Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Limited 011676745 -
Centaur Newco 2018 Limited 011725322 -
Chiren Communications Limited Q1081808 69.6
Econsultancy.com Limited 04047149 08
Mayfield Publshing Limited 02034820 -
Pro-Tailk Limited 03839119 0.2
Taxbrisfs Holdings Limited 03572069 -
Taxbriefs Limited 01247331 05
Thelawyer.com Limied 011481880 0.8
Venture Business Research Uimited 05663936 1.3
Xeim Limited 05243851 36

01707331 03

Your Business Magazine Lirmted
See note 13 1n regards to new subsidianes and changes of registered names

Newly acquired business, MarketMakers Incorporated Limited will have s statutory audit for the year ended 31 December 2018 performed
by PwC.
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33 Post balance sheet events

Cn 25 October 2018, following a strategic review Centaur announced a plan to accelerate the simplfication of the Group's activities and
structure by exploring the divestment of a number of businesses

At the year end management performed a review to assess If these businesses met the criteria as held for sale under IFRS & It was
concluded that the held for sale criteria was not met as the sale was not highly probable, assets were not being actively marketed or
avalable for immediate sale and the entity was not cornmitted to a sale

Subsequent to the year end and before signing of the annual report the held for sale critena was met and has been disclosed below as a
non-adjusting post balance sheet event

The businesses under review as part of this plan are’
- Financial Services, which provides research, analysis and content information to financial intermedianes;
- The Lawyer, which operates a digital platform to provide mitellgence and analysis 1o the global legal market,
- Travel & Meetings, which includes the Business Travel Show and The Meetings Show,
~ Human Resources, ncluding Employee Benefits Live; and
— Engineenng, including Subcon, an exhibition that serves the sub-contractor industry

At the time of signing the Annuat Report, negotiations for the sale of these businesses were ongoing and are anticipated 10 be agreed within
half one 2019

The financial effect cannot be relizbly estimated at the tme of signing the Annual Report

13
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FIVE YEAR RECORD (UNAUDITED)

2014
Revenue (£m) 72.2
Live events and premum conient reverues as % of whole 59%
QOperating (foss} / profit {£m) 3.0
Adjusted operating profit (Em) 10.2
Adjusted operating profit margin 14%
(Loss)/Profit before tax (£m) 142
Adjusted proit before tax (£m) 9.2
Adjusted diluted EPS (pence) 50
Omvidend per share (pence) 30
Net operating cash flow (£rm) 123
Average permanent headcount (FTE) 576
Revenue per head (£'000} 126

2014
Revenue by type £m
Live events 289
Prermum comtent 20.6
Advertising 224
Capabiity services -
Other 03

722

2014
Gther £m
Goodwill and other intangible assets 1089
Other agsets and liabilities 84
Nat assets before net debt 1015
Net debt {14.7)
Jotal equrty 86.8

2015 2016 2017 2018
69 9 719 64 72 70.5
B67% 72% 89% 62%
4.7) (3.9 ©3) (14.0)
10.5 9.1 4.1 5.2
15% 13% 6% 7%
(5 6) 44 0.7) 142
g8 86 37 5.0
53 45 i8 286
30 3Q 30 30
47 14.0 12.1 5.6
564 554 589 758
125 131 110 93
2015 2016 2017 2018
£m £m £m £m
272 307 287 2641
199 20.8 18.1 1786
225 202 135 12,6
- - 6.1 141
03 0.2 0.3 0
889 719 64.7 70.5
2018 2076 2017 2018
£m £m £m £m
96.4 888 942 781
@ (7 6) (13.4) _(n.5
94,3 81.2 808 66.6
(17 9) (14.1) 4.1 01
764 671 84.9 66.7
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